
 

 

 

Priorities and Resources Review Panel 2015/2016 

 
Members 

Councillors Bent, Darling, Davies, Hytche, Kingscote, McPhail, Pentney, Stockman and 
Thomas (J) 

 
(Contact 01803 207063 or e: scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk) 

 
 

 
Tuesday, 2 September 2014 at 9.30 am  

to be held in the English Riviera Conference Centre 
 

 

 

Stakeholder organisations, service users, community groups and members of the public are 
invited to attend the meeting and share their views with the Panel.  If you wish to speak at the 
meeting, please register by Wednesday 27 August 2014 by contacting the Scrutiny Team on 

01803 207063 or scrutiny@torbay.gov.uk 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
1.   Apologies  

 
2.   Resident and Visitor Services - Library Services  

 
2(a)   (9.30) Introduction and Rationale for Proposals (Pages 1 - 

34) 

 To hear from the Mayor and Executive Lead for Culture and the Arts on 
the reasoning behind the proposals in relation to Library Services. 
 
(The proposals document and the associated Equality Impact 
Assessment are attached for information.) 

 
2(b)   (9.45) Representations from Friends Groups, service users and 

members of the public 
(Pages 35 - 

37) 



 To hear representations from members of the public on the proposals in 
relation to Library Services. 
 
(Written representations received by the Panel are attached for 
consideration.) 

 
2(c)   (10.15) Representations from Members of the Council  

 To hear representations from Councillors who are not members of the 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel on the proposals in relation to 
Library Services. 

 
2(d)   (10.30) Panel Member questions to Mayor and Executive Lead  

 Members of the Panel to ask any questions of the Mayor and Executive 
Lead. 

 
 11.15 - 11.30 a.m. BREAK  

 
3.   Residents and Visitor Services - English Riviera Tourism 

Company 
 

 
3(a)   (11.30) Introduction and Rationale for proposals (Pages 38 - 

48) 

 To hear from the Mayor and Executive Lead on the reasoning behind 
the proposals in relation to the English Riviera Tourism Company. 
 
(The proposals document and the associated Equality Impact 
Assessment are attached for information.) 

 
3(b)   (11.45) Representations from English Riviera Tourism Company 

and members of the public 
(Pages 49 - 

60) 

 To hear representations from members of the public on the proposals in 
relation to the English Riviera Tourism Company. 

 
3(c)   (12.00) Representations from Members of the Council  

 To hear representations from Councillors who are not members of the 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel on the proposals in relation to 
the English Riviera Tourism Company. 

 



3(d)   (12.15) Panel Member questions to Mayor and Executive Lead  

 Members of the Panel to ask any questions of the Mayor and Executive 
Lead. 

 
 1.00 - 2.00 p.m. WORKING LUNCH  

 
4.   Residents and Visitor Services - Museums  

 
4(a)   (2.00) Introduction and Rationale for proposals (Pages 61 - 

74) 

 To hear from the Mayor and Executive Lead for Culture and the Arts on 
the reasoning behind the proposals in relation to Museums. 
 
(The proposals document and the associated Equality Impact 
Assessment are attached for information.) 

 
4(b)   (2.15) Representations from museums and members of the public (Pages 75 - 

181) 

 To hear representations from members of the public on the proposals in 
relation to Museums. 

 
4(c)   (2.30) Representations from Members of the Council  

 To hear representations from Councillors who are not members of the 
Priorities and Resources Review Panel on the proposals in relation to 
Museums. 

 
4(d)   (2.45) Panel Member questions to Mayor and Executive Lead  

 Members of the Panel to ask any questions of the Mayor and Executive 
Lead. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 3.00 - 3.30 p.m. BREAK  

 
4(e)   (3.30) Initial Conclusions  

 For Panel members to identify possible: 

• Areas of follow up  

• Inter-relationships with other topics under review 

• Conclusions 

• Recommendations 



Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fu
n

d
):

  

 W
h

a
t 

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
?

 
W

h
y

 i
s 

it
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
?
 

W
h

a
t 

d
ri

v
e

s 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s?

 

T
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
th

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
: 

 

•
 

4
 b

ra
n

ch
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

 

•
 

Le
n

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
(B

o
o

k
s 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

io
-v

is
u

a
l 

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

) 
 

•
 

R
e

fe
re

n
ce

, 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 l
o

ca
l 
st

u
d

ie
s 

•
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
 

•
 

IC
T

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
s 

 

•
 

E
ve

n
ts

 a
n

d
 f

e
st

iv
a

ls
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 A

g
a

th
a

 C
h

ri
st

ie
  

•
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
fu

n
d

 –
 w

h
ic

h
 p

a
y
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 a
cq

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
b

o
o

k
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

fo
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il
it

y
 t

o
 “

p
ro

vi
d

e
 a

n
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

ve
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

” 
 (

1
9

6
4

 P
u

b
li

c 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
A

ct
) 

•
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
li
c 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 l
o

ca
l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 &

 

vi
si

to
rs

  
 

•
 

F
ri

e
n

d
s 

o
f 

Li
b

ra
ry

 G
ro

u
p

s 
 

•
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
b

o
d

ie
s 

(C
h

a
rt

e
re

d
 I

n
st

it
u

te
 o

f 

Li
b

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

ls
/S

o
ci

e
ty

 o
f 

C
h

ie
f 

Li
b

ra
ri

a
n

s)
 

 

 
D

ra
ft

 P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

 d
e

ta
il

s 
A

ct
u

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

 
1

,2
6

3
,0

0
0

 
 

 
9

6
5

,5
0

0
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 2a

Page 1



D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

4
0

. 
R

e
m

o
v

a
l 

o
f 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 

fr
o

m
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
li

b
ra

ry
 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
 

 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

  

•
 

h
a

n
d

e
d

 o
ve

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 

re
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 

li
b

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 s

it
e

 

•
 

H
a

n
d

e
d

 o
ve

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 f
ro

m
 e

xi
st

in
g

 

si
te

 

•
 

C
lo

se
d

 
 

  

 

 
 

1
0

5
,0

0
0

 
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 

p
e

n
si

o
n

 

st
ra

in
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

  

 P
ro

je
ct

 c
o

st
s 

–
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 

st
a

ff
in

g
 

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

in
 s

e
tt

in
g

 u
p

 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
. 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 

 

 R
is

k
 o

f 
le

g
a

l 
ch

a
ll
e

n
g

e
 i
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 i
s 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 n

o
t 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 (
P

u
b

li
c 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

A
ct

 1
9

6
4

) 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it

e
 w

il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 f
e

a
si

b
il

it
y
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 t

o
 d

e
li
ve

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

a
b

il
it

y
/w

il
li
n

g
n

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 o
n

 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 a

t 
n

o
 c

o
st

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
co

n
se

q
u

e
n

t 
im

p
a

ct
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 

ra
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 o

ff
e

re
d

. 
 

A
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 –

 d
e

ta
il
s 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 w
il
l 

b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 t
o

 a
id

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 m
a

k
in

g
. 

 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 

fo
r 

1
5

/1
6

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

so
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 (
£

1
0

5
k
) 

- 
th

is
 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 

  

Page 2



D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

4
1

. 
R

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

ib
ra

ry
 r

e
li

e
f 

st
a

ff
in

g
 b

u
d

g
e

t 

    

 
 

7
,5

0
0

 
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 

p
e

n
si

o
n

 

st
ra

in
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
 

 In
cr

e
a

se
d

 p
re

ss
u

re
 i
n

 t
ry

in
g

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 

st
a

ff
in

g
 l

e
ve

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
la

n
n

e
d

, 
u

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

o
r 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 a
b

se
n

ce
s 

in
 f

ro
n

tl
in

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
th

a
t 

a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 r
e

li
e

f 
st

a
ff

 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 r

e
su

lt
 i
n

 

u
n

sc
h

e
d

u
le

d
 c

lo
su

re
s.

  

4
2

. 
Lo

ss
 o

f 
p

o
st

 o
f 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

(0
.5

1
 f

te
) 

w
it

h
in

 

Li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 

  

 
 

1
1

,9
0

0
 

 
A

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 

p
e

n
si

o
n

 

st
ra

in
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

M
in

o
r 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
 

 Lo
ss

 o
f 

ro
le

 f
o

r 
d

is
a

d
va

n
ta

g
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

e
ld

e
rl

y
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

. 
C

e
ss

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
li
n

d
 C

lu
b

 a
t 

T
o

rq
u

a
y
 l
ib

ra
ry

, 
a

n
d

 o
f 

P
ri

m
e

 T
im

e
 G

ro
u

p
 (

fo
r 

a
g

e
 

5
5

+
) 

a
t 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

. 
 

 R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

a
ff

 i
n

 t
h

is
 s

e
ct

io
n

 w
il
l 

tr
a

n
sf

e
r 

to
 B

ib
li
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

te
a

m
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

R
N

IB
 s

u
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

V
is

u
a

ll
y
 I

m
p

a
ir

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
h

o
m

e
 

se
rv

ic
e

. 

Page 3



D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

4
3

. 
S

ta
ff

in
g

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

in
 L

ib
ra

ry
 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
   

  
  
   

  
   

  
  
   

   
  
  
  
   

  
  
   

  
  
   

  
   

  
  
   

  
   

  

 
 

9
3

,1
5

0
 

 
A

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 

p
e

n
si

o
n

 

st
ra

in
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 
m

e
a

n
 f

e
w

e
r 

fu
n

ct
io

n
s 

ca
n

 b
e

 d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

 Li
m

it
e

d
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

in
it

ia
ti

ve
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

ri
ve

rs
 

su
ch

 a
s 

‘n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
o

ff
e

rs
’.

 

 C
u

rr
e

n
t 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s,
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
a

 m
o

d
e

rn
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 

o
ve

ra
ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
w

il
l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
, 

a
lb

e
it

 o
n

 a
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 b

a
si

s.
  

4
4

. 
R

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e

ri
a

l 
a

n
d

 

S
u

p
e

rv
is

o
ry

 r
o

le
s 

a
t 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 

Li
b

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 

  

 
 

5
,5

0
0

 
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 

p
e

n
si

o
n

 

st
ra

in
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
 

 R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 r
e

m
o

va
l 
o

f 
th

e
 m

o
b

il
e

 

li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

fo
rm

e
rl

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

P
a

ig
n

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
P

LA
IC

),
 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

. 

4
5

. 
A

li
g

n
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
st

a
ff

in
g

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

a
t 

T
o

rq
u

a
y

 L
ib

ra
ry

 

  

 
 

4
,5

0
0

 
 

 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

5
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
 

 V
a

ca
n

cy
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

4
6

. 
R

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 

fu
n

d
 

 

 

 
 

6
7

,8
5

0
 

 
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 

 

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
fu

n
d

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

w
il

l 
m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
fe

w
e

r 

b
o

o
k
s,

 D
V

D
s,

 C
D

s,
 s

p
o

k
e

n
 w

o
rd

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 a
n

d
 

o
n

li
n

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

. 

 

Page 4



D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

4
7

. 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 s

a
v

in
g

s 
w

it
h

in
 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

 

  

 
 

2
,1

0
0

 
 

 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

5
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
P

ro
p

o
sa

l 
 

  

Page 5



 

 
1

S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
–

 C
h

u
rs

to
n

 L
ib

ra
ry

 -
 D

R
A

F
T

  
 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

N
ic

k
 N

il
e

s 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
: 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
- 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 U
n

it
: 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 V
is

it
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

: 
P

la
ce

 
D

a
te

 S
ta

rt
e

d
 :
 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

v
e

rs
io

n
: 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

 (
w

h
e

n
 f

in
a

l 
v

e
rs

io
n

):
  

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

  

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 

H
e

a
d

: 
 

D
a

te
: 

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 
   

 

Agenda Item 2a
Appendix 1

Page 6



 

 
2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

  

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l t

h
is

 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 i
n

co
m

e
 

/ 
sa

vi
n

g
s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

•
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

ct
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 a

n
y

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

is
su

e
d

. 
  

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
c 

ti
o

n
 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

R
e

m
o

v
a

l o
f 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
ro

m
 

T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
C

h
u

rs
to

n
 l
ib

ra
ry

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

  

 

•
 

h
a

n
d

e
d

 o
ve

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
li
ve

ry
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

re
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 

li
b

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 s

it
e
 

•
 

H
a

n
d

e
d

 o
ve

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
li
ve

ry
 f

ro
m

 e
xi

st
in

g
 

si
te

 

•
 

C
lo

se
d

 
 

1
0

5
,0

0
0
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 c
o

st
s 

a
n

d
 p

e
n

si
o

n
 s

tr
a

in
 

if
 a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 

 

P
ro

je
ct

 c
o

st
s 

–
 

ca
p

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 i
n

 

se
tt

in
g

 u
p

 f
o

r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

R
is

k
 o

f 
le

g
a

l c
h

a
ll
e

n
g

e
 i
f 

se
rv

ic
e

 is
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 

n
o

t 
to

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 (
P

u
b

li
c 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
A

ct
 1

9
6

4
).

 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e

 s
it

e
 w

il
l 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
th

e
 f

e
a

si
b

il
it

y
 o

f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
b

il
it

y/
w

il
lin

g
n

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
t 

n
o

 

co
st

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l c
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

t 
im

p
a

ct
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
 b

e
 o

ff
e

re
d

. 
 

 A
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 –

 d
e

ta
il
s 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 w
il
l 
b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 a
id

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

m
a

k
in

g
. 
 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 (
£

1
0

5
k)

 -
 

th
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 7



 

 
3

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
se

e
k
s 

to
 e

st
a

b
li
sh

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
ru

n
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 l
ib

ra
ry

 i
n

 C
h

u
rs

to
n

 a
s 

a
n

 e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

to
 T

o
rb

a
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
o

ve
ra

ll
 

li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 it
s 

re
m

a
in

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

o
in

ts
 –

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l w
il
l 
a

ls
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
: 
 

 

•
 

re
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 s

it
e
 

•
 

li
b

ra
ry

 h
a

n
d

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 f
ro

m
 e

xi
st

in
g

 s
it

e
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l w
il
l 
re

d
u

ce
 c

o
st

s 
fo

r 
T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l,
 w

h
ile

 a
t 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
im

e
 e

st
a

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 r

u
n

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 l
ib

ra
ry

 i
n

 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il
l o

p
e

ra
te

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
T

o
rb

a
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
n

 i
ts

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
o

in
ts

. 

 T
h

e
 m

o
d

e
l i

s 
b

a
se

d
 u

p
o

n
 t

ra
n

sf
e

rr
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il
it

y
 f

o
r 

ru
n

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 l
ib

ra
ry

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 l
o

ca
l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 lo

ca
l 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s 

ru
n

 

b
y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

. 
A

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
d

e
l a

re
 i
n

 p
la

ce
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l w
il
l 
a

ls
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
re

-d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 s

it
e

. 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 (
£

1
0

5
k)

 -
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 

  

2
. 

W
h

o
 i

s 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l o
ff

e
rs

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

fo
r 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 i
n

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
, 

th
e

ir
 lo

ca
l 
li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
. 
 

 Li
b

ra
ry

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 m

a
y 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

w
h

e
n

 a
 l
ib

ra
ry

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 m
a

y 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 h

a
v
e

 

cl
o

se
d

. 
  

 V
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 g
a

in
in

g
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
n

e
w

 s
k
il
ls

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
 a

n
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

te
ra

ct
io

n
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
rs

. 
   

 

Page 8



 

 
4

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

S
ta

ff
 a

ss
ig

n
e

d
 t

o
 C

h
u

rs
to

n
 li

b
ra

ry
 (

p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

a
su

a
l 
st

a
ff

) 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

ly
 a

s 
jo

b
s 

m
a

y
 b

e
 l
o

st
. 

 Li
b

ra
ry

 m
a

n
a

g
e

ri
a

l a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

ta
ff

 m
a

y 
se

e
 a

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 in

 t
h

e
ir

 w
o

rk
in

g
 h

o
u

rs
 a

s 
th

e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

w
it

h
in

 

T
o

rb
a

y’
s 

st
a

tu
to

ry
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 

  

Page 9



 

 
5

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a

re
 a

 p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
 a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t.
   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 f

u
ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
3

. 
H

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  
 

•
 

A
ro

u
n

d
 6

5
.5

%
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

 a
re

 f
e

m
a

le
.  

•
 

O
v
e

r 
h

a
lf

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ct
iv

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

 a
re

 a
g

e
d

 5
6

+
. 
 

•
 

A
 b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
 o

f 
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
is

 s
h

o
w

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
. 

 

A
g

e
 

ra
n

g
e
 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

 (
%

) 
G

e
n

d
e

r 
%

 
M

/F
 

0
 -

 1
5
 

2
2

.6
3
 

4
2

.7
 /

 5
7

.3
 

1
6

 -
 2

5
 

3
.4

2
 

3
7

.3
 /

 6
2

.7
 

2
6

 -
 3

5
 

3
.4

7
 

1
7

.7
 /

 8
2

.3
 

3
6

 -
 4

5
 

7
.7

9
 

2
0

.3
 /

 7
9

.7
 

4
6

 -
 5

5
 

8
.7

4
 

2
8

.5
 /

 7
1

.5
 

5
6

 -
 6

5
 

1
4

.6
2
 

2
8

.5
 /

 7
1

.5
 

6
6

 -
 7

5
 

2
2

.8
 

3
5

.7
 /

 6
4

.3
 

7
6

+
 

1
6

.4
7
 

4
0

.1
 /

 5
9

.9
 

  

•
 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

o
ff

e
r 

a
 c

o
n

ce
ss

io
n

a
ry

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 f
o

r 
cu

st
o

m
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 s

ic
k
 o

r 
ch

ro
n

ic
a

ll
y
 d

is
a

b
le

d
. 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o

f 
3

3
 

Page 10



 

 
6

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
cu

st
o

m
e

rs
 h

a
ve

 t
h

is
 c

a
te

g
o

ry
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 (

3
2

 a
d

u
lt

s,
 1

 c
h

ild
).

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 2

1
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 a

s 
h

o
u

se
b

o
u

n
d

 f
o

r 

w
h

o
m

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 o
r 

ca
re

r 
w

ill
 b

o
rr

o
w

 a
n

d
 r

e
tu

rn
 l
ib

ra
ry

 i
te

m
s.

  

 

•
 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
in

g
 t

a
b

le
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e

 a
ve

ra
g

e
 f

re
q

u
e

n
cy

 o
f 

v
is

it
s 

b
y
 a

ct
iv

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

 b
y
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 f

re
q

u
e

n
cy

 

ra
n

g
e

. 

 

A
g

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 (
m

e
a

n
) 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s 

to
 

re
tu

rn
/b

o
rr

o
w

/r
e

n
e

w
 

it
e

m
s 

R
a

n
g

e
 

o
f 

v
is

it
s 

0
 -

 1
5
 

5
 

1
 -

 4
5
 

1
6

 -
 2

5
 

4
 

1
 -

 2
0
 

2
6

 -
 3

5
 

5
 

1
 -

 3
0
 

3
6

 -
 4

5
 

6
 

1
 -

 3
8
 

4
6

 -
 5

5
 

9
 

1
 –

 4
1
 

5
6

 -
 6

5
 

9
 

1
 -

 7
3
 

6
6

 -
 7

5
 

1
2
 

1
 -

 9
1
 

7
6

+
 

1
3
 

1
 -

 7
7
 

 

•
 

A
 m

a
p

 s
h

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

, 
a

n
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

d
e

p
ri

v
a

ti
o

n
, 

ca
n

 b
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 w
e

b
si

te
. 

 

•
 

In
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
, 

v
is

it
o

r 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 w

e
re

 h
ig

h
e

st
 o

n
 T

h
u

rs
d

a
ys

 (
2

1
.9

6
%

) 
fo

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 F

ri
d

a
y
 (

2
0

.4
%

),
 M

o
n

d
a

y
 (

1
9

.6
2

%
),

 W
e

d
n

e
sd

a
y
 

(1
2

.8
9

%
),

 T
u

e
sd

a
y 

(1
2

.7
5

%
) 

a
n

d
 S

a
tu

rd
a

y
 (

1
2

.3
5

%
).

  T
u

e
sd

a
y
, 

W
e

d
n

e
sd

a
y
 a

n
d

 S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 a

re
 h

a
lf

 d
a

y 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

v
is

it
o

rs
 p

e
r 

o
p

e
n

in
g

 h
o

u
r,

 t
h

e
 b

u
si

e
st

 d
a

y
s 

w
e

re
 W

e
d

n
e

sd
a

y
 4

0
.8

8
 v

is
it

s 
p

e
r 

h
o

u
r)

, 
T

u
e

sd
a

y
 (

3
9

.6
4

),
 

S
a

tu
rd

a
y
 (

3
8

.3
9

),
 M

o
n

d
a

y
 (

3
0

.2
4

),
 F

ri
d

a
y
 (

2
5

.5
9

) 
a

n
d

 T
h

u
rs

d
a

y
 (

2
8

.1
).

  

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 l
e

v
e

ls
 p

e
r 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

a
re

 v
e

ry
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
ra

n
g

in
g

 f
ro

m
 2

3
.3

6
%

 –
 2

6
.7

8
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l.

 T
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
ro

m
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
–

 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
w

a
s 

th
e

 q
u

ie
te

st
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
u

r,
 p

a
rt

ly
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
h

ri
st

m
a

s 
cl

o
su

re
 w

h
ic

h
, 

in
e

v
it

a
b

ly
, 

d
e

p
re

ss
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
re

tu
rn

. 
 

 

•
 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
w

il
l 
b

e
 a

n
a

ly
se

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 lo

ca
l o

p
in

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
st

 u
sa

g
e

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
s.

 

Page 11



 

 
7

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
4

. 
H

o
w

 w
il

l 
/ 

h
a

v
e

 y
o

u
*

 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l?
 

   

T
w

o
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 r

e
ce

n
tl

y
 –

  

 

1
. 

A
 ‘

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
Li

b
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s’
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
a

s 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 1

1
th

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 t

o
 t

h
e

 1
6
th

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

. 
 

 A
 c

o
p

y 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 o
n

li
n

e
. 
 

 

2
. 

A
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 
m

o
st

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
g

e
n

e
ra

l c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

s 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
ro

m
 

C
h

u
rs

to
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 (
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s)

 a
n

d
 a

n
 o

n
li
n

e
 s

u
rv

e
y 

m
a

d
e

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 o
n

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

e
b

 p
a

g
e

s.
 

 S
u

rv
e

y
s 

w
e

re
 a

ls
o

 s
e

n
t 

to
 l
o

ca
l 
sc

h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 t

o
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

V
ie

w
p

o
in

t 
P

a
n

e
l,
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 c
a

ra
v
a

n
 v

is
it

e
d

 t
h

e
 3

 t
o

w
n

s 
a

n
d

 C
h

u
rs

to
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 d
u

ri
n

g
 M

a
rc

h
, 

co
n

su
lt

in
g

 s
p

e
ci

fi
ca

ll
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

u
b

si
d

is
e

d
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
. 
 

 A
 c

o
p

y 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

w
il
l 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 o
n

li
n

e
. 
 

 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

il
l n

o
w

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 d

u
ri

n
g

 J
u

ly
/A

u
g

u
st

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 o
n

 p
a

g
e

 2
. 
 

 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
  

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
A

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
s,

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

to
 e

ve
n

ts
 /

 f
o

cu
s 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u

p
s 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

. 
U

se
 b

u
ll
e

t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s.

 
   

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
H

a
s 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

  
H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
lt

e
r 

yo
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

 
8

  P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 

 
P

o
ss

ib
le

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 o
r 

n
o

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

ly
 lo

ca
l 
li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s.

 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
lo

ca
lly

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

ch
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 

m
a

y 
b

e
 m

o
re

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

s 
th

e
y
 

w
il
l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

to
 a

cc
e

ss
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ry

. 
 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
fr

e
e

 a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
. 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
lo

ca
lly

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

C
a

re
rs

 m
a

y 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

ra
v
e

l 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

to
 a

cc
e

ss
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

li
b

ra
ry

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n

 

ca
re

d
 f

o
r.

 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
fr

e
e

 a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
. 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 

 

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
lo

ca
lly

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
o

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

is
su

e
s 

m
a

y
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 t
ra

v
e

l f
u

rt
h

e
r 

to
 a

cc
e

ss
 a

n
o

th
e

r 

li
b

ra
ry

. 
 

 

  

Page 13



 

 
9

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
fr

e
e

 a
n

d
 a

d
jo

in
in

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
. 

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 

 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

ck
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

   

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
ra

n
sg

e
n

d
e

re
d

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

  

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
 

 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
 

 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

)  

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 p

re
ss

u
re

 o
n

 r
e

m
a

in
in

g
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

if
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
r 

o
ff

e
r 

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

u
n

su
cc

e
ss

fu
l.

  

 In
cr

e
a

se
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
h

o
u

se
b

o
u

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y
 in

 t
h

e
 s

ta
g

e
s 

o
f 

b
e

in
g

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

. 

Page 14



 

 
1

0
 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

 
8

b
. 

C
u

m
u

la
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

–
 O

th
e

r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

 

 

  

 S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?
 

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

a
ch

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 7

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 e
a

ch
 i
m

p
a

ct
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 /
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 /

 e
lim

in
a

te
d

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

. 
W

h
a

t 
w

a
ys

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a

ct
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
?

  
 It

 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

 (
£

1
0

5
k)

 -
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

 

 

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

O
 B

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
1

0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

  

T
h

e
 f

u
ll
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 o

n
ce

 it
 is

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
ct

u
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

y 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
  

   

 

 
 

Page 15



 

 
1

1
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 5

: 
R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 –
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
 W

H
E

N
 A

LL
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 A

N
D

 E
IA

 F
IN

A
LI

S
E

D
  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

T
ic

k
 �

 
R

e
a

so
n

s/
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
 

1
1

. 
           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 
C

le
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

ju
st

if
y 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
u

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(a
n

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

o
n

e
 m

a
y 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l)

. 
P

le
a

se
 s

e
le

ct
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 j

u
st

if
y 

th
e

 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n
 

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 
 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d
 

 

 

 

       

Page 16



 

 
1

S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
–

 L
ib

ra
ry

 I
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
–

 B
li

n
d

 C
lu

b
 &

 P
ri

m
e

 T
im

e
 -

 D
R

A
F

T
 

 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

N
ic

k
 N

il
e

s 
P

o
si

ti
o

n
: 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 L

ib
ra

ri
a

n
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 U
n

it
: 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 V
is

it
o

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

: 
P

LA
C

E
 

D
a

te
 S

ta
rt

e
d

 :
 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

v
e

rs
io

n
: 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

 (
w

h
e

n
 f

in
a

l 
v

e
rs

io
n

):
  

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

  

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 

H
e

a
d

: 
 

D
a

te
: 

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 
   

 

Agenda Item 2a
Appendix 2

Page 17



 

 
2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

•
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

ct
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 a

n
y

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

is
su

e
d

. 
  

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

 0
0

0
’s

 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

p
o

st
 o

f 
In

cl
u

si
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 

C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

(0
.5

1
 f

te
) 

 

 

1
1

,9
0

0
 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

re
d

u
n

d
a

n
cy

 c
o

st
s 

a
n

d
 p

e
n

si
o

n
 s

tr
a

in
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
ca

b
le

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

Lo
ss

 o
f 

ro
le

 f
o

r 
d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 e
ld

e
rl

y
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

. 
C

e
ss

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
li
n

d
 C

lu
b

 a
t 

T
o

rq
u

a
y
 l
ib

ra
ry

, 
a

n
d

 o
f 

P
ri

m
e

 

T
im

e
 G

ro
u

p
 (

fo
r 

a
g

e
 5

5
+

) 
a

t 
P

a
ig

n
to

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
. 
 

 R
e

m
a

in
in

g
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

a
ff

 i
n

 t
h

is
 s

e
ct

io
n

 

w
il
l 
tr

a
n

sf
e

r 
to

 B
ib

li
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

te
a

m
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

R
N

IB
 

su
b

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

V
is

u
a

ll
y
 I

m
p

a
ir

e
d

 

P
e

rs
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
h

o
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
   

 
X

 
 

Page 18



 

 
3

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 t
o

 d
e

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

o
st

 o
f 

th
e

 I
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r.
 .

  
 T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

ro
le

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

s:
 

 

•
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
li
b

ra
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
h

o
m

e
s,

 d
a

y
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
im

il
a

r 
e

st
a

b
li
sh

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 (

th
is

 w
il
l 

tr
a

n
sf

e
r 

to
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

in
 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s)

 

•
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 R
N

IB
 T

a
lk

in
g

 B
o

o
k
s 

co
n

tr
a

ct
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

o
f 

v
is

u
a

lly
 im

p
a

ir
e

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 i
n

 T
o

rb
a

y
 (

th
is

 w
il
l 
tr

a
n

sf
e

r 
to

 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
in

 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s)

 

•
 

A
ct

in
g

 a
s 

le
a

d
 i
n

 r
e

sp
e

ct
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

to
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

d
 g

ro
u

p
s.

  

•
 

R
u

n
n

in
g

 c
lu

b
s 

fo
r 

V
is

u
a

ll
y 

Im
p

a
ir

e
d

 P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

r 
5

5
s 

(s
p

e
ci

fi
ca

ll
y 

th
e

 B
li
n

d
 C

lu
b

 a
n

d
 P

ri
m

e
 T

im
e

 C
lu

b
 r

e
sp

e
ct

iv
e

ly
) 

 T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l m
e

a
n

s 
th

e
 t

w
o

 c
lu

b
s 

(T
h

e
 B

li
n

d
 C

lu
b

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
ri

m
e

 T
im

e
 C

lu
b

) 
w

il
l 
ce

a
se

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

 
2

. 
W

h
o

 i
s 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

 A
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
v
is

u
a

ll
y
 i
m

p
a

ir
e

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
h

o
 n

o
rm

a
ll
y
 m

e
e

t 
a

t 
T

o
rq

u
a

y
 l
ib

ra
ry

 1
0

 t
im

e
s 

a
 y

e
a

r 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 t

h
e

ir
 

re
a

d
in

g
 c

h
o

ic
e

s 
w

il
l n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
. 

A
lt

h
o

u
g
h

 t
h

e
se

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 s
u

b
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 R

N
IB

 t
a

lk
in

g
 b

o
o

k
s,

 t
h

e
 

so
ci

a
li
sa

ti
o

n
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

ff
e

re
d

 b
y
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

ce
 a

t 
th

is
 h

is
 c

lu
b

 w
il
l 
b

e
 l
o

st
. 

T
h

e
se

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 b

e
lo

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 B

li
n

d
 C

lu
b

. 
 P

ri
m

e
 T

im
e

 e
v
e

n
ts

 a
re

 h
e

ld
 a

t 
P

a
ig

n
to

n
 l
ib

ra
ry

 4
 t

im
e

s 
a

 y
e

a
r,

 a
n

d
 i
n

vo
lv

e
 a

n
 a

ft
e

rn
o

o
n

 w
it

h
 a

 s
p

e
a

ke
r 

a
n

d
 r

e
fr

e
sh

m
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

u
d

ie
n

ce
 s

iz
e

 i
s 

a
ro

u
n

d
 4

0
, 

th
o

u
g

h
 u

p
 t

o
 6

0
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 k
n

o
w

n
. 

A
n

y
o

n
e

 o
ve

r 
5

5
 c

a
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 a

re
 a

 r
e

si
d

e
n

t 
o

r 

v
is

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 w
il
l 
n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 a

tt
e

n
d

 t
h

is
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l/
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l/

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y
. 
 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

o
rg

a
n

is
e

 &
 p

a
y
 t

h
e

 s
p

e
a

ke
rs

, 
p

ro
d

u
ce

 p
u

b
li
ci

ty
, 

h
o

st
 a

n
d

 b
o

o
k
 t

h
e

 v
e

n
u

e
. 
 

  
 

 

Page 19



 

 
4

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
3

. 
H

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  
P

ri
m

e
 T

im
e

 g
ro

u
p

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 a
g
e

d
 5

5
+

. 
T

h
is

 i
s 

n
o

t 
a

 c
lu

b
 w

it
h

 a
 s

e
t 

o
f 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
th

e
 e

ve
n

ts
 a

re
 f

re
e

 f
o

r 
a

n
y 

p
e

rs
o

n
 o

v
e

r 
5

5
 t

o
 

v
is

it
. 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 a

t 
e

a
ch

 e
v
e

n
t 

ca
n

 f
lu

ct
u

a
te

 d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

e
a

l o
f 

th
e

 s
p

e
a

k
e

r,
 o

th
e

r 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 e

tc
. 

A
u

d
ie

n
ce

 s
iz

e
 

fl
u

ct
u

a
te

s 
fr

o
m

 4
0

 –
 6

0
is

h
. 

 B
li
n

d
 C

lu
b

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 p
a

rt
ia

ll
y
 s

ig
h

te
d

/b
li
n

d
. 

T
h

is
 i
s 

a
 s

m
a

ll 
g

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

a
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

ct
iv

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 

e
ld

e
rl

y
 –

 7
0

+
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 a
 t

a
xi

 t
o

 b
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

. 
 T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 1
0

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
o

f 
th

e
 B

li
n

d
 C

lu
b

 s
in

ce
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
3

, 
ta

k
in

g
 p

la
ce

 o
n

 a
 T

h
u

rs
d

a
y
 a

ft
e

rn
o

o
n

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
ib

ra
ry

 a
t 

T
o

rq
u

a
y
 is

 

cl
o

se
d

. 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 b

ri
n

g
 b

a
ck

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 i
ss

u
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
st

 e
ve

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 I
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
re

a
d

s 
sy

n
o

p
se

s 
o

f 

v
a

ri
o

u
s 

p
re

-s
e

le
ct

e
d

 s
p

o
k
e

n
 w

o
rd

 it
e

m
s 

so
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 c

a
n

 m
a

ke
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
w

h
a

t 
to

 r
e

a
d

 n
e

xt
. 

A
 c

u
p

 o
f 

te
a

 a
n

d
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
so

ci
a

l 
d

is
cu

ss
io

n
 u

su
a

ll
y
 f

o
llo

w
s 

b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 i
te

m
s 

ch
o

se
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
y
n

o
p

se
s 

re
a

d
in

g
 e

xe
rc

is
e

 a
re

 i
ss

u
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
se

 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
n

o
rm

a
lly

 l
a

st
 a

ro
u

n
d

 2
 h

o
u

rs
 b

e
fo

re
 a

 t
a

xi
 c

o
ll
e

ct
s 

th
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 t
o

 t
a

ke
 t

h
e

m
 a

w
a

y
. 

 
4

. 
H

o
w

 w
il

l 
/ 

h
a

v
e

 y
o

u
*

 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l?
 

 

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 
b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 w
it

h
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
e

a
ch

 g
ro

u
p

. 
 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
A

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
s,

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

to
 e

ve
n

ts
 /

 f
o

cu
s 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u

p
s 

Page 20



 

 
5

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

. 
U

se
 b

u
ll
e

t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s.

 
   

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
H

a
s 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

  
H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
lt

e
r 

yo
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 
   

 

 
 

Page 21



 

 
6

P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 
 

P
ri

m
e

 T
im

e
: 
 

T
h

is
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

is
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
th

o
se

 a
g

e
d

 5
5

+
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
lo

ss
 o

f 

so
ci

a
l/

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l/
re

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
 B

li
n

d
 C

lu
b

: 
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
re

 o
ve

r 
7

0
 y

e
a

rs
 o

f 
a

g
e

. 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
lo

ss
 o

f 
so

ci
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 

w
it

h
 o

th
e

rs
. 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l l
o

ss
 o

f 
a

ss
is

ta
n

ce
 i
n

 

ch
o

o
si

n
g

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

ir
 

ta
st

e
s 

a
n

d
 n

e
e

d
s 

(o
r 

a
s 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 b

e
lo

w
).

 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
  

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y 
 

 
B

li
n

d
 C

lu
b

: 
v
is

u
a

lly
 im

p
a

ir
e

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 

m
a

y 
n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

h
a

v
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 a
 c

lu
b

 w
h

e
re

 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 d
is

cu
ss

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
jo

y
 s

o
ci

a
l 

co
n

ta
ct

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 n
o

rm
a

l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 

  

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 b

la
ck

 o
r 

fr
o

m
 a

 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

Page 22



 

 
7

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

  
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 t

ra
n

sg
e

n
d

e
re

d
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
Im

p
a

ct
  

 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 

A
re

 a
n

y 
cu

m
u

la
ti

ve
 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 O

R
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
s?

 P
le

a
se

 

e
xp

la
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

se
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 (

yo
u

 m
a

y 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
vi

si
t 

th
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 o

n
ce

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
) 

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 

A
re

 a
n

y 
cu

m
u

la
ti

ve
 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s?
 P

le
a

se
 

e
xp

la
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

se
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 (

yo
u

 m
a

y 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
vi

si
t 

th
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 o

n
ce

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
) 

 

 
 

Page 23



 

 
8

S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?
 

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

a
ch

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 7

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 e
a

ch
 i
m

p
a

ct
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 /
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 /

 e
lim

in
a

te
d

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

. 
W

h
a

t 
w

a
ys

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a

ct
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
?

  
 

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

O
 B

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
1

0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

 

T
h

e
 f

u
ll
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 o

n
ce

 it
 is

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

y 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
  

 
S

e
ct

io
n

 5
: 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

ct
io

n
 –

 T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 W
H

E
N

 A
LL

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

 A
N

D
 E

IA
 F

IN
A

LI
S

E
D

  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

T
ic

k
 �

 
R

e
a

so
n

s/
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
 

1
1

. 
           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 
C

le
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

ju
st

if
y 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
u

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(a
n

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

o
n

e
 m

a
y 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l)

. 
P

le
a

se
 s

e
le

ct
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 j

u
st

if
y 

th
e

 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n
 

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 
 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

Page 24



 

 
9

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 25



 

 
1

S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
–

 R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 L

ib
ra

ry
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

F
u

n
d

 -
 D

R
A

F
T

  
 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

N
ic

k
 N

il
e

s 
 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

: 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 L
ib

ra
ri

a
n

  
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 U

n
it

: 
R

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 V

is
it

o
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

 
D

ir
e

ct
o

ra
te

: 
P

la
ce

  
D

a
te

 S
ta

rt
e

d
 :
 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

v
e

rs
io

n
: 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

 (
w

h
e

n
 f

in
a

l 
v

e
rs

io
n

):
  

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

  

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 

H
e

a
d

: 
 

D
a

te
: 

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 
   

 

Agenda Item 2a
Appendix 3

Page 26



 

 
2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

•
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

ct
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 a

n
y

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

is
su

e
d

. 
  

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

 0
0

0
’s

 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
fu

n
d

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 

 

6
7

,8
5

0
 

 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
fu

n
d

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

w
il
l 
m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 

fe
w

e
r 

b
o

o
k
s,

 D
V

D
s,

 C
D

s,
 s

p
o

k
e

n
 w

o
rd

 

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 a
n

d
 o

n
li
n

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
. 
 

 

 
 

X
 

 

Page 27



 

 
3

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

xa
ct

ly
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 /
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
re

 i
s 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 r

e
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
. 

Li
st

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y.
 I

t 
is

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

th
a

t 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

te
n

d
s 

to
 d

e
li
ve

r.
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

m
o

n
e

y 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fu
n

d
 b

y
 £

6
8

,7
5

0
 b

y
 p

u
rc

h
a

si
n

g
 f

e
w

e
r 

it
e

m
s.

 T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 i
s 

£
1

7
1

,9
0

0
. 
 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

b
o

o
k
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
d

ia
 in

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

a
ts

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s 

v
ia

 t
h

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fu
n

d
. 

It
e

m
s 

a
re

 p
u

rc
h

a
se

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 T
o

rb
a

y
 L

ib
ra

ri
e

s 
S
to

ck
 P

o
lic

y
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t.

 
 •

 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fu
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
w

il
l 
m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
fe

w
e

r 
b

o
o

k
s,

 D
V

D
s,

 C
D

s,
 s

p
o

ke
n

 w
o

rd
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 a

n
d

 o
n

li
n

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

w
il
l 
b

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

. 

In
 t

h
e

 l
a

st
 2

 y
e

a
rs

 t
h

is
 w

il
l m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fu
n

d
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 b
y
 2

5
%

. 
 •
 

E
xi

st
in

g
 s

to
ck

 m
a

y
 b

e
co

m
e

 o
u

t 
o

f 
d

a
te

 a
n

d
 p

h
y
si

ca
l 
co

n
d

it
io

n
 m

a
y
 d

e
te

ri
o

ra
te

 a
s 

n
o

rm
a

l s
h

e
lf

 l
if

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

. 
 •

 
T

h
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

 l
o

ss
 o

f 
in

co
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

in
co

m
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 i
te

m
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

D
V

D
s 

a
n

d
 C

D
s.

 
 

•
 

T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

 s
lo

w
e

r 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

e
st

s 
fo

r 
st

o
ck

 i
te

m
s 

n
o

t 
im

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 o
n

 l
ib

ra
ry

 s
h

e
lv

e
s 

 
2

. 
W

h
o

 i
s 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

Li
b

ra
ry

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll
y 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
is

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
. 
 

   
 

 

Page 28



 

 
4

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
3

. 
H

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  
 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

co
ll
a

te
d

 b
y
 C

IP
F
A

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

T
o

rb
a

y
 r

a
n

ke
d

 8
 h

ig
h

e
st

 o
f 

1
5

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

fo
r 

£
 s

p
e

n
d

 p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

n
 

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 (
re

so
u

rc
e

s)
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 ‘

a
ct

u
a

ls
’ 

fi
g

u
re

 s
a

w
 T

o
rb

a
y
 s

p
e

n
d

 £
1

,3
3

5
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 s

p
e

n
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

co
m

p
a

ra
to

r 
g

ro
u

p
 t

o
ta

ll
in

g
 £

1
4

7
3

. 
  

    K
e

y 
to

 g
ra

p
h

: 
(d

) 
N

o
rt

h
 T

y
n

e
si

d
e

 (
w

) 
P

o
o

le
 (

k
) 

B
o

u
rn

e
m

o
u

th
 

(x
) 

B
la

ck
p

o
o

l 
(z

) 
Is

le
 o

f 
W

ig
h

t 
(s

) 
C

o
rn

w
a

ll 
(h

) 
S
e

ft
o

n
 (

n
) 

T
o

rb
a

y
 (

a
) 

B
a

rt
h

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 

S
o

m
e

rs
e

t 
(f

) 
D

a
rl

in
g

to
n

 (
t)

 P
ly

m
o

u
th

 
(r

) 
E

a
st

 R
id

in
g

 o
f 

Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e

 (
m

) 
W

ir
ra

l 
(u

) 
Y

o
rk

 
(e

) 
N

o
rt

h
 S

o
m

e
rs

e
t 

 

Page 29



 

 
5

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
4

. 
H

o
w

 w
il

l 
/ 

h
a

v
e

 y
o

u
*

 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l?
 

  *
d

e
le

te
 a

s 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
w

il
l 
b

e
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

se
tt

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

  
 

5
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s 
  

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
A

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
s,

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

to
 e

ve
n

ts
 /

 f
o

cu
s 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u

p
s 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

. 
U

se
 b

u
ll
e

t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s.

 
   

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
H

a
s 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

  
H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
lt

e
r 

yo
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 
   

 

 
 

Page 30



 

 
6

P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

o
ck

 

it
e

m
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

 r
e

su
lt

in
g

 i
n

 f
e

w
e

r 

it
e

m
s 

to
 c

h
o

o
se

 f
ro

m
. 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
rs

 o
f 

la
rg

e
 

p
ri

n
t 

m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 p
o

p
u

la
r 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

e
ld

e
rl

y
 w

h
o

 m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 l
a

rg
e

r 
fo

n
t 

si
ze

s.
  

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

le
is

u
re

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 f
o

r 
e

a
rl

y 
y
e

a
rs

 

re
a

d
e

rs
, 

sc
h

o
o

l 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 r
e

a
d

in
g

 m
a

te
ri

a
ls

 f
o

r 

n
o

n
 E

n
g

li
sh

 s
p

e
a

k
in

g
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 
 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 
 

 
D

is
a

b
le

d
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
y
 

re
a

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 p

ri
n

t 
si

ze
s 

o
r 

h
o

ld
in

g
 a

 

b
o

o
k 

m
a

y
 b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
in

 

p
u

rc
h

a
se

 o
f 

la
rg

e
 p

ri
n

t 
it

e
m

s 
o

r 
sp

o
ke

n
 

w
o

rd
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
. 

  

  

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

Page 31



 

 
7

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

ck
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

o
ck

 

it
e

m
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

 r
e

su
lt

in
g

 i
n

 f
e

w
e

r 

it
e

m
s 

to
 c

h
o

o
se

 f
ro

m
. 

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

o
ck

 

it
e

m
s 

th
a

t 
a

re
 p

u
rc

h
a

se
d

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 b

o
o

k
s 

in
 o

th
e

r 
la

n
g

u
a

g
e

s 
 

   

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 t

ra
n

sg
e

n
d

e
re

d
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 
 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 

A
re

 a
n

y 
cu

m
u

la
ti

ve
 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 O

R
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
s?

 P
le

a
se

 

e
xp

la
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

se
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 (

yo
u

 m
a

y 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
vi

si
t 

th
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 o

n
ce

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
) 

     

Page 32



 

 
8

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 

A
re

 a
n

y 
cu

m
u

la
ti

ve
 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

cr
o

ss
 y

o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

 f
ro

m
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s?
 P

le
a

se
 

e
xp

la
in

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

se
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 (

yo
u

 m
a

y 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
vi

si
t 

th
is

 s
e

ct
io

n
 o

n
ce

 p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
fi

n
e

d
) 

    
  

 S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?
 

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

a
ch

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 7

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 e
a

ch
 i
m

p
a

ct
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 /
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 /

 e
lim

in
a

te
d

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

. 
W

h
a

t 
w

a
ys

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a

ct
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
?

  
  

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

O
 B

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
1

0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

  

T
h

e
 f

u
ll
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 o

n
ce

 it
 is

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
ct

u
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

y 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
  

  
S

e
ct

io
n

 5
: 

R
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
a

ct
io

n
 –

 T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 W
H

E
N

 A
LL

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

 A
N

D
 E

IA
 F

IN
A

LI
S

E
D

  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

T
ic

k
 �

 
R

e
a

so
n

s/
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
 

1
1

. 
  

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 
C

le
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

ju
st

if
y 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

Page 33



 

 
9

         

d
e

ci
si

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
u

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(a
n

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

o
n

e
 m

a
y 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l)

. 
P

le
a

se
 s

e
le

ct
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 j

u
st

if
y 

th
e

 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n
 

  

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 
 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 34



Agenda Item 2b

Page 35



41, Higher Ranscombe Rd 
Brixham 
Devon  

TQ5 9HF 
 
To whom it may concern on the Priorities and Resources Review Panel 
 

Saving £297,500 from the Library Service is bound to be painful for Torbay and is being 
planned whilst the outcome of Maria Miller MP & Ed Vaisey MP’s Consultation on Public 
Libraries has not published its findings; although they are expected in September. 
 
I took part in this consultation with the Dept of Media, Culture, Sport and Communities 
stating: 
“The current reduction in services at local level due to central government dictat has denied 
many of the public access to a place that has been freely available to all since 1850. Already 
in Torbay there is no scope to use a library after work, with limited opening at weekends on 
Saturday morning only. Other opportunities for betterment have been lost across the country 
with cuts to adult education. 
 
Libraries are warm, welcoming, and accessible, bringing all ages together. They offer good 
access for disabled people with physical ramps and lifts, hearing loops and large print books. 
Small children are welcomed to cosy reading corners with bright books to stimulate their 
imaginations.  No doubt most politicians started their reading journey in a library. For single 
parents and others with little income, the library is not only a refuge but also an opportunity 
to engage, maybe take up learning successfully after failure at school. Free access to 
computers is essential as more and more services need to be completed online. 
 
Older people can master the skills needed to use a PC, take out books that stimulate the 
mind, develop new skills and interests, or just pop in for a companionable chat and to read 
the daily paper. Local studies are supported, as is research into family history. In Brixham 
our pro-active Friends group raises funds for essentials that the Library Service cannot 
afford, we also offer a community programme in this central venue. 
 
There is clearly a need for access at all times from the electorate. This is proven by the wide 
range of successful classes and activities offered by the Friends of Brixham Library (FoBL) 
outside library opening hours - both afternoons and in the evenings. The FoBL have shown it 
is possible to generate money and goodwill rather than cut the service. There is a need for 
more cultural activities for all ages that are affordable and accessible. 
 
The FoBL feel that our libraries are best placed to become community hubs offering 
education, information and culture. The 600 people who took up our programme last year 
demonstrated that this is the way forward.  
 
The government needs to give clear guidance to local authorities on their support for 
libraries which are a soft target in the current swingeing round of cuts. This consultation must 
result in the funding to ensure our libraries are up to date and thriving.” 
 
I note that Torbay’s review of library services draws the same points from users: 
 
“I visit the library with my children and it is difficult since the reduction in hours last year. We 
cannot take another cut in hours. I rely on their books to help my children with reading and  
development we need the library to help with education and support.” 
 
 “An important meeting/social place particularly for the elderly, somewhere warm and safe 
and a good all round information centre.” 

Agenda Item 2b
Appendix 1

Page 36



 
“The library is far too important to consider closing and the help given in the library needs to 
be of a high standard which might not be possible if it is run by volunteers.” 
 
“Use the venue for night school type courses 
 
“Establish regular talks and short courses from communities and organisation. Charge a 
small fee to attend.” 
 
“We would ask you to consider new ways of providing a library service it for the 21st century 
which offers more choice and increased activities rather than reductions that will ultimately 
make the service non-viable.” 
 
In your decision-making regarding the existing service reductions, please bear in mind that 
every library closed is an opportunity lost. The national consultation can be expected to 
encourage a move to a digital library service offering a wide range of services. As this will 
require funding I anticipate the government will find it. Surely, Torbay should await the 
recommendations before implementing cuts to the service.   
  
The profile from your review is predominantly older users, aged 35-75, the majority of whom 
are retired. Only 110 younger people gave feedback from the 2038 who took part in the 
review. Their feedback when the caravan came to Brixham was there was no WiFi in the 
Library, but if there were, they would use it.  
 
It is essential we maintain libraries for the future with modern facilities. There is a need for 
more cultural activities for all ages that are affordable and accessible. The Council needs to 
support and ‘grow’ the Friends groups across the Bay to encourage more opportunities for 
learning and social activities as well as employing well trained front line staff.  
 
Jenny Harriman 
Chair of Friends of Brixham Library  
15.08.14 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 37



D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

 
5

0
0

,0
0

0
 

 
 

0
 

 
 

 

3
7

. 
E

R
T

C
 

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 g
ra

n
t 

o
ve

r 
tw

o
 y

e
a

rs
 

to
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
li
sh

 R
iv

ie
ra

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 

C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 (

E
R

T
C

) 

 

(P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

 F
e

b
 2

0
1

4
) 

 
 

8
5

,0
0

0
 

 
 

   

 

3
8

. 
E

R
T

C
  

C
e

a
se

 s
u

b
si

d
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
li
sh

 

R
iv

ie
ra

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 (

E
R

T
C

) 
 

 

 

 
 

4
1

5
,0

0
0

 
 

T
B

C
  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

M
a

jo
r 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l 

 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 t
o

 c
e

a
se

 1
0

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 

to
 t

h
e

 E
R

T
C

. 
 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri

sk
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 w

il
l 
re

su
lt

 i
n

 

d
e

st
in

a
ti

o
n

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 

vi
si

to
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

in
g

 l
o

st
. 

It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
il
l 
b

e
 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 (
£

3
0

0
k
) 

–
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

 

 

Agenda Item 3a

Page 38



Additional Information Requested 
 

Proposal 37 English Riviera Tourism Company (proposals already agreed) 

Proposal 38 English Riviera Tourism Company 

 

Update the Equality Impact Assessment – What discussions have taken place with the ERTC ?  What 

consultation is underway? 

 

Discussions have taken place directly with the Chief Executive of the ERCT and the Chairman of the 

Board who in turn have discussed this with the ERTC Board. 

 

Ongoing consultation includes not only the ERTC but sections of the business and retail community 

with options for alternative funding being explored through a potential TBID. 

 

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 1

Page 39



 

 
1

B
u

d
g

e
t 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
–

 E
n

g
li

sh
 R

iv
ie

ra
 T

o
u

ri
sm

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 -

 D
R

A
F

T
  

 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
u

e
 C

h
e

ri
to

n
 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

: 
E

x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 H
e

a
d

 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 U

n
it

: 
R

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 V

is
it

o
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

D
ir

e
ct

o
ra

te
: 

P
la

ce
 a

n
d

 R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
D

a
te

 S
ta

rt
e

d
 :
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

v
e

rs
io

n
: 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

 (
w

h
e

n
 f

in
a

l 
v

e
rs

io
n

):
  

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

C
ll

r 
Je

a
n

e
tt

e
 R

ic
h

a
rd

s 
 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 

H
e

a
d

: 
S

u
e

 C
h

e
ri

to
n

 

D
a

te
: 

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 
   

 

Agenda Item 3a
Appendix 2

Page 40



 

 
2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

•
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

ct
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 a

n
y

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

is
su

e
d

. 
  

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

 0
0

0
’s

 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

E
R

T
C

 -
  

C
e

a
se

 s
u

b
si

d
y

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

li
sh

 R
iv

ie
ra

 

T
o

u
ri

sm
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y

 (
E

R
T

C
) 

 
4

1
5

,0
0

0
 

R
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

cy
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y 

b
e

 

in
cu

rr
e

d
 a

n
d

 

co
m

m
it

te
d

 

co
n

tr
a

ct
e

d
 c

o
st

s 
th

a
t 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 h

o
n

o
u

re
d

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 t
o

 c
e

a
se

 1
0

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ra

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
R

T
C

. 
 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri

sk
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 w

il
l r

e
su

lt
 

in
 d

e
st

in
a

ti
o

n
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 

th
e

 v
is

it
o

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

in
g

 l
o

st
. 
 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
il
l 
b

e
 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 (
£

3
0

0
k
) 

–
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

  

 
 

X
 

Page 41



 

 
3

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
o

 c
e

a
se

 p
a

ym
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

u
ll
 C

o
n

tr
a

ct
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
in

g
 F

e
e

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

5
. 

T
h

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

is
 £

4
1

5
,0

0
0

 t
a

k
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 
 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 (
£

3
0

0
k
) 

–
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

  

2
. 

W
h

o
 i

s 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

 S
o

m
e

 o
r 

a
ll
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 E
R

T
C

 c
o

u
ld

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 b

e
 l
o

st
 a

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
o

se
 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 b

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
e

d
 a

re
: 

 

•
 

T
h

e
 E

R
T

C
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 a

n
d

 B
o

a
rd

 

•
 

E
R

T
C

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

h
o

 r
e

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 E
R

T
C

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

ir
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 

•
 

A
tt

ra
ct

io
n

s 
m

a
y 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

s 
p

e
o

p
le

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
e

tt
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 t
ra

d
it

io
n

a
l 
so

u
rc

e
s 

a
n

d
 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

ct
iv

it
y
 w

il
l b

e
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

•
 

V
is

it
o

rs
 -

 l
e

ss
 e

n
q

u
ir

ie
s 

m
a

y
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 v
ia

 f
a

ce
 t

o
 f

a
ce

, 
p

h
o

n
e

 o
r 

e
m

a
il
. 

S
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l v
is

it
o

rs
 m

a
y
 h

a
ve

 a
 

le
ss

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll
. 
 

•
 

Lo
ca

l r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 j
o

b
s 

re
ly

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 o

r 
in

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 t
o

u
ri

sm
 i
n

d
u

st
ry

 a
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 w

h
o

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

s 
v
it

a
l 
to

 t
h

e
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
e

co
n

o
m

y
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

  

    
 

 

Page 42



 

 
4

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
3

. 
H

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  
 T

o
u

ri
sm

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 E
n

g
li
sh

 R
iv

ie
ra

: 

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

–
 2

0
1

2
 f

o
r 

T
o

rb
a

y 
(V

is
it

 E
n

g
la

n
d

) 
–

 la
te

st
 a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 

 

1
. 

2
0

1
2

 s
a

w
 a

 1
%

 u
p

li
ft

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
v
is

it
o

rs
 (

tr
ip

s)
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 0
%

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 
D

e
vo

n
  

 

2
. 

2
0

1
2

 s
a

w
 a

 1
6

%
 u

p
li
ft

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
st

a
y
in

g
 v

is
it

o
r 

sp
e

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

li
sh

 R
iv

ie
ra

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 1

5
%

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 
D

e
v
o

n
  

 

3
. 

2
0

1
2

 s
a

w
 a

 1
8

%
 u

p
li
ft

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
o

v
e

rs
e

a
s 

v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
lis

h
 R

iv
ie

ra
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 1
0

%
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 o
f 

D
e

vo
n

  

 

4
. 

2
0

1
2

 s
a

w
 a

 2
8

%
 u

p
li
ft

 i
n

 t
o

ta
l 
d

a
y
 v

is
it

s 
to

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

li
sh

 R
iv

ie
ra

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 9

%
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 o
f 

D
e

vo
n

  

 

>
  
   

   
 T

o
ta

l d
ir

e
ct

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

to
u

ri
sm

 t
o

 T
o

rb
a

y
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 w
a

s:
 £

4
2

7
,8

7
0

,0
0

0
 

 >
  
   

   
 T

o
ta

l i
n

d
ir

e
ct

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

to
u

ri
sm

 t
o

 T
o

rb
a

y
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 w
a

s:
 £

5
6

3
,2

1
7

,0
0

0
 

 >
  
   

   
 T

o
ta

l n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

jo
b

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

o
u

ri
sm

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 w
a

s:
 1

2
,0

2
0
 

 >
  
   

   
 2

1
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
2

 w
e

re
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
o

u
ri

sm
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t  

Page 43



 

 
5

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
  T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

ce
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
a

t 
sh

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

to
u

ri
sm

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 b

a
y
 i
s 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
: 

 

In
d

ic
a

to
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
  

N
o

te
s 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

w
h

o
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

ir
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 t
o

 b
e

 t
h

e
 

sa
m

e
/b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 

p
re

v
io

u
s 

ye
a

r 

  5
1

%
 

 5
8

%
 

 T
a

rg
e

t 
7

5
%

 -
 B

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
u

t 

u
p

 o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

y
e

a
r 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

w
h

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 

tu
rn

o
ve

r 
is

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 o

f 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

la
st

 

y
e

a
r 

 4
7

%
 

  

 5
5

%
 

 T
a

rg
e

t 
7

5
%

 -
 B

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
u

t 

u
p

 o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

y
e

a
r 

A
tt

ra
ct

io
n

s 
w

h
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 

th
e

ir
 v

is
it

o
r 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

w
e

re
 t

h
e

 

sa
m

e
 o

r 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

y
e

a
r 

 7
1

%
 

 5
0

%
 

 T
a

rg
e

t 
7

5
%

 -
 B

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 

M
a

n
y
 a

tt
ra

ct
io

n
 a

re
 w

e
a

th
e

r 

d
e

p
e

n
d

a
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 g

o
o

d
 

su
m

m
e

r 
a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

ll
 i
n

d
o

o
r 

a
tt

ra
ct

io
n

s 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
ce

 o
n

 f
u

tu
re

 

b
o

o
k
in

g
 le

ve
ls

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 

q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
8

%
 

6
3

%
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
6

5
%

 -
 s

li
g

h
tl

y
 b

e
lo

w
 

ta
rg

e
t 

  

Page 44



 

 
6

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
4

. 
H

o
w

 w
il

l 
/ 

h
a

v
e

 y
o

u
*

 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l?
 

  

 T
h

e
 D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
o

f 
P

la
ce

 a
n

d
 R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

h
a

s 
a

d
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
 E

R
T

C
’s

 C
E

O
, 

C
h

a
ir

m
a

n
 a

n
d

 B
o

a
rd

 D
ir

e
ct

o
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s 

b
u

t 

e
xp

la
in

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 i
s 

b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
o

 b
ri

d
g

e
 t

h
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 g
a

p
 t

ill
 t

h
e

 T
B

ID
 v

o
te

 is
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 la
te

r 
in

 2
0

1
5

/ 
e

a
rl

y
 2

0
1

6
. 
 

 O
n

ce
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
fi

rm
e

d
 t

h
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

il
l 
ta

k
e

 p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

to
u

ri
sm

 s
e

ct
o

r.
 

 It
 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 (
£

3
0

0
k
) 

–
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

 T
h

e
re

 w
il
l 
b

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 l
o

ca
l 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 o
n

lin
e

 a
n

d
 p

a
p

e
r 

b
a

se
d

 s
u

rv
e

ys
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

 
5

. 
O

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 k

e
y

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

  

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
A

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
s,

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

to
 e

ve
n

ts
 /

 f
o

cu
s 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u

p
s 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

. 
U

se
 b

u
ll
e

t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s.

 
   

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
H

a
s 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

  
H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
lt

e
r 

yo
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 
   

 

 
 

Page 45



 

 
7

P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 

 
Lo

ss
 o

f 
co

u
n

te
r/

p
h

o
n

e
 V

is
it

o
r 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

(i
f 

th
is

 w
e

re
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
ve

d
) 

w
o

u
ld

 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 d
o

 n
o

t 
h

a
ve

 w
e

b
 

a
cc

e
ss

 

 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

ck
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
ra

n
sg

e
n

d
e

re
d

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 
N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
1

8
%

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 

T
o

u
ri

sm
 r

e
la

te
d

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s.

 I
f 

v
is

it
o

rs
 r

e
d

u
ce

 

th
is

 m
a

y
 im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 i
n

co
m

e
 f

o
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s 

 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

Page 46



 

 
8

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

 T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a

ct
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e

 E
R

T
C

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
. 

 

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 

 

T
h

e
 t

o
u

ri
sm

 e
co

n
o

m
y
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 b

y 
re

d
u

ce
d

/l
o

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

if
 n

o
 o

th
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 c
a

n
 b

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 o
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
m

a
y
 c

e
a

se
 a

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r.
 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 t
h

e
 o

n
ly

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e

ct
o

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 E
R

T
C

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 n
o

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
ct

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 w
il
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

u
p

o
n

 t
h

e
m

. 

 
  

 S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?
 

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

a
ch

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 7

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 e
a

ch
 i
m

p
a

ct
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 /
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 /

 e
lim

in
a

te
d

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

. 
W

h
a

t 
w

a
ys

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a

ct
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
?

  
 It

 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 w
il
l 
b

e
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 f

o
r 

1
5

/1
6

 (
£

3
0

0
k
) 

–
 t

h
is

 i
s 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  

 

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

O
 B

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
1

0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

 

T
h

e
 f

u
ll
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 o

n
ce

 it
 is

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

y 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
  

Page 47



 

 
9

 S
e

ct
io

n
 5

: 
R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 –
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
 W

H
E

N
 A

LL
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 A

N
D

 E
IA

 F
IN

A
LI

S
E

D
  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

T
ic

k
 �

 
R

e
a

so
n

s/
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
 

1
1

. 
           

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 
C

le
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

ju
st

if
y 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
u

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(a
n

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

o
n

e
 m

a
y 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l)

. 
P

le
a

se
 s

e
le

ct
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 j

u
st

if
y 

th
e

 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n
 

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 
 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 48



1 

 

 
 
 
 
English Riviera Tourism Company’s Response to 2015/16 Tourism Budget Proposal 
 
Response to Overview & Scrutiny Panel – September 2015  
 
The private sector ERTC board members strongly oppose the mayor’s proposal to remove 
the tourism budget from Torbay Council’s annual revenue budget and to take this payment 
to zero from April 1st 2015.       
 
From the research we have undertaken, we cannot find any evidence, of any other major 
UK holiday seaside resort, where the Local Authority (LA) is proposing a zero budget for 
tourism from April 2015. Torbay Councils zero budget plans have raised concerns 
nationally from VisitEngland, The National Tourism Alliance and The British Resorts and 
Destinations Association.     
 
We believe that a zero annual revenue budget, if approved, for an industry worth £450 
million per annum to the local economy, sends out all the wrong messages and could 
seriously harm the resorts reputation and slow down recent progress, with increased visitor 
volume and value recorded for three consecutive years in: 2011, 2012, 2013.              
 

The fact is 41% of the local population rely directly or indirectly on tourism and retail for 

employment,* with tourism’s importance, also highlighted again in the recent Labour Force 

Survey which shows that tourism has been a major force in the UK’s economic recovery. As 

such now is not the time to take Torbay’s tourism budget to zero with 12,000+ jobs at stake 

and 41% of the local population to consider.     

Considering the size and significance of tourism to Torbay we consider that Torbay Council 

has a ‘duty of care’ to the 700+ tourism and hospitality businesses that operate across the 

resort. Many of these businesses are privately run micro and SME businesses that need 

and rely on professional Destination Marketing support for which they are not in a position 

to arrange or afford independently.  

In Great Yarmouth the LA have protected £300k per annum for tourism which is paid to the 
TBID Company to help deliver the Business Plan. We ask Torbay Council to commit to do 
the same.   
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3b

Page 49



2 

 

 
The ERTC are fully committed to the development of the TBID, working in partnership with 
Torbay Council and the Town Centre Company to secure vital sustainable funds for the 
continued delivery of professional Destination Marketing activities and will work to support 
the delivery of the provisional ballot timetable which is September 2015.     
 
To conclude the fact is, LA’s in well-established destinations such as Torbay have a vital 
role to play in assisting with the funding of destination management and marketing and 
should see this as a duty on behalf of the hundreds of businesses they represent.  
 
For Torbay Council to now be proposing in effect, that they are walking away from this joint 
responsibility is making little sense to us as private sector directors or the industry at large. 
 
We are asking that Torbay Council members challenge the mayor’s draft proposal and look 
to reinstate a revised annual tourism revenue budget of £300k from April 2015.   
 
 
Thank you for your continued support     
Carolyn Custerson on behalf of the ERTC private sector board members 
14th August 2015  
  
 
 

*Latest Sheffield Hallam University Report  

Page 50



Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 1

Page 51



Dear resources and scrutiny panel: 

I am very sorry but we are unable to attend the budget public meetings at Brixham 
as we are in the tourism industry and it is high season.  

Please accept and give our apologies. 

I would ask that the panel consider the following questions regarding funding to the 
English Riviera Tourism Company Ltd budget removal:  Your Number 11 in the 
proposals report 

1. The repost mentions transition funding - what is the 'transition' from what to what? 
or is this it a deceitful euphemism for closure? 

2. How will the Council ensure that tourist information and promotion carries on and 
is successful? 

3. Does the panel believe that the budget proposal could damage any bid for 
promotional funding as it could be seen that a bid is just a cynical attempt to replace 
Council funding and not new money that can create a specific outcome and impact? 
What happens when the bid money, if it appears, ends? 

4. There is a reliance in the proposal that there will be an alternative source of 
funding, but this is by no means certain. What will be the Council's position if the Bid 
fails and the tourism service closes. Will the Council find the money from elsewhere 
to rescue the service and in what form will the service manifest itself? 

5. Your proposal identifies a risk that the promotion of tourism could be lost as a 
result of this decision. Has the panel been given a detailed impact assessment 
quantifying this identified risk - both in costs to the Council in lost revenues and 
increased demands on services and to the people and economy of Torbay as a 
whole.  

6. The Elected  Mayor talks about not funding 'private sector businesses... is it not 
true that ERTC belongs 100% to the Council and thus its company status is more 
device for operation and funding rather than it being a true private company with 
profits going to shareholders. The panel should investigate if  the Elected Mayor 
need to be more open and honest in his reasoning. The panel needs to establish is 
the mayor is seeking to deceive the public on this point. 

7. Has there been consideration of gaining savings, efficiencies and additional 
revenues to the Council by passing duplicated functions at the English Riviera 
Centre to the ERTC... The ERTC certainly knows how to promote, market and book 
accommodation using 2014 technologies. 

8. There must have been good reasons for the Council to create the ERTC - should 
the panel revisit these? It is very easy to forget the position that went before and the 
achievements since. Do these achievements represent value for money for the 
grant? 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 2

Page 52



I hope the Panel gives this issue the consideration it deserves. The budget proposal 
to end funding may have major consequences for the tourism industry and the wider 
economy - that may not be able to be reversed once a spiral of decline sets in. 

I thank you for you time 

kind regards. 

Paul Moore 

The Westgate, Torquay 

01803 295 350 

www.westgatehotel.co.uk 

stay@westgatehotel.co.uk 

 

Page 53



Members of Priorities and Resources, 
  
As chairman of the Bridge Group of Hotels, a buying/social group of 58 small 
hotels and guest houses in the Bay, I am astonished at yet another council 
proposal to perpetuate Gordon Oliver's vendetta against the ERTC by once 
again cutting their funding. 
 
I am concerned as it is obvious to most, the essential work the ERTC has 
done in promoting the Bay over the last four years, on a fraction of the money, 
staff and resources that were enjoyed when it was run by the Council. 
The proposal to reduce the funding to zero over the next two years. will 
obviously inhibit the company`s ability to market the Bay effectively.Not only 
against foreign package holidays but against the other resorts and city 
destinations in this country, who despite being subject to the same statutory 
pressures as Torbay, continue to recognize the importance of supporting 
their  tourism marketing financially. 
 
   A decline in visitors to the Bay as a result of this short sighted proposal will 
not only affect the front line sectors of the industry, the accommodation, the 
food outlets and the attractions but also for the many thousands employed 
locally in the support chain, ie local suppliers Hallams Bakers, Devon Fresh, 
Fruit and Veg, Bays Brewery, Caterfood ,MJ Bakers etc, and their employees 
and suppliers who are all taxpayers and voters. 
 
The Council should look at either selling or subcontracting the Riviera Centre 
to Private operators as the number of events has declined substantially over 
the last few years. Money should be taken from the reserves until it is sold to 
minimize the effect of cuts to not only the ERTC but Libraries, Street 
Wardens, Street Lighting etc 
  
Otherwise raise council tax. 

 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 3

Page 54



To whom it may concern, 

 

We would like to stress our consternation at the proposal to cut the English Riviera Tourism 

Budget to £0. Whilst continuing to fund the Riviera International Center. The ERTC has 

promoted The Bay both nationally and internationally and has without doubt bought more 

people to the area, some directly and some indirectly. Tourism accommodation businesses 

are paying 1000’s of pounds in commissions to booking sites such as Booking.com, which 

amounts to about 20% of turnover, where as 10 years ago we would have been spending 

10% on advertising and very little on commissions. It is a shame that back when the Council 

Tourist board were running Tourism and signed up Eviivo as the destination manager the 

staff did not see the massive potential of an in house marketing and destination 

management system, which could have bought £1000’s of pounds into the council’s coffers. 

The ERTC has done a great job under very difficult circumstances whilst also dealing with the 

recession. 

 

It is about time Mr Oliver gave up his vendetta to get rid of the ERTC, so that his partner 

Linda Hill, who has decimated the Torbay Hospitality Association (THA) and now runs the 

Torbay Tourism Association (TTA) can run tourism in Torbay. The TTA have only 63 

members. 14 hotels, 15 B&B’s, 5 self catering in Torquay, 2 Hotels, 5 B&B’s, 2 Self catering in 

Babbacombe, 2 Hotels, 7 B&B’s, 5 Self Catering, 1 Holiday Park in Paignton, 4 B&B’s, 4 Self 

catering in Brixham, 2 B&B’s, 1 Self catering in Dartmouth, 2 Hotels, 1 B&B and 2 Self 

catering in Teignmouth, 63 members, who have no say in how the organisation is run due to 

it’s totalitarian management. [This paragraph has been removed as it contains inappropriate 

comments and/or language] 

 

There is a massive conflict of interest that cannot be ignored, Mr Oliver has been trying to 

get his hands on a large tourism budget since 2008 when he was chairman of the THA. His 

underhand and secretive ways of management are not helpful to Torbay and will leave a 

stigma and legacy that is hard get rid off after his term of Mayor has ended. 

 

The RICC on the other hand has only 16 events programmed from 01 August 2014 to 31 July 

2015, of the 5 events programmed for August 2014, 2 have been cancelled, one of which 

has been removed from the events list. 

 

What's On: Event Listings 

Summer 2014 Learn to Swim Crash Courses 

Date(s): Mon 28th July 2014 - Fri 22nd August 2014 

Revolution Skate Roller Disco 

Date(s): Fri 1st August 2014 

UNFORTUNATELY THIS EVENT HAS NOW BEEN CANCELLED. CONTACT DETAILS BELOW FOR ANY 

REFUNDS THAT ARE NEEDED 

U18 UV Beach Party 

Date(s): Wed 20th August 2014 

UNFORTUNATELY THIS EVENT HAS NOW BEEN CANCELLED DUE TO UNFORSEEN CIRCUMSTANCES.  

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 4

Page 55



The Mascherata Ball 

Date(s): Sat 30th August 2014 

Torbay Gluten Free Food Fair 

Date(s): Sat 6th September 2014 

Butcombe Skittles Championships 

Date(s): Fri 19th September 2014 - Sun 21st September 2014 

Christian Services Association UK In His Presence 

Date(s): Thu 25th September 2014 - Sat 27th September 2014 

WOW Charity Ball 2014 

Date(s): Sat 27th September 2014 

Devon Wedding Show - Autumn 2014 

Date(s): Sun 28th September 2014 

'Raising the Roof' Comedy Night 

Date(s): Fri 10th October 2014 

Provincial Grand Chapter of Devonshire 

Date(s): Sat 8th November 2014 

Christmas Party Nights 

Date(s): Fri 5th December 2014 - Sat 20th December 2014 

Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra 

Date(s): Fri 9th January 2015 

National Federation of Young Farmers Clubs Annual Convention 2015 

Date(s): Thu 23rd April 2015 - Mon 27th April 2015 

Obstetric Anaethesia Annual Meeting 2015 

Date(s): Wed 20th May 2015 - Fri 22nd May 2015 

English Bridge Union 

Date(s): Fri 3rd July 2015 - Sun 5th July 2014 

The RICC as a venue has had its day, the sports facilities and swimming pool should be kept 

open and made to pay for its self with reasonable tariffs charged for membership etc. The 

conference facilities however should be closed down as the cost of keeping staff on all year 

for 14 events is ridiculous. This is where a massive saving can be gained. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

Stuart & Katrina Lewton 

The Commodore 

Paignton 

TQ4 6EB 
 

Page 56



 

Page 57



Dear Sirs 
 
Cutting the ERTC budget in the manner proposed by Mayor Gordon Oliver is, in my 
view, economic suicide for Torbay and political suicide for elected councillors.  
 
Tourism is by far the largest business sector/employer and (in turn), wealth 
generator in the Bay. To remain competitive as the UK holiday destination of choice,  
 
WE need the ERTC and THEY need our financial support. It's that simple. 
 
Kind regards, 
Pauline & Anthony Payne-Neale 
Proprietors 
  
COURT PRIOR 
St Lukes Road South, Torquay, Devon TQ2 5NZ 
 

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 5

Page 58



From: Somerville Hotel  

Sent: 18 August 2014 14:05 

To: Scrutiny 

Subject: Funding of The ERTC 

 
To The Scrutiny Committee, 
  
The continual attacks on the ERTC by Mayor Gordon Oliver  have become as much a part of the 
Torbay year as The Agatha Christie Festival. 
  
Year after year the ERTC has had to accept budget cuts. It has had to fend off attempts to interfere in 
its running. Despite this it has worked effectively to promote The English Riviera. It has won many 
national awards but more importantly can point to independent data that proves its work has been 
effective. In a normal World the local authority would be highlighting the work of the ERTC as an 
example of the very best private / public partnership working. Local authorities across the UK should 
be queuing up to see how effective management and collaborative working can produce miracles in 
extremely difficult financial circumstances. 
  
This is not a normal World. 
  
Gordon Oliver's association with Linda Hill and the Torbay Tourism Association means that there is a 
serious conflict of interest. In a recent BBC Devon interview he sought to give the impression that he 
had had nothing to do with this organization after he became Mayor. This was completely 
disingenuous apart from being the partner of the person who runs it,  he was the landlord of the 
organization up until January of this year. 
  
In the most recent edition of The Herald Express, Theresa Butto who is the Chairman of the Torbay 
Tourism Association sought to spread misinformation and fear about the possible Tourism and Retail 
Bid. She mentioned that businesses might have to pay £2000 or £3000. It was quite clear from the 
article that this organization had set its face against the Bid even before the process had produced 
any firm proposals. 
  
The Mayor is spending £100,000 of public money on the bid process when his partner's own 

organization is clearly going to do everything it can to ensure the Bid fails. It is inconceivable that the 
Mayor and his partner should have divergent views as they have shared the same ambitions to 
control tourism for quite a number of years.  
  
If the Bid fails there will be no ERTC left to carry on with marketing the Bay. Mrs Butto in her interview 
mentioned that businesses would have to do things for themselves in future. This seems to be the 
strongest hint yet that they see their organization as the one that will take the lead in tourism post 
ERTC and Bid. 
  
The Torbay Tourism Association is the only organization in the Bay that will benefit from the demise of 
the ERTC and it is the only organization that will benefit from the failure of the Bid Process. It is 
immoral that the mayor should be squandering this money when he has a secret agenda and when 
we are seriously discussing the end of street lighting across the Bay 
  
Mr Oliver needs to give a clear and unequivocal statement in support of the principle of the Bid. He 
needs to make clear that he disagrees with attempts by his partner's Association to spread 
misinformation about it. 
  
Mr Oliver needs to say who he sold the TTA's office to and how much it was sold for. 
  
The ERTC should be allowed to continue in existence to work on behalf of the people of Torbay. The 
Bid process should be allowed to continue so that an alternative model of funding might become 
available which would build upon the successes of the ERTC. 
  

Agenda Item 3b
Appendix 6

Page 59



Yours faithfully, 
  
  
 
Adam Millward 
The Somerville 
515 Babbacombe Road 
Torquay 
Devon 
TQ1 1HJ 
5 Star Gold Award Guest Accommodation 
Tel 01803 294755 
Fax 01803 215810 
Web www.somervillehotel.co.uk 
EM stay@somervillehotel.co.uk 
  
Winner of Devon Bed and Breakfast, Guest Accommodation of the year award 2012/13 
Winner SouthWest B&B of the year 2013 - Silver Award - South West Tourism Excellence Awards   
Voted Number Two B&B for Devon by Tripadvisor 2014 
Voted Number 1 Hotel in Devon by Trivago 2013 
Winner - Top Top 10 B&B in the UK by Tripadvisor Traveler Choice Awards 2012 
Winner of the South West Tourism Excellence Award - B&B, Guest Accommodation of the Year 2011 
Winner of Devon Bed and Breakfast, Guest Accommodation of the year award 2010  
Tripadvisor Reviews www.tripadvisor.co.uk/Hotel_Review-g186259-d586810-Reviews-
The_Somerville-Torquay_English_Riviera_Devon_England 
  
  
 

Page 60



M
u

se
u

m
s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 T

o
rr

e
 A

b
b

e
y

 a
n

d
 A

rc
h

iv
e

s)
: 

 

 W
h

a
t 

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
?

 
W

h
y

 i
s 

it
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
?
 

W
h

a
t 

d
ri

v
e

s 
d

e
m

a
n

d
s?

 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 3
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
w

it
h

in
 T

o
rb

a
y
: 

 

•
 

T
o

rq
u

a
y
 M

u
se

u
m

 

•
 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 M

u
se

u
m

  

•
 

T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
  

T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 i

s 
d

ir
e

ct
ly

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 T

o
rb

a
y
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

g
ra

n
ts

 t
o

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 M

u
se

u
m

 &
 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 M

u
se

u
m

. 
 

A
 j

o
in

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 i
n

 p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 D
e

vo
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
fo

r 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 a

rc
h

iv
e

s 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 D

e
vo

n
 

re
co

rd
s 

o
ff

ic
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
e

d
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
’s

 c
u

lt
u

ra
l 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 f
o

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
. 

 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 T

o
rb

a
y
: 

 

 •
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
o

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 M

u
se

u
m

 (
2

0
1

1
/1

2
) 

–
 

1
3

,4
5

3
  

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
u

p
il
s 

vi
si

ti
n

g
 i
n

 g
ro

u
p

s 
–

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 

M
u

se
u

m
 (

2
0

1
1

/1
2

) 
–

 6
1

6
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
o

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 M

u
se

u
m

 (
2

0
1

0
/1

1
) 

- 
 

2
5

,8
5

7
 

 

 

D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

 
9

6
,8

0
0

 
 

 
5

6
,8

0
0

 
 

 
 

2
4

. 
M

u
se

u
m

s 
G

ra
n

ts
 

S
a

vi
n

g
s 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

F
u

tu
re

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 

 

(P
ro

p
o

sa
l 
a

g
re

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

 F
e

b
 2

0
1

4
) 

 
 

2
0

,0
0

0
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 4a

Page 61



D
ra

ft
 P

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 –

 O
u

tl
in

e
 d

e
ta

il
s 

A
ct

u
a

l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
4

/2
0

1
5

 

S
a

v
in

g
s 

fo
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
5

/2
0

1
6

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t-

a
ti

o
n

 C
o

st
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

 

D
a

te
 

P
o

ss
ib

le
 R

is
k

s 
/ 

im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 

 

 
In

co
m

e
 

£
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 

£
 

 
 

 
 

2
5

. 
M

u
se

u
m

s 
G

ra
n

ts
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 M
u

se
u

m
 

G
ra

n
ts

 

   

 

 
 

2
0

,0
0

0
 

 
N

o
n

e
  

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
 

M
a

jo
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

 

 T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 m

e
a

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 m
u

se
u

m
 w

o
u

ld
 l
o

se
 

a
p

p
ro

x 
4

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
. 

 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri

sk
 t

h
a

t 
if

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 

a
ch

ie
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 F

u
tu

re
 M

u
se

u
m

 P
ro

je
ct

 s
a

vi
n

g
s 

m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 

se
rv

ic
e

. 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 62



Additional Information Requested 
 

Proposal 24 Museums Grants (proposals already agreed) 

Proposal 25 Museums Grants   

 

Museums 

 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 

 Budget Outturn Budget Projected 

Outurn    

(at Q1) 

Projected 

Budget 

Torre Abbey 165,000 327,200 169,800 £80k O/S 119,800 

Museum Grants 98,700 96,800 96,800* B/E 56,800 

Museum Other 32,400 28,700 33,600 B/E 33,600 

Archives 113,800 113,800 113,800 B/E 98,800 

Totals 409,900 566,500 414,000  309,000 

 

*Note: Museum grants are split £76,500 Torquay Museum and £20,300 Brixham Museum.  

Update the Equality Impact Assessment – What discussions have taken place with the museums?  

What consultation is underway? 

 

Discussions with the museums in relation to the budget proposals have been part of the overall 

future museums dialogue which will continue. The Future Museums Project seeks to establish a 

future sustainable model for all the museums in Torbay including Torre Abbey. Specific 

questionnaires for grant aided museum users have been developed in association with the Council’s 

research team and the results will form part of the overall consultation.  

 

What is the current 

position in relation to 

the Future Museum 

Project? 

Draft proposals for sharing resources have now been produced for further 

consideration by the Executive Lead and the Mayor. These proposals are 

still in an early development stage and have not yet been adopted by any 

of the museum partners. Ongoing discussions with funders are also 

continuing. 

 

 

What progress has 

been made towards 

Torquay and Brixham 

Museums becoming 

self sustaining? 

The work undertaken as part of the future museums project is progressing 

this action.  

 

 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 1

Page 63



 

 
1

S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
–

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

- 
D

R
A

F
T

  
 

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

a
m

e
: 

S
u

e
 C

h
e

ri
to

n
 

P
o

si
ti

o
n

: 
E

x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 H
e

a
d

 
B

u
si

n
e

ss
 U

n
it

: 
R

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 V

is
it

o
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

D
ir

e
ct

o
ra

te
: 

P
la

ce
 a

n
d

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
D

a
te

 S
ta

rt
e

d
 :
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 

D
a

te
 o

f 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

v
e

rs
io

n
: 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 f
a

ci
n

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

ch
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

it
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 m

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
xt

 c
o

u
p

le
 o

f 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
is

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(E
IA

) 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l 
to

 e
n

a
b

le
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 u

n
it

s 
to

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

 A
s 

a
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

li
v
e

r 
th

e
 

sa
v
in

g
s 

th
a

t 
w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 w
h

ile
 m

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
g

a
in

st
 a

n
y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

g
ro

u
p

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 w

il
l e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
v
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 

st
a

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 T
h

is
 E

IA
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

w
il
l a

llo
w

 C
o

u
n

ci
llo

rs
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

-m
a

ki
n

g
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

  
 

   E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

 /
 H

e
a

d
 S

ig
n

 o
ff

 (
w

h
e

n
 f

in
a

l 
v

e
rs

io
n

):
  

 

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 L
e

a
d

(s
) 

  

E
x
e

cu
ti

v
e

 

H
e

a
d

: 
 

D
a

te
: 

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 
   

 

Agenda Item 4a
Appendix 2

Page 64



 

 
2

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 f
ro

m
 O

v
e

ra
ll

 S
a

v
in

g
s 

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

: 
 

  

P
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 O

u
tl

in
e

  

 
S

a
v

in
g

s 
fo

r 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

C
o

st
 

In
cl

u
d

e
 b

ri
e

f 
o

u
tl

in
e
 

+
 y

e
a

r 
in

cu
rr

e
d
 

D
e

li
v

e
ry

  
W

h
e

n
 w

il
l 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

re
a

li
se

 

in
co

m
e

 /
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 

R
is

k
s 

/ 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

•
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l r
is

k
s 

•
 

Im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

•
 

K
n

o
ck

 o
n

 i
m

p
a

ct
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

•
 

If
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

se
 s

ta
te

 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 A

ct
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it

h
 a

n
y

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

is
su

e
d

. 
  

T
y

p
e

 o
f 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 

In
co

m
e
 

£
 0

0
0

’s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 
£

 0
0

0
’s

 

Internal 

Minor 

Major 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

G
ra

n
ts

 
F
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 M
u

se
u

m
 G

ra
n

ts
 

 

 
2

0
 

N
o

n
e
 

 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 m

e
a

n
 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 m
u

se
u

m
 w

o
u

ld
 

lo
se

 a
p

p
ro

x 
4

2
%

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 b

u
d

g
e

ts
 (

a
 

p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 £
2

0
k
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 w
a

s 
a

g
re

e
d

 

a
t 

C
o

u
n

ci
l i

n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
).

  
 T

h
e

re
 i
s 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ri

sk
 t

h
a

t 
if

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

ch
ie

v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 F

u
tu

re
 M

u
se

u
m

 

P
ro

je
ct

 s
a

v
in

g
s 

m
a

y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
is

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 

m
e

a
n

 t
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
co

u
ld

 n
o

t 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 

o
p

e
ra

te
 

 

 
 

X
 

Page 65



 

 
3

   S
e

ct
io

n
 1

: 
P

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l/

st
ra

te
g

y
/d

e
ci

si
o

n
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

1
. 

C
le

a
rl

y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
is

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
d

e
d

 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

. 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
se

e
k
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
ce

 t
h

e
 g

ra
n

t 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 p

a
id

 t
o

 m
u

se
u

m
s 

w
it

h
in

 T
o

rb
a

y 
b

y
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l £
2

0
k
. 

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 

£
2

0
k
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

 g
ra

n
t 

w
a

s 
p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

e
e

ti
n

g
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
4

 –
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
, 

th
is

 w
il
l m

e
a

n
 a

 

to
ta

l £
4

0
k
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 g
ra

n
t 

–
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 a
 4

3
%

 g
ra

n
t 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

. 
 

 T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
v
a

lu
e

 o
f 

th
e

 g
ra

n
ts

 a
re

 :
 

 T
o

rq
u

a
y 

M
u

se
u

m
   

: 
£

7
6

,5
0

0
 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 M

u
se

u
m

   
: 

£
2

0
,3

0
0

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 t

h
e

re
 i
s 

a
 F

u
tu

re
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
rt

s 
C

o
u

n
ci

l w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

in
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 a
n

d
 i
s 

sp
e

ci
fi

ca
lly

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

m
u

se
u

m
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 c

a
n

 j
o

in
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 b

e
 m

o
re

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
le

. 
It

 i
s 

su
g

g
e

st
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 m

a
y
 a

llo
w

 

th
e

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
, 

re
ta

il
, 

ca
te

ri
n

g
, 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

co
ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
ra

to
ri

a
l 
su

p
p

o
rt

. 
E

a
ch

 u
n

it
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

th
e

se
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

 a
n

d
 p

ro
b

a
b

ly
 h

a
s 

m
o

re
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ll
y
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

y 
w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
th

is
 m

a
y
 b

e
 o

f 

g
re

a
t 

b
e

n
e

fi
t.

  
 If

 t
h

e
 F

u
tu

re
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
fa

il
s 

to
 d

e
li
ve

r 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
h

is
 m

a
y
 r

e
su

lt
 i
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
lo

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
u

se
u

m
s,

 

o
r 

a
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 c

lo
su

re
. 

  
2

. 
W

h
o

 i
s 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

/ 

w
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

?
 

 T
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 g
ra

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 m
a

y 
re

su
lt

 i
n

 l
o

ss
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
 –

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 i
n

 o
p

e
n

in
g

, 

o
r 

in
 t

h
e

 w
o

rs
t 

ca
se

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

 t
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
b

e
in

g
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

 a
t 

a
ll
. 

A
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
w

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

st
 y

e
a

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

g
o

o
d

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

in
 t

h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r.

 
 B

o
th

 m
u

se
u

m
s 

a
re

 w
e

ll
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 lo

ca
lly

 w
it

h
 m

a
n

y
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

, 
vo

lu
n

ta
ry

 t
ru

st
e

e
s 

a
n

d
 f

ri
e

n
d

s 
g

ro
u

p
s.

  

Page 66



 

 
4

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

 T
h

e
 c

o
ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

h
e

ld
 b

y
 t

h
e

se
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
a

re
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

lo
ca

lly
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
io

n
a

ll
y
 a

n
d

 lo
ca

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
o

u
ld

 w
a

n
t 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e

se
 

a
re

 m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

. 
 

 
 

Page 67



 

 
5

S
e

ct
io

n
 2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

a
 m

o
ra

l o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 A
ct

 2
0

1
0

 t
o

 e
lim

in
a

te
 d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 e
q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 s
h

a
re

 a
 p

ro
te

ct
e

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 d

o
 n

o
t.

   

 T
h

e
 E

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
se

ct
io

n
 e

n
su

re
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l,

 w
e

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
th

e
 P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

ct
o

r 
E

q
u

a
li
ty

 D
u

ty
 a

t 
a

n
 e

a
rl

y
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 f
u

ll
y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s/

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 t
h

e
 T

o
rb

a
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
. 

 E
v

id
e

n
ce

, 
C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

  

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
3

. 
H

a
v

e
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
?

  
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
u

sa
g

e
 f

ig
u

re
s 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 m

u
se

u
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

te
st

 f
u

ll
 y

e
a

r 
is

 a
s 

fo
ll
o

w
s:

  
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 M
u

se
u

m
 (

2
0

1
3

/1
4

) 
–

 1
2

,5
8

1
 (

o
n

 t
a

rg
e

t)
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
u

p
il
s 

v
is

it
in

g
 i
n

 g
ro

u
p

s 
–

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 M

u
se

u
m

 (
2

0
1

3
/1

4
) 

–
 5

6
2
 

•
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 M

u
se

u
m

 (
2

0
1

3
/1

4
) 

–
 1

8
,7

4
3

 d
o

w
n

 f
ro

m
  2

5
,8

5
7
 

 
4

. 
H

o
w

 w
il

l 
/ 

h
a

v
e

 y
o

u
*

 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l?
 

   

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

rt
s 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

u
se

u
m

s 
Li

a
is

o
n

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
h

a
s 

ta
k
e

n
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 it

 w
a

s 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

y
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 

fo
ll
o

w
 t

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 o
th

e
rw

is
e

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 t

h
e

m
 f

o
r 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

ro
m

is
e

d
. 

 T
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
ru

st
e

e
s 

o
f 

e
a

ch
 m

u
se

u
m

 w
il
l n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 m
a

xi
m

u
m

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 

th
e

m
 t

o
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
se

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
s.

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 
b

e
 d

o
n

e
 f

a
ce

 t
o

 f
a

ce
 a

n
d

 i
n

 w
ri

ti
n

g
. 

   
5

. 
O

u
tl

in
e

 t
h

e
 k

e
y

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

  

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
In

cl
u

d
e

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 y

o
u

 h
a

ve
 c

o
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 

a
n

y 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
A

ls
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 r
a

te
s,

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s 

to
 e

ve
n

ts
 /

 f
o

cu
s 

g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
in

te
re

st
 g

ro
u

p
s 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

. 
U

se
 b

u
ll
e

t 
p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 t
h

e
 k

e
y 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s.

 
 

Page 68



 

 
6

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
  

6
. 

W
h

a
t 

a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 b
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

?
 

 

T
O

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

: 
H

a
s 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
n

y 
ch

a
n

g
e

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l?

  
H

a
ve

 y
o

u
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
lt

e
r 

yo
u

r 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 lo
o

k
 a

t 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
ve

 o
p

ti
o

n
s?

 
   

 

 
 

Page 69



 

 
7

P
o

si
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

ct
s 

T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

7
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
p

o
si

ti
v

e
 

a
n

d
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
s 

o
n

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
g

ro
u

p
s 

 

 
P

o
si

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 I
m

p
a

ct
 

N
e

u
tr

a
l 

Im
p

a
ct

 

O
ld

e
r 

o
r 

yo
u

n
g

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

 
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
a

y 
b

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 a

s 
th

e
 

m
u

se
u

m
s 

a
re

 k
e

y
 t

o
 f

ie
ld

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

p
a

ck
a

g
e

s.
  

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 M

u
se

u
m

 a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s 

re
g

u
la

r 
w

o
rk

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
o

ll
e

g
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 –
 t

h
e

re
 i
s 

a
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l t
h

a
t 

th
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 m

a
y 

b
e

 lo
st

 

sh
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

 b
e

 n
o

 lo
n

g
e

r 
v
ia

b
le

. 
 

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 M

u
se

u
m

 c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
s 

th
e

 

M
in

i 
M

u
se

u
m

s 
P

ro
je

ct
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 i
n

vo
lv

e
s 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

M
u

se
u

m
 a

n
d

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

h
il
d

m
in

d
e

rs
 

G
ro

u
p

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 3
-y

e
a

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 f
o

r 

th
is

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
th

a
t 

th
is

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 m

a
y 

b
e

 lo
st

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 

m
u

se
u

m
s 

b
e

 n
o

 lo
n

g
e

r 
v
ia

b
le

. 
 

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 M

u
se

u
m

 h
a

s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 m
e

m
o

ry
/n

o
st

a
lg

ia
 o

u
tr

e
a

ch
 

se
ss

io
n

s 
a

t 
lo

ca
l c

a
re

 h
o

m
e

s,
 w

o
rk

in
g

 

w
it

h
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

h
a

d
 

p
o

si
ti

ve
 l
if

e
st

y
le

/h
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
li
ca

ti
o

n
s.

 T
h

e
re

 

is
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l t
h

a
t 

th
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
m

a
y
 b

e
 

lo
st

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 m
u

se
u

m
 b

e
 n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

v
ia

b
le

. 
 

  

Page 70



 

 
8

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

M
a

n
y
 m

u
se

u
m

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

tr
u

st
e

e
s 

w
it

h
 a

 w
e

a
lt

h
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
a

l 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

, 
a

re
 o

ld
e

r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
o

st
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
n

o
 

lo
n

g
e

r 
b

e
 v

ia
b

le
. 
 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 c

a
ri

n
g

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 T

o
rb

a
y
 C

a
re

rs
 D

is
co

u
n

t 
S
ch

e
m

e
 

(f
a

ci
li
ta

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 b

y
 T

o
rb

a
y
 a

n
d

 

S
o

u
th

e
rn

 D
e

v
o

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 C

a
re

 N
H

S
 

T
ru

st
),

 c
a

re
rs

 b
e

lo
n

g
in

g
 t

o
 T

o
rb

a
y 

C
a

re
rs

 

R
e

g
is

te
r 

a
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 f

re
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 M
u

se
u

m
 a

n
d

 T
o

rq
u

a
y
 M

u
se

u
m

 t
o

 

o
ff

e
r 

ca
re

rs
 a

 b
re

a
k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
ir

 c
a

ri
n

g
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l t

h
a

t 

th
is

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
m

a
y
 b

e
 l
o

st
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
 

m
u

se
u

m
 b

e
 n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

v
ia

b
le

. 
 

 

  

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a

b
il
it

y 
 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

W
o

m
e

n
 o

r 
m

e
n

 
 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 b
la

ck
 o

r 
fr

o
m

 a
 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 e

th
n

ic
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

(B
M

E
) 

 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

R
e

li
g

io
n

 o
r 

b
e

lie
f 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 l
a

ck
 

o
f 

b
e

li
e

f)
 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 le
sb

ia
n

, 
g

a
y
 o

r 

b
is

e
xu

a
l 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 t
ra

n
sg

e
n

d
e

re
d

 
 

 
 N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

Page 71



 

 
9

N
o

 
Q

u
e

st
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 a
 m

a
rr

ia
g

e
 

o
r 

ci
v
il
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

 
 

 N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

W
o

m
e

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
re

g
n

a
n

t 
/ 

o
n

 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 le

a
ve

 
 

 
 N

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 

S
o

ci
o

-e
co

n
o

m
ic

 im
p

a
ct

s 

(I
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 c

h
il
d

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y 

is
su

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
) 

 
M

a
n

y
 c

h
il
d

re
n

 a
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 f

re
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 e

le
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

se
 

m
u

se
u

m
s 

–
 T

h
e

re
 i
s 

a
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
th

a
t 

th
is

 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 m

a
y 

b
e

 lo
st

 s
h

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 

m
u

se
u

m
 b

e
 n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

v
ia

b
le

. 

 

P
u

b
li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 im

p
a

ct
s 

(H
o

w
 w

il
l 

y
o

u
r 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
o

rb
a

y
) 

 
 

N
o

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
im

p
a

ct
 

8
a

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
id

e
 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
sa

v
in

g
s 

o
r 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 

8
b

. 
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v

e
 I

m
p

a
ct

s 
–

 O
th

e
r 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 

w
h

ic
h

 m
ig

h
t 

w
o

rs
e

n
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
b

o
v
e

) 
 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 im
p

a
ct

s 
o

n
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
sa

v
in

g
s 

o
r 

p
u

b
li
c 

se
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
 

 

  

     

Page 72



 

 
1

0
 

  S
e

ct
io

n
 3

: 
M

it
ig

a
ti

n
g

 a
ct

io
n

 T
O

 B
E

 U
P

D
A

T
E

D
 O

N
C

E
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

T
IO

N
 U

N
D

E
R

T
A

K
E

N
 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
9

. 
S

u
m

m
a

ri
se

 a
n

y
 n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 

im
p

a
ct

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
?
 

 

O
u

tl
in

e
 e

a
ch

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 7

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 e
a

ch
 i
m

p
a

ct
 w

il
l 
b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 /
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
a

re
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 /

 e
lim

in
a

te
d

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
d

. 
W

h
a

t 
w

a
ys

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 i
m

p
a

ct
 b

e
 m

in
im

is
e

d
?

  
 

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 4

: 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 T

O
 B

E
 U

P
D

A
T

E
D

 O
N

C
E

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
T

IO
N

 U
N

D
E

R
T

A
K

E
N

 

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

D
e

ta
il

s 
1

0
. 

O
u

tl
in

e
 p

la
n

s 
to

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

th
e

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

f 
y

o
u

r 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

  

T
h

e
 f

u
ll
 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

w
il
l 
o

n
ly

 b
e

 k
n

o
w

n
 o

n
ce

 it
 is

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

vi
e

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
ct

u
a

l i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

y 
h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 d
a

te
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

s.
  

 

 S
e

ct
io

n
 5

: 
R

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 –
 T

O
 B

E
 C

O
M

P
LE

T
E

D
 W

H
E

N
 A

LL
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

 C
O

M
P

LE
T

E
 A

N
D

 E
IA

 F
IN

A
LI

S
E

D
  

 

N
o

 
A

ct
io

n
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
 

T
ic

k
 �

 
R

e
a

so
n

s/
ju

st
if

ic
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

ct
io

n
 

1
1

. 
        

S
ta

te
 a

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 c
o

u
rs

e
 

o
f 

a
ct

io
n

 
C

le
a

rl
y 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
 o

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

ju
st

if
y 

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

. 
T

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
u

r 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

re
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

(a
n

d
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 

o
n

e
 m

a
y 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l)

. 
P

le
a

se
 s

e
le

ct
 f

ro
m

 

th
e

 4
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 j

u
st

if
y 

th
e

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 1
: 

N
o

 m
a

jo
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 E

IA
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

n
y 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

ll
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
ke

n
 

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 2
: 

A
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 

to
 r

e
m

o
ve

 t
h

e
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
  

ta
k
e

n
 o

r 
a

ct
io

n
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 
 

 

 

Page 73



 

 
1

1
 

   

re
a

so
n

s 
fo

r 
yo

u
r 

d
e

ci
si

o
n
 

  

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 3
: 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

- 
D

e
sp

it
e

 h
a

vi
n

g
 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fo

r 
a

d
ve

rs
e

 im
p

a
ct

 /
 m

is
se

d
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

e
q

u
a

li
ty

. 
F
u

ll
 j

u
st

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll
y 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s,

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 h
a

ve
 ‘

d
u

e
 

re
g

a
rd

’.
  

 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 4
: 

S
to

p
 a

n
d

 r
e

th
in

k
 –

 E
IA

 h
a

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
o

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

is
cr

im
in

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 e

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s 

o
r 

a
d

ve
rs

e
 i
m

p
a

ct
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d
 

 

 

 

  

Page 74



Written Submission for Scrutiny Committee from Brixham Heritage Museum, 

2014 

In the report commissioned by the Arts Council, Michael White, a professional 

Accountant, was asked to look at the possibility of a merger between Brixham 

Heritage Museum, Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey. In his report he did say that 

we were operating as leanly as possible and were the most financially sustainable of 

the three museums.   

Both he and Jon Finch agreed however that we cannot be financially independent 

without the grant we presently receive. 

Both reports suggest that money could be saved by greater co-operation in 

marketing and in our workforce.  We have joined in the joint ticketing promotion with 

advertising through the Herald Express and in the Education programme.  However, 

a greater exchange of volunteers is not acceptable as the Brixham people do not 

wish to undertake the time and expense of travelling into Torquay – it would be 

unwise to have to use money to reimburse them in the light of cost cutting measures! 

It has also been mentioned that there could be one Curator shared between the 

three museums, but each museum needs a Curator with different specialisms, so 

this is not feasible.  It is worth noting that the total wages paid at Brixham Museum 

amount to less than one normal museum officer’s salary (see attached report 

summaries). 

It has been said that we have no business plan, but Michael White, a professional 

accountant of Devon Square Partners Ltd., prepared one in March, 2013, and we are 

now working on a new one, but it is very difficult when we don’t know what the future 

grant will be. 

Making plans for an increase in admission charges and losing our paid secretarial 

help (4 x 3.5hrs/week), we feel that we could just manage a 20% reduction, but a 

42% reduction would mean that we would have to dip into reserves. 

THE FOLLOWING YEAR WE WOULD HAVE TO CLOSE, BECAUSE IT WOULD 

BE NECESSARY TO RETAIN OUR RESERVES TO PAY FOR PUTTING 

BRIXHAM’S HERITAGE INTO STORAGE. 

See Reports 

1) Brixham Museum Business Plan – March 2013 
 M. White, Devon Square Partners Limited 
 
2) Torbay Museums Options Appraisal – October 2013 
Jon Finch, Black Radley Limited 
 
Attached are notes from these reports. 
  

Agenda Item 4b

Page 75



A Profile of Brixham Heritage Museum 

 

“Brixham Heritage Museum offers good value to Torbay Council” 
 
Financial stability and vulnerability: 
Brixham Heritage Museum is the smallest of Torbay’s museums but in some ways it 
is the most sustainable, being very much volunteer led and the standard of 
management information and accounting undertaken by the treasurer is very good. 
The accounts demonstrate a modest-sized and tightly-run organisation. However its 
grant from Torbay Council does make it very vulnerable.  
 
The council grant is modest when set against comparable museums [see for 
example, Godalming Museum – below].  Nervousness with regard to repeated 
threatened grant cuts has not been helpful in developing a more commercial culture 
and has tended to undermine confidence.  An added sense of recognition and 
understanding of the Museum’s work by Torbay Council by providing medium 
term surety of grant levels would be a fillip to confidence and therefore 
sustainability. 
    
The reviews show how exposed the Museum is to the vagaries of costs such as 
premises related expenditure. The building dates from 1902 and was originally 
Brixham’s Police Station.  It covers three floors and while owned by Torbay Council, 
the Museum has a full repairing lease.  In 2012/13 the repairs and refurbishment 
costs were estimated to be just under £3,000 equivalent to 15% of the Council’s 
grant. 
 
Workforce profile: 
As an operation the Museum relies heavily on volunteers with contracted staff 
consisting of a part-time curator, part-time administrator and two seasonal 
receptionists, all on very modest paid hours. The total salary costs of the paid 
staff being on a par with the national average wage of one person.  

 [Godalming Museum - Godalming’s local Council directly employs the curator 
and also subsidises the volunteer manager and contributes £66,000 a year to 
its operation costs.  This offers an interesting comparison with Brixham.] 
 

An Assessment of where the Museum now is: 
 
In 2013 Brixham Heritage Museum was joint winner (with the Horniman Museum 
London) of the annual “Most Family Friendly Museum Awards”, a national 
completion sponsored by the Sunday Telegraph.  This accolade underlines the 
Museums investment in education, its belief in creating a family experience and its 
common sense in pulling it all together as a deliverable product. Among the special 
educational offers, the Museum organises hands-on archaeological digs, Napoleonic 
boot camps and WW1 outdoor events for children, families and disadvantaged 
youngsters. 
 

Page 76



The Museum was recipient of the Trip Advisor Certificate of Excellence two years 
running (2013 and 2014).  This honour reflects the Museum’s commitment to 
providing a well-run and high profile visitor attraction in Torbay.  
 
The Museum is the custodian of artefacts and archival materials available to 
researchers, including important collections associated with Brixham’s maritime past, 
Brixham Seamen’s Boys’ Home, the Berry Head Napoleonic Forts and prehistoric 
finds from Brixham Caverns. Of more than local/regional significance are the military 
artefacts from the Forts and Middle Bronze Age pottery from Ash Hole Cavern. 
 
The Museum organises Family History Research, answering enquiries from as far 
away as Australia and Canada. This has been a highly popular service providing the 
Museum with a regular income stream. 
 
Possible Consequences of the Proposed 42% Cut in the 2015/16 Grant 
 

• There will be a reduction in the number of existing paid staff (all of whom are 
already only part-time). 

 

• Reduction in educational services including outreach activities. 
 

• No further major improvements to existing displays or creation of brand new 
display with the consequence of a decrease in visitor appeal. 

 

• Admission charges will have to rise and free admission currently available to 
Torbay Carers, Torbay Childminders and similar disadvantaged groups may 
be jeopardised.  

 

• There will be a threat to the continuing preservation of the Museum’s 
collections and archives. 

 
If a further draconian cut is implemented beyond 2016 there is every likelihood that 
the Museum will close down completely. 

Page 77



From: Basil Greenwood  

Sent: 15 August 2014 17:36 

To: Scrutiny 

Subject: Priorities and Resources Committee review  

 

Dear Sir/madam 

  

Please find attached: 

  

-          Interim Summary project delivery - Aug 2014 v5.  This references the remaining 

attached Annexes. 

-          Annex A - Options Appraisal Vs2 April 2013 – scrutiny 

-          Annex B - Torbay Museums Final Report 2013-10-29 v2 2 

-          Annex C - Reporting FM Project Q1 2014-15 v1mb 

-          Annex D DRAFT Savings TQM v3 

-          Annex 2 - FM Governance  change Timeline 2014-15 v4 pdf form 

  

Please will you take the above documents and the note below into consideration as part of the 

Priorities and Resources Committee review of the reduction proposed for Torquay and Brixham 

Museum Grants.   Brixham Museum has already sent a commentary to you and the following text 

relates principally to Torquay Museum. 

  

Torquay Museum is an independent registered charity that receives an annual grant from Torbay 

Council, which constitutes a significant percentage of its income, the rest of which it generates from 

visitor admissions and trading. 

  

Although the Museum sympathises with the difficult financial choices that Torbay Council has to 

make in the coming years, their proposed cut to Torquay Museum’s grant of 42% for 2015/16 will 

have a dramatic negative effect on the Museum. There is a real possibility that the Museum will be 

forced to close its doors after 140 years, which would be an enormous cultural loss to the English 

Riviera’s residents and holidaymakers. 

  

Despite seeing our visitor numbers increase by 35% over the past five years through a lot of hard 

work and innovation, Torquay Museum has struggled with the rising costs of caring for its 

internationally important collections in an ageing building that is very expensive to maintain, and a 

significant drop in other income. The Museum has  already made deep cuts to staff costs and other 

overheads, but are walking a financial tightrope. These proposed cuts in Torbay Council’s grant to 

Torquay Museum are likely to result in the Museum having to shed so many of its paid staff as to 

make the running of the Museum unviable. 

  

Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey and Brixham Heritage Museum have received funding over the past 

two years from Arts Council England and the Heritage Lottery Fund to restructure themselves and 

share resources and management in order to reduce costs further. Whilst good progress has been 

made such significant restructuring takes time and the Museum is not yet in a position to 

substantially reduce costs any further. The Museum needs more time to complete this restructuring, 

and unfortunately Torbay Council’s proposed substantial grant cut will kill Torquay Museum before 

we are able to put ourselves on a secure financial footing for the future. 

  

Torquay Museum provides an invaluable learning resource for local schools, and a place of wonder 

and enjoyment for tens of thousands of local residents and holidaymakers every year. The Museum 

is the home to Northwest Europe’s oldest human remains, thousands of artefacts from Kents Cavern 

(one of Britain’s most important archaeological sites), Britain’s only Agatha Christie gallery, an 

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 1

Page 78



enviable collection of ancient Egyptian artefacts, and a huge natural history collection. It would be 

very sad to lose such an asset after almost one-and-a-half centuries. 

  

The recent questionnaire about the proposed cuts to the Museum grant has resulted in many 

hundreds of response from locals and visitors alike all of whom support the maintenance of the 

current grant.  In addition notable academics and researchers engaged in studying the collections 

have all expressed their concern at the proposed cut in the Museum grant. 

  

Should you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me. 

  

Kind regards 

  

Basil Greenwood 

  

  

  

Basil Greenwood 

Project Manager 

Future Museums Project 

Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey & Brixham Heritage Museum working in partnership 

  

 

Page 79



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

Future Museums Project – Interim Summary Report August 2014 

Introduction 
 

The following report is a summary of activity and delivery of the Future Museums Project since 

October 2012.  Since the start date the Project has evolved to cope with changes in pressures and 

directions agreed through the Future Museums Project Board including Arts Council England.  Some 

of the key issues to highlight in the context of the summary are as follows: 

 

1. The two reports on Options regarding governance at the Museums illustrated that changes 

needed to be made for a sustainable future to be possible.  Regardless of changes in 

governance and indeed in methods of operation one thing has been made clear – given the 

investment from HLF and ACE into the Museums of Torbay a period of further sustainable 

grant aid from Torbay Council is needed to allow time for new structures, governance and 

working arrangements to pay dividends.  Funding from the Council, at least at the current 

level, for two years from April 2015 would give sufficient time and support for transition and 

new operations to be fully implemented.  Thereafter a gradually declining level of Council 

support might be appropriate. 

2. The budget information (and staffing levels) set out in the Black Radley report has been 

overtaken by events. For example Torquay Museum’s budget has changed radically with 

staff cuts and other cost savings that have been implemented.  Revised budgetary 

information is currently being prepared. 

3. Joint activity with other organisations (not accredited Museums) are actively being pursued 

to improve income streams – partnerships with commercial organisations are viewed as part 

of future delivery.  For example a Joint Heritage Pass has been launched for the three 

Museums together with Kents Cavern, after a review in Autumn 2014 this may be expanded 

to include other heritage attractions.  Joint education activity is also being delivered 

alongside Kents Cavern.  Hotels are being contacted with a view to developing a strong joint 

offer to groups visiting Torbay. 

4. The creation of the Kents Cavern Foundation is also significant.  Close working and 

cooperation with Kents Cavern is being further explored. 

5. The emerging Torbay Culture Board will clearly have an overarching influence on the future 

of the Torbay Museums as part of the total cultural offer of Torbay.  Once the new Cultural 

Strategy has been adopted by Torbay Council (expected date 25 September 2014) we will 

have to see how this will benefit the museums. 

 

Brief project overview  
 

This project aims to lay the foundations for a new, more sustainable future for the Museums of 

Torbay.  The three accredited museums of Torbay, Torre Abbey, Torquay Museum and Brixham 

Heritage Museum are a significant cultural, community and economic resource situated in the 2nd 

largest population centre in Devon.  

 

The project intends to grow our value to our communities and economy, understand our audiences 

better and increase their range and spread by developing a range of exhibitions, events and 

education programmes. We will make significant changes to the way we operate to ensure that our 

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 2

Page 80



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

business planning and operational facilities are fit for the 21
st

 Century.  This project will play a major 

part in setting us on that ambitious change programme.  

 

Outline of activity and delivery 

Start-up 

On behalf of the Future Museums Project, Torquay Museum Society received formal notification of 

the Renaissance Strategic Support grant (from Arts Council for England) on the 26 September 2012.  

With a presumed project start date of 1 October all the partners rallied round and moved quickly to 

facilitate the recruitment of the five members of project staff.  The Project Manager post was 

interviewed for on the 18
 
October and the successful candidate - Basil Greenwood - formally began 

work on 23 October. 

 

Interviews for the remaining four posts were quickly set up and took place over the next two weeks 

with the successful candidates beginning work with a full day induction on 12 November.   The posts 

filled and successful candidates were as follows: 

 

a. Programme and Events Developer Officer – Nathalie Palin.  Panel comprised Basil 

Greenwood, Alan Davies, Anna Gilroy. 

b. Geohub Education and Outreach Officer – Leah Whitcher.  Panel comprised Basil 

Greenwood, Alan Davies, Mel Border. With input from Philip Armitage. 

c. Funding Officer – Stuart McMillan. Panel comprised Basil Greenwood, Alan Davies. 

d. Project Administrator – Amie Schofield.  Panel comprised Basil Greenwood, Alan 

Davies. 

 

Project Management 

Upon starting, the project manager established a project schedule along with a breakdown of 

activities with proposed delegation amongst project staff. Meetings have been held with key 

partners including regular sessions with individuals from Torre Abbey and Brixham Museum.   

 

A new Future Museums Project Board was constituted and met for the first time on 2 May 2013.  

Thereafter it has met monthly.  Representation from the three Museums is as follows:  Dave Butt, 

Alan Davies, Phil Collins, Richard Sale and Phil Armitage. 

 

Governance and organisational resilience 

1. The Future Museums project has sought to ensure the museums move towards a more 

sustainable future, in part by identifying and assessing more effective future business 

models for museum delivery. 

2. An initial options appraisal was carried out by Devon Square Partners Limited during the 

early part of 2013.  The report (Annex A) found that the current method of operation was 

not ideal.  This initial work envisaged that a new higher level body would be created that 

would be the commercial equivalent of a holding company. It would represent and galvanise 

the business part of Torbay Museums, freeing up Torquay Museum Society and Torbay 

Council from main line commercial considerations.  It was proposed that while Brixham 

Heritage Museum is part of the ‘consortium club’, it maintains its own legal standing and 

current arrangements. 

3. The museums then appointed Black Radley Culture (BRC) to carry out further work on the 

options appraisal for the future governance of the three museums.  In particular the 

museums wanted this work to drill down into the detail of what a new trust would look like 

and the delivery and financial benefits this brings. 

Page 81



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

4. One of the key drivers explored by the report was the desire to reduce the Torbay Council 

subsidy from £261k to a potential £100k.  The report concludes (see Executive Summary and 

full report – Annex B) the following: 

a. It is highly unlikely that any form of sharing, cooperation or merger between the 3 

museums can close such a potential subsidy gap. 

b. It is possible that a change in the museums’ governance model could result in an 

increase in commercial revenue (e.g. trading).  This “enterprise dividend” is 

associated with increased management freedoms Even if such changes were made, 

they are unlikely to deliver sufficient net margin to close the gap. 

c. Given the circumstances, it is hard to see a sustainable model for the three 

museums without closures and/or substantial reductions in activity. 

d. The development of a new trust, incorporating the existing three museums, 

incorporating two of them, or incorporating some of what they do, could be 

counter-productive.  Substantial management time is typically required to create 

stakeholder alignment.  This management time would be better spent on improving 

the individual museums’ commercial offer, and on capturing the resultant revenues, 

rather than dealing with the politics of complex change. 

5. The final phase of Arts Council funding (2014-15) is actively supporting a change programme.  

Key strands are set out in the 2014-15 plan as follows:  Governance and transition, 

marketing, education, collections management, forward planning and grants.  The Project is 

pursuing closer operational working in these areas to deliver efficiencies and better delivery 

with the intention of improving the offer and exploiting the ‘enterprise dividend’.  A budget 

is available to support this with a major focus on joint marketing, exploring the legal issues 

around any merger and finding solutions. Annex C sets out the programme and reports on 

2014/15 Quarter 1 progress. 

6. Torquay Museum is now signed up to a transition programme through its HLF funded 

programme.  This will enable the separation of Torquay Museum Society from the day to day 

management of the museum (once the Society’s concerns are met). Business and legal 

specialists will be employed to examine and clarify the legal issues associated with the 

preferred option for governance of the museums in the future and the separation of 

Torquay Museum from the Torquay Museum Society, these include:  

 

• The establishment of a new legal entity to house the activities of Torquay Museum (and 

potentially Torre Abbey). 

• The amendment of the existing or establishment of a new legal entity to house the activities 

of the Torbay Museum Society following separation. 

Work required: 

• Preliminary legal support to Torquay Museum Society (the Charity) working alongside other 

consultants during the process of formulating detailed proposals for a revised  governance 

structure, eg attending project group meetings, providing initial legal comments on proposals, 

commenting on any initial communications/consultation with wider membership and Future 

Museum partners. 

• Preliminary legal input to support more detailed discussions with the trustees, 

representatives of the wider membership and the Future Museums Partnership in determining 

the restructure proposals. 

• Consultation with and explanation of the proposals to the wider membership of the existing 

Charity. 

 

For the implementation phase the consultant will provide appropriate legal advice to support 

the implementation of the agreed new governance structures: 

Page 82



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

• developing the articles of association for the new Charity potentially following a 

‘Foundation’ model that reflect the proposed revised governance structures; discussing and 

agreeing these with the Trustees, partners etc. 

• developing a new entity (perhaps a Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO) if needing to 

have charity status) to run the non-museum activities of the current Torquay Museum Society. 

• applying for and obtaining any required Charity Commission consents for a new charity(ies) 

or the amended articles of the existing charity.  

• preparing board and member resolutions/EGM notices etc in relation to the proposed 

changes, the adoption of revised articles of association and attending to filings at Companies 

House and Charity Commission.  

• dealing with the transfer of any assets and liabilities specifically relating to the ‘Society’ 

aspect of the existing charity which are required to transfer to any new entity as part of the 

separation, including drafting a short form asset transfer agreement. 

 

As part of this transition programme for Torquay Museum it would seem appropriate to actively 

use the process to examine related issues around bringing Torre Abbey into any new Trust that 

will be formed.  Such a process can then be supported by monies set aside in the Future 

Museums budget to run alongside the HLF Transition monies.  The Future Museums Project 

Manager can also actively support the process. 

 

7. Business Plans have been developed for both Torquay Museum and Brixham Heritage 

Museum in 2013.  

8. Finance systems have been reviewed at Torquay Museum and recommendations have been 

implemented through a Finance Manager and the Project Administrator.  This has involved 

the purchase and adoption of Sage accounts package and the implementation of new 

financial systems.   

9. Cost savings have been implemented at Torquay Museum which have resulted in 

approximately £30k of savings (Annex D).  This must be seen in the context of an annual 

deficit budget which has been of the order of £90k.  Further savings have been implemented 

through a staff restructuring but there is still a shortfall in funding which is being pursued 

through the TQM HLF Transition Project.  There is also the proposed cut in the Torbay 

Council grant of 42% to factor in. 

 

Fund raising development 

1. After a period of consultation with various staff members, including workshops, the Funding 

Officer drafted a fundraising strategy for Torbay Museums in 2013. The strategy gives both a 

collective and individual strategic overview on corporate hire, business membership and 

general fundraising, on line fundraising, fundraising campaigns, fundraising steering groups, 

legacies, gift aid, grants (covering the 3 main types of grants), sponsorship, influential targets 

and special events. The strategic view provided by this fundraising strategy is part of 

developing a coherent and effective collective approach to benefit all three museums.  

2. Marketing materials have been developed that include a corporate hire booklet, folder for 

fundraising, posters for on line giving (JustGiving), online development with social media 

sites.  

3. A data base of companies has been developed for fundraising purposes which is available to 

all 3 museums. It has been designed to work with mail merge and allow easy targeting of 

companies. Draft fundraising letters have been developed for all three museums with 

attachments for general or specific fundraising. The data base allows for easy monitoring 

and ring-fencing to ensure that companies do not receive multiple approaches from the 

museums.  

Page 83



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

4. A number of Applications have been drawn up and submitted to the Ellerman Foundation, 

Olfson Trust, Charles Hayward, JP Getty, Idlewild Trust, Liche Trust, HappyMuseums.  Many 

of these have not been successful but a number of small grants have been received including 

a £24k from Happy Museums for Torquay Museum. 

 

Front of House IT and Systems 

1. A Review has been undertaken of front of house data gathering IT and till systems as a result 

of which Merac were contracted to provide new front of house and shop till system.  New 

systems allow analysis of admissions data, gift aid, financial and data reporting.  Systems 

were successfully installed in December 2012 with training carrying on into January 2013.  

Postcode lookup software has been added to the package to facilitate gift-aid. 

2. These new tills were installed at both TQM and Torre Abbey. 

3. Gift aid is now being accurately and easily recorded at TQM resulting in higher amounts of 

gift aid being obtained and easier data submission to HMRC. An electronic diary is being 

utilised for room bookings, etc. that is easily accessed and maintained. The Till system 

enables faster and easier ‘one entry, one touch’ diary-event- invoice procedure.  Shop and 

café stock has been entered onto Merac till system for easy and accurate stock tracking and 

reports. Bar code scanners have been installed for easier and quicker transactions.  The 

Merac Back Office software now enable’s various reports and data to be created from report 

menu for financial, stock checking and marketing purposes. The benefits of Torre Abbey 

joining the new foundation trust would include the ability to retrieve gift aid on all tickets 

sold. The local authority is currently unable to do this. 

 

Environmental sustainability appraisal and works 

1. An on-site appraisal has been carried out at TQM by EoN.  This involved experts in the field 

of energy saving lighting systems, heating systems and solar panels.  A solar PV assessment 

and costing has been provided and funding options are being actively explored by TQM. 

Advice on energy saving lighting has been utilised to source new lighting at TQM.  The intent 

is to find funding to install solar panels at TQM, upgrade lighting to new energy efficient 

types when possible and to further investigate heating systems to provide a more energy 

efficient type. 

2. At Brixham Museum the installation of better, energy efficient lighting in Mayflower, and 

Lifeboat displays and in the research rooms has taken place.  Also some old, inefficient night 

storage heaters have been replaced and a new water heater has been purchased and 

installed.  The Maritime gallery is also having energy efficient lighting and insulation installed 

to improve energy usage. 

3. In Torquay Museum Devon Farmhouse gallery, new energy efficient, dimable, sensor 

activated lighting has been installed. 

 

Programme and audience development 

1. A new 'Monster Saturdays' initiative at Torquay Museum has been launched and marketed 

(online and print) to engage local families and children in the museum and its collections, 

through creative and science-based activities. The first event took place on 16th March 

2013, the number of museum visitors that day was a 20-fold increase on the previous 

Saturday and almost all of the families were local to the area, and almost all had never 

visited the museum before. Following the strong track record of Brixham Heritage Museum 

in families work, Torquay Museum has also now joined Kids in Museums.  

2. The Entry Fee structure at Torquay Museum has been simplified and changed in order to 

engage with local families and harder to reach groups. The combination of pay once re-enter 

all year is designed to engage with local population currently not using the museum. Also we 

Page 84



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

have added a 'small families' price to demonstrate more flexible understanding of families 

needs. 

3. The Programme Developer has been working with all three museums to identify targeted 

harder to reach groups that each museum will focus on in order to widen their audiences 

and increase access. These programmes will take into account staff skills, collections 

relevance and museum profile. For Torquay Museum there is a strong interest in working 

with disadvantaged young people, and supporting the communities 'wellbeing' agenda 

through Happy Museum initiatives, sociable activities for older people to tackle isolation, 

and families work. Brixham Heritage Museum already has a strong track record with primary 

schools, and their new programmes are likely to extend into secondary schools, and on 

working with Trinity Youth Trust to use the museum's maritime links to help develop young 

people's skills. They are also keen to develop a more dynamic events programme linking to 

Brixham community's public festivals programme. Torre Abbey is keen to look at extending 

informal education activities and developing their capacity to host community and public 

festivals and events. This year Torre Abbey will be the hub location for all the literary events 

for the new International Agatha Christie Festival. 

4. In discussion with staff at each of the three museums, the Programmes Developer has 

drafted Needs Assessments, and based on these, she has been developing museum 

programmes addressing exhibitions, events, education and outreach activities (in 

partnership with Geohub Education Officer). Torquay Museum now has an agreed 

programme of exhibitions for three years, with programming for: young people; adults; 

community outreach and wellbeing; families; and schools. Staff are continuing to add to this 

programme to develop it further. In parallel with this programme, the museum is continuing 

to work towards its Collections Designation. Torre Abbey's development has limited its 

exhibition facilities, but they have a draft programme of exhibitions for their 'Spanish Barn'. 

The broader programme for Torre Abbey is still in development due to the delays brought 

about by their extensive redevelopment. Their programme for the future will be built 

around audience development and special events, enhanced by key visiting exhibitions 

developed by the Arts Development Team. 

5. The programme for Brixham Heritage Museum is also still in development. BHM are focusing 

on their 'Maritime Galleries' as a permanent improved gallery. They do not have the space in 

the museum for new large scale exhibitions. Their programme will focus on audience 

development and events (as discussed in section above) as well as changing and improving 

existing exhibitions on a gradual basis.  Some capacity exists to put on small new exhibitions 

such as the recently produced WW1 exhibition to coincide with the commemorations in 

2014. 

 

Education consultation 

1. The Education Consultant report has been completed with clear recommendations to 

enhance school/museum science based learning.  This has fed into sessions delivered to 

schools during phase 2.   A teacher focus group has been created to feedback as new 

curriculum subjects are' bedded-in' to lesson planning.  Teachers have input on planned 

Geohub sessions to ensure that we are offering them something that enhances the 

classroom based learning.  

 

Other educational 

1. Primary school Geopark education sessions have been written and are being marketed to 

schools and delivered. Information also available on website to download. 

2. Revised TQM school visit pricing policy to bring it into line with Torre Abbey.  Reviewed 

against other delivery organisations including TCCT and Kents Cavern. 

Page 85



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

3. Set up ‘pool’ of paid education deliverers to deliver sessions at TQM which is a self-

supporting system.  The fees charged to the schools covers the cost of buying in the

educator with some money remaining to support core costs.

4. At Torre Abbey Leah has been working with Elizabeth Newberry and Ali Marshall on

education planning for garden activities. Collaborated with Head Gardener and Consultant,

on garden activity back packs – now operational.  Working with Head Gardener on Children

& Families activities programme e.g. Autumn and Christmas activities. Collaborated with

Head Gardener, Consultant and Abbey Ed Officer, on first stage of Primary Education

Programme - (3 Abbey-Garden linked sessions).

5. Undertaken consultations with teachers (mainstream and academies, plus South West

Science Leaders Network Meeting), on current state of play within education,

attitudes/opinions around current and anticipated future changes and likelihood of schools

taking up the current sessions.

6. Joint education sessions set up between Kents Cavern and TQM and being delivered

effectively.

7. Secondary schools - After consultation it is clear that there is less scope for an extensive

Education Programme due to the nature of secondary education.  Schools approach is offsite

visits in first year of secondary and post GCSE (A’level).  In consultation with a secondary

geography teacher and Ed Consultant. Leah drafting a full day’s activity programme that is

most likely to entice this sector out of the school grounds.

8. Shop Window Displays - Despite huge effort this has been impossible, up to date, to deliver

due to owners of premises refusing to allow us to use them – despite TQM being a charity.

Leah now organising getting the material into the local libraries and the Town Hall.  Also

following a contact who it is hoped will be able to offer advice about getting into shops.

Accreditation/Forward Plans 

1. Torre Abbey - Accreditation Review submission to Arts Council: including application,

Forward Plan, Access & Learning Policy, Collections Development Policy, supporting staff to

develop Collections Development Framework documents and collate Fire & Security Plans,

policy documents, staff development evidence and evidence of good practice. Torre Abbey

has successfully been re-accredited.

2. TQM – in process of supporting development of Forward Plan and related documents.

3. Brixham - in process of supporting development of Forward Plan and related documents.

Web-portal 

1. In taking the unified web portal forward, the museums identified the opportunity to not only

address the unification of the museums for online visitors, but could also re-design the

museums' own websites to better engage with broader online audiences.  As a result, the

remit and value of the web tender was increased (with greater financial contributions made

from partner museums). The contract for this was awarded to Website Vision Ltd. on

15/02/13.

2. A Torbay Museums web portal has been up and running since July 2013.  It is now the

vehicle also being used to access the Torbay Heritage Pass and sign up to the joint e-

newsletter.

Basil Greenwood 

Future Museums Project Manager

!"#"$%&'()* 

Page 86



 

 

 

  

Torbay Museums 

Options Appraisal 
For Future Governance 

Michael White, Devon Square Partners Limited 

March 2013.  Amended 16 April 2013. Vs2. 

 

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 3

Page 87



 

 

Contents 
 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................................. 1 

1 Introduction .............................................................................................................................. 4 

1.1 Background .................................................................................................................... 4 

1.2 Context .......................................................................................................................... 4 

1.3 History ........................................................................................................................... 5 

1.4 The Nature of the Three Organisations ......................................................................... 5 

1.5 Options Envisaged ......................................................................................................... 6 

2 The Current Position and Issues Arising ................................................................................... 7 

2.1 Current Commerciality .................................................................................................. 7 

2.2 The Impact on Funding: Current Situation .................................................................... 8 

2.3 The Impact on Funding of a Consortium-led Approach ................................................ 8 

2.4 Alternative Legal Structures .......................................................................................... 8 

2.5 The Legal Options for Coming Together ........................................................................ 9 

2.6 The Capable Organisation ........................................................................................... 10 

2.7 Finding the Capable Organisation ............................................................................... 10 

2.8 Recommendations ....................................................................................................... 11 

3 Principles of Partnerships, Collaborations and Consortia ...................................................... 11 

3.1 Synergy and Adding Value ........................................................................................... 11 

3.2 Sharing Costs ............................................................................................................... 11 

3.3 Areas of Advantage ..................................................................................................... 12 

3.4 Good Practice Comparisons ........................................................................................ 12 

3.5 The Broad Structural Options ...................................................................................... 14 

3.6 The Best Fit Proposal ................................................................................................... 14 

3.7 Recommendations ....................................................................................................... 15 

4 Change: impact and considerations ........................................................................................ 15 

4.1 The Impact of Future Structures ................................................................................. 15 

4.2 Potential Mechanism ................................................................................................... 16 

4.3 The Board Structure .................................................................................................... 16 

4.4 HMRC and Cost Sharing Exemption ............................................................................. 17 

4.5 Other Parties to the Consortium ................................................................................. 17 

4.6 Critical Mass and Economies of Scale .......................................................................... 18 

4.7 The Longer Term Aspiration ........................................................................................ 19 

4.8 The Likely Obstacles to be Overcome ......................................................................... 19 

4.9 Recommendations ....................................................................................................... 21 

5 What Next? ............................................................................................................................. 21 

5.1 Funding ........................................................................................................................ 21 

5.2 Next Steps .................................................................................................................... 21 

Appendix 1:  Letter of Recommendations from Richard Smith, Director of the Tank Museum ....... 23 

Appendix 2: HMRC and Cost Sharing Exemption .............................................................................. 25 

Appendix 3: Charity solicitors, Tozers, list of next legal steps .......................................................... 26 

 

Page 88



 

1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

“Museums are sustainable, resilient and innovative” according to Arts Council England’s Goal 3 (of 

5) for museums.  That task sits at the core of this options appraisal.   

 

The appraisal is part of the “Future Museums Project”, which looks towards a more sustainable 

and vibrant future for museums in Torbay.  It recognises Torbay’s unique heritage and natural 

history and looks to build on this, maximising these strengths and opening up new opportunities.  

It seeks to lead the way by creating a co-operative and collaborative ethos between the three 

Torbay museums along with the other Torbay organisations connected with them. 

 

The options appraisal represents an opportunity to re-engineer the museum structure within 

Torbay, starting with a focus on the three accredited museums but with the aim of extending this 

to the wider cultural, arts and heritage constituent parts of Torbay.  A recurring theme in this 

report is to be quietly bold, building shared services, functions and activities incrementally.  Start 

modestly, but with big ambitions.  Achieve and deliver so that the track record draws others in.   

 

To be effective this report needs to be seen as the start of a recovery process, it is certainly not the 

end product, indeed it cannot be so without consulting funders and stakeholders.  Rather it 

suggests a vision and provides some stepping stones as follows: 

 

The current position   

In considering the current position and the commerciality of the three museums it is paramount 

that the need for change is accepted.  Sicilian poet Guiseppe Tomasi gets it right when he says “If 

we want things to stay as they are then something will have to change”.  So the three 

organisations and their members must avoid being in denial and reflect that this year might 

actually be better than next, and act rather than assume that despite all, it will come out fine in 

the end. 

  

There is a need to seize the opportunity with funders, especially Arts Council England and to 

recognise that funders will be more disposed to help those that seek to help themselves.  That 

means mobilising resources, creating a task group to champion change, to explain, lobby and 

promote the business case and the need for a capable body in Torbay 

Exploring partnerships, collaborations and consortia 

The rationale of this project sees the three museums (and those organisations that might join 

them) as a string of pearls and not a random collection of shiny objects.  This is the essence of 

synergy, where the whole is greater than the sum of its parts.  The case for partnership and 

consortium working is set out in some detail in the report along with several comparisons that 

offer both lessons and benchmarks.  The advantages of working together to save costs and exploit 

new and existing opportunities feature strongly in the “Big Society” agenda with the same 

principle of collaboration are promoted equally strongly by the Charity Commission and other 

agencies.  The cause of complementing rather than competing is seen by many to be at the heart 

of sustainability. 

Page 89



 

2 

 

 

However as well as making the partnership case it is essential to test out the nature of consortium 

working for Torbay’s museums and identify: 

 

· The potential value of cost savings 

· Those services that would work best if delivered on a consortium basis (likely around 

marketing, education and outreach and similar) establishing how these might be developed on 

an incremental basis 

· A couple of “quick wins” to create momentum and a feeling of success,  something like the 

“Passport” idea for marketing to multi-venues 

· New areas of activity that work the best and most effectively 

· Determine the best Torbay organisational structure to be the delivery vehicle 

 

This process takes Torbay with its rich archaeological and natural history and likens it to a campus 

with a number of faculties.  While each of those faculties is autonomous they all belong to the 

same campus. 

 

Creating a consortium 

In assessing the current situation, the shape of current organisations and their commercial 

robustness, the report looks at several models that could capitalise on the partnership and 

consortium ethos and deliver Torbay a capable museum organisation to do the business. 

 

It is envisaged that a new higher level body would be created that would be the commercial 

equivalent of a holding company.  This would be more than a funders header tank, it would 

represent and galvanise the business part of Torbay museums, leaving the Torquay Museum 

Society and Friends of Torre Abbey to maintain the community dimension and be freed up from 

main line commercial considerations.  It is proposed that while Brixham Heritage Museum is part 

of the “consortium club”, they maintain their own legal standing and current arrangements. 

 

The report considers all of the structural options for the consortium, some eight different variants, 

coming down in favour of a charitable trust but also suggesting that in the next stages a 

community benefit society is also considered. 

 

The change agenda 

 The biggest brake on change identified was not surprisingly that of the fear of culture change.  In 

terms of organisational change international business guru Peter Drucker commented that 

“Culture eats change for breakfast”.  What Drucker meant by that was that no matter how logical 

and strategic the case for change was, if there was a gut feeling from the established decision 

makers that was change averse then that view would win out.  Consequently in that environment 

leaders need to be prepared to set the pace and actively persuade and be prepared to impose 

change for the common good.  The actions can therefore be summarised as: 

 

Page 90



 

3 

 

· Create a plan of campaign, consultation and involvement to overcome cultural reticence and 

achieve a level of engagement and ownership 

· Visualise the “capable body” and its powers and scope 

· List out the necessary board skills that will be needed along with dream team to deliver, and 

then work out how to approach and win over the right people 

· Decide who is going to be the executive lead on the process and which of the prospective 

board members might be chair and champion 

· Use an informal due diligence process as a road map to plot the way forward 

· Prepare the financial projections that will be part of the consortiums business plan   

 

Conclusions and next steps 

The three museums are the starting point but it is true sustainability that will represent the 

sticking point.   

 

This report can only set out the options but the desire to engage and really move forward is 

strong.  Discussions with Torbay Council have been both encouraging and supportive, with a desire 

to support the plans set out in this document and to give them time.  Early board soundings at 

Torquay Museum suggest a positive and pragmatic sentiment and likewise Brixham Heritage 

Museum are receptive. 

 

Arts Council England were also aware of the situation, appreciating the frailty of the current set-up 

and being supportive of potential substantial investment in re-engineering the Torbay museum 

sector on the proviso that the players were genuinely prepared to “walk the talk”. 

 

The next steps are set out in section 5 of this report.  

  

Page 91



 

4 

 

1 Introduction  
 

1.1 Background 

 

In October 2012 Torre Abbey, Torquay and Brixham Heritage Museums were successful in gaining 

a Renaissance Strategic Funds grant from the Arts Council for England. This became the Future 

Museums Project. 

 

A key part of the Future Museums Project was to carry out an options appraisal for future 

governance models with the aim of providing a more sustainable future for the museums in 

Torbay.  The appraisal included Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey and Brixham Heritage Museum.  

 

The fundamental rationale of the project is to ensure that the three museums move towards a 

more sustainable future, in part, by identifying and assessing more effective future business 

models for museum delivery. 

 

Other objectives include:  enhancing the capacity of the museums to raise funds, developing 

innovative programmes of events and exhibitions to attract new audiences, developing outreach 

activities focussed on the English Riviera Geopark. 

 

It was also decided to include the proposed National Museum of Prehistory at Kent’s Cavern along 

with additional models incorporating other Torbay organisations.  This forms part of the overall 

options review appraising all aspects likely to provide a secure future for the three museums. 

 

 

1.2 Context 

 

The museums of Torbay are a significant cultural, community and economic resource situated in 

the 2nd largest population centre in Devon. Torbay has 134,000 residents compared to Plymouth’s 

258,700 and Exeter’s 119,600 

 

Torbay falls within the top 20% most deprived local authority areas in England for the rank of 

average score and the rank of local concentration.  21,000 (15%) of residents live in areas 

considered in the top 10% most deprived in England. Deprivation in the area is continuing to 

worsen. On the index of multiple deprivations Torbay has a high score of 26.8 compared to 16.89 

in SW and 19.5 for England as whole with 23.4% of under 16s living in low income households 

(Torbay). 

 

There are 9,420 pupils on-roll at Primary and 8,716 at Secondary level within the Torbay local 

authority. The last reported average % of pupils eligible for Free School Meals in Torbay is 19.8%, 

this compares to 11.1% for the SW and 15.4% for England.  

 

Page 92



 

5 

 

Income from the local community is therefore likely to be low, so the museums need to attract 

money from outside of the region.  Tourism is a major economic driver in the English Riviera. Its 

visitor economy attracted in 2009 (the most recent official statistics) in excess of one million 

staying visitors and two and a half million day visitors.  Torbay remains Devon’s major resort. Its 

museums have the opportunity of becoming a key player in the culturally led economic 

regeneration of the Bay.  

 

 

1.3 History 

 

There are three accredited museums within Torbay: 

 

Torre Abbey was founded in 1196 and is Torquay's most historic building. As well as its abbey ruins 

it houses a nationally important collection of paintings and antiques.  Torre Abbey is owned and 

run by Torbay Council. 

 

Torquay Museum is Devon’s oldest museum, created in 1845 and is still owned and managed by 

its parent Society.  It is a registered charity. 

The museum houses international important geological, archaeological and ethnographic 

collections. A variety of temporary exhibitions and a programme of events are delivered 

throughout the year.  

 

Brixham Heritage Museum was founded by Brixham Museum & History Society in 1958. It tells the 

story of the Riviera's oldest town, from the Stone Age through to the present day, using a strong 

nautical flavour. Particular emphasis is given to Brixham’s fishing and ship building industries, also 

to the Berry Head Napoleonic Fort and Brixham’s prehistoric ‘Bone’ Caverns.  

 

 

1.4 The Nature of the Three Organisations 

Torquay Museum 

· Although long established the recent history of recurrent substantial losses suggests an 

unsustainable model as currently configured 

· The board of trustees is drawn exclusively from the Society’s membership with a  focus towards 

the activities of the Society rather than the business of the Museum. 

· An organisation seeking to do too many things and please too many people without the 

necessary resources 

 

Torre Abbey 

· A significant heritage asset for Torbay but “people don’t know what it is” 

· Financial uncertainty combined with some parties that suggests it does not need any form of 

public support and subsidy 

Page 93



 

6 

 

· Concern that because of financial pressure Torbay Council will need to put Torre Abbey out to 

commercial tender  

 

Brixham Heritage Museum 

· Volunteer driven  

· Smaller in size than its counterparts 

· Tightly run by a focused and engaged group with a strong sense of ownership 

· It suggests the maxim: “if it ain’t bust don’t mend it” 

 

 

While not part of the group of three accredited museums, Kent’s Cavern is still part of the Torbay 

museum campus.  An Ancient Monument and Site of Special Scientific Interest Kent’s Cavern is a 

sustainable commercial undertaking.  Plans are in the early stages to create a research and 

educational charitable trust under the guise of a National Centre for Stone Age Man.   

 

In terms of this assignment the concept of a National Centre for Stone Age Man is a relevant 

future element of the museum structure in Torbay.   The overwhelming findings of this report see 

the National Centre for Stone Age Man as complementary resources for Torbay rather than a 

competitor to the existing museums. 

 

 

1.5 Options Envisaged 

 

Several options were envisaged in the brief and these can be summarised as: 

 

Charitable Trust: Torquay Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum are charities and Torre Abbey 

is Council owned.  The possibility of establishing a single charitable trust to take on all or part of 

the roles of the existing organisations needs to be explored.  This could bring many benefits but 

some of these benefits may be achievable through agreement rather than establishing a common 

trust as an all-encompassing solution.  There may be more than one permutation of the Charitable 

Trust model. 

 

Kent’s Cavern is privately owned and run with the possibility that the proposed National Centre for 

Stone Age Man may follow a different model from commercial ownership, potentially a charitable 

trust structure. 

 

The hybrid potential: The potential/likelihood of a National Centre for Stone Age Man is outside 

the scope of this work, however there is a desire to maximise any opportunity that might arise.  

Consequently an initial assessment should be made with regard to the hybrid potential 

(private/public/charitable sector) that a Kent’s Cavern, Torquay Museum, Brixham Heritage 

Museum, Torre Abbey combination might bring.   

 

Page 94



 

7 

 

The brief stated that particular regard should be made of how these and other participating 

organisations might constitute a viable social enterprise. 

 

Service and staff sharing: Sharing common back office functions may be possible as well as staff 

operating across all the sites.  Regard also need to be had as to the impact of VAT and the ways of 

mitigating any adverse impact. 

 

Partnership working: Can involve sharing intelligence and marketing ideas, joint ticketing, 

developing and delivering a coherent programme of events, activities and exhibitions. 

 

Value Added: In the appraisal of options a reasoned economic case should be made with regard to 

the financial advantages and their long-term sustainability.  This applies to both cost saving and 

new areas of income generation. 

 

 

2 The Current Position and Issues Arising 

  

2.1 Current Commerciality 

 

The Future Museums Project recognises the frailty of the existing Torbay museums set-up.   

 

In several respects therefore this options appraisal is the opening phase of a recovery plan and 

need to be regarded as such.   

 

The external environment, funding, habits and priorities are changing at such a pace that even if 

any of the three museum organisations wished to remain unchanged they would be compelled to 

change in response to external forces simply to stay as they are.  The do nothing option is 

therefore not an option, but an abdication to let others decide.  

 

Commercially none of the organisations are strong, however because of its modest size and 

volunteer base Brixham could be said to be the most sustainable (although very vulnerable to any 

cuts in their Council grant).  However the rationale of the Future Museums Project is not one of 

survival but viability and vibrancy.  It perceives of the chance to re-engineer the Torbay museum 

sector and all that follows is based upon this premise. 

  

 

  

Page 95



 

8 

 

2.2 The Impact on Funding: Current Situation 

 

An options appraisal such as this document constitutes a certain moment in time from a funder’s 

perspective.  The opportunity to talk and exercise real funding strategy, to broker deals and talk 

matching and leverage and make money work harder should not be under estimated.  Funders 

expect recipient organisations to show their ability to act decisively and tackle issues that will 

ultimately lead to their long-term sustainability.  Robust self-help, integrity and the avoidance of 

denial are key.  Grants for persistently failing organisations frequently do little more than prolong 

the agony. 

 

The options appraisal is about re-engineering the museum sector in Torbay and funders support is 

likely to be there if those involved wholeheartedly set about that task and avoid the temptation of 

merely tinkering around the edges.  

 

 

2.3 The Impact on Funding of a Consortium-led Approach 

 

While the impact of a consortium led approach will require a business planning exercise to fully 

evaluate the coming together of the three accredited museums (see Section 5 “What next”), there 

are obvious potential savings.   

 

The same principles apply to opportunities and adding value.  Many aspects are set out in section 

3 of this report both around the expansion of existing services and activities, but also the creation 

of new ones.  The likelihood is that a consortium approach of complementing has the power to be 

significant. 

 

 

2.4 Alternative Legal Structures   
 

In assessing the structural options and consortium potentials it is necessary to consider the many 

different forms that can be adopted for cultural/educational and social enterprises including any 

of the following: 

· A Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG): registered as a charity; largely protects trustees from 

personal liability 

· Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO): ditto, but a very new vehicle so not tried and 

tested; unattractive to lenders as there is no register of charges 

· Unincorporated charity under a trust deed or constitution (Friends): not a legal entity so 

cannot contract in its own name; no protection for trustees 

· Industrial & Provident Society (IPS): legal entity, registered with the Financial Services 

Authority; members hold nominal shares; model rules inflexible; can be (exempt) charity.  

Popular with community run village shops/pubs etc because of ‘local’ share issue 

· Subsidiary company: usually wholly owned by charity; either ring-fences a risky activity or 

carries out non-charitable trading - profits gift aided to charity to save tax 

Page 96



 

9 

 

· Community Interest Company (CIC): social enterprise for common good, but allows a limited 

return to investors; asset lock ensures no other benefit to shareholders or investors; company, 

but not a charity; can be charity’s subsidiary; less restricted than charity; suitable for founder, 

who can be paid board member 

· Trust/holding company: can be trustee of more than one charity (so an umbrella) 

· Consortium: can be a loose collaboration by charities, or a more formal contractual 

arrangement, or a separate legal entity (e.g. CLG) in which various bodies participate 

 

The likelihood is that Torbay Museums Trust will be a charity but also badged as a social 

enterprise.  As such it will either be a Company Limited by Guarantee that registers as a charity or 

takes the new route of becoming a Charitable Incorporated Organisation. 

 

However the other option would be an Industrial Provident Association (IPA).  Although somewhat 

‘clunky’ this could offer the facility of a local share issue that might galvanise local support in a 

financially effective way. 

 

The Trust would look to meet the requirements of HMRC guidelines of July 2012 with regard to 

exemption of VAT regarding shared services between linked organisations in the charity sector.  

Section 4.4 examines these provisions in more detail along with the possibility of using the HMRC 

guidelines of an ideal group as a template. 

 

 

2.5 The Legal Options for Coming Together 

 

These can be summarised as follows: 

 

Collaboration: 

 A loose arrangement where charities work together in certain areas (e.g. by bulk purchasing or by 

sharing staff or facilities such as IT).  In this way, each would retain its own legal structure and 

governing document. 

Consortium (or Federation): 

Where each body retains its identity and independence but agrees by contract to cooperate 

towards their respective objectives in a more formal way than mere collaboration; this can be 

achieved by setting up either: 

· a special purpose vehicle (a company, to ring-fence its activities from their own) to which each 

party contributes 

· a less formal (but arguably more risky) joint venture style of agreement 

  

Page 97



 

10 

 

Merger: 

Creation of one entity to carry out the charities’ purposes, by either:  

· Setting up a new charity into which all participants transfer their assets, liabilities, contracts 

and undertaking (including staff). 

· Transferring the smaller charities’ activities etc to the largest, assuming that its constitution is 

robust enough. 

· Setting up a group structure 

 

 

2.6 The Capable Organisation 

 

In business terms any form of consortium or joint working plan would look to a capable 

organisation as the leader and champion of the project.  The strong party to make things happen 

and be the natural rallying point.   

 

The capable body not only requires a good management team but a strong and robust board with 

experience and insight to make it work.  Without this, plans remain nothing but good intentions. 

 

Currently such a capable organisation does not exist and the ‘whole’ (the three museums) amount 

to less than the sum of its parts, indeed this is recognised as a crucial part of the assignment along 

with the need to set out measures to change. 

 

 

2.7 Finding the Capable Organisation 

 

An initial appraisal would suggest that the obvious candidate for “capable organisation” is Torquay 

Museum; however there are currently significant drawbacks which would suggest the constitution 

of a new capable body.  These issues are succinctly have been explained by Richard Smith (Director 

of the Tank Museum), who has been working with The Museum’s director Phil Collins on behalf of 

a Museums Association mentoring programme to improve Torquay Museum’s governance and 

organisation.  This mentoring has produced some extremely insightful comments which have a 

direct impact on the concept of a “capable organisation”.   

 

A copy of Richard Smith’s letter is in Appendix 1 to this report, however while complimenting the 

Museum Society on running the Museum extremely effectively as a society he thought it 

questionable as to whether it was equipped to provide governance of a 21
st

 Century Museum. 

 

In terms of the business model Richard talked of a successful museum operating as a successful 

tourist attraction, enabling it to generate the funds to carry out its core charitable activities in a 

sustainable way.  As a consequence he pointed out that effective governance involved directing 

strategy at all levels to ensure the achievement of the organisation reflects the strategic intention.  

It should not be about a hands-on involvement in operational detail. 

 

Page 98



 

11 

 

Richard went on to state that when he joined the Tank Museum his predecessor had just 

completed a long-term review of governance structures.  This saw the board move from one 

comprising of entirely of soldiers, most of whom were ex-officio posts to a board appointed on a 

skills basis. The old trustee structure had led to a one-dimensional board without museum or 

business skills and with a rapid turnover.  This led finally to Richard’s main proposal which in 

essence is all about creating the “capable organisation”.  Richard recommended that the Museum 

examine the merits of de-merging the Society and the Museum, setting the Museum up as a 

separate charity with its own board.  This is a theme that has been endorsed and built upon in this 

report. 

 

2.8 Recommendations 

 

· Accept an overall need for change, avoid being in denial and thinking that next year will be 

better 

· Seize the opportunity with funders, especially Arts Council England recognising that funders will 

be more disposed to help those that seek to help themselves 

· Create a task group to explain, lobby and promote the way forward 

· Use this group to test out the routes: a charitable trust or form of community benefit society 

(Industrial and Provident Association) 

 

 

3 Principles of Partnerships, Collaborations and Consortia 

3.1 Synergy and Adding Value 

 

Synergy is about doing and achieving things that one organisation could not do alone but could 

achieve by working with others.  Such advantages of size and scale are separate from pure cost 

savings, but the two can run together.  A typical example could be a fund raiser whose 

employment costs are shared by several organisations.  As well as the obvious cost savings, the 

fund raiser would be in a position to draw the skills of the several organisations together in a 

complementary way so that outcome really does become greater than the sum of its parts. 

 

 

3.2 Sharing Costs 

 

The potential impact of cost sharing is examined below in 4.6 “Critical mass and economies of 

scale”; however the basic philosophy is around making organisations work smarter not harder, for 

example having one accounts department serving several different masters rather than everyone 

having their own.  This maximises time but also accounts software, levels of expertise and provides 

a more fertile environment for employee training and development as well as ensuring greater 

levels of continuity and security.   

Page 99



 

12 

 

 

3.3 Areas of Advantage 

 

The areas where sharing of costs and services could have a strategic and financial benefit are seen 

to be as follows: 

· Programming, where there is a continuing need to refresh the visitor experience 

· Education and out reach 

· Curatorial, there is a shortage of expertise within Torbay and there is the potential to utilise 

existing talents (the current Director/Curator of Brixham Heritage Museum could be an obvious 

example) and to sell this to other members of the consortium (Torre Abbey) and other 

interested parties (Kent’s Cavern/National Museum of Prehistory)  

· Retail: Shop running and combined purchasing.  Advantages of scale around volume and 

discounts, sourcing and retail expertise 

· Fund raising: as previously commented, not just a shared fund raiser but as above the synergy, 

critical mass and cross selling of having organisations working in concert 

· Marketing 

· Customer service: a common point of entry 

· Back office/support services such accounts/book-keeping, personnel, payroll and similar 

 

The aim is to start with a simple concept of sharing obvious services and building these up 

incrementally, avoiding fanfares and building a reputation for effective and economic delivery. 

 

 

3.4 Good Practice Comparisons 

 

In November 2012 the Association of Independent Museums published a research paper entitled 

“Museum Models of Sustainability” detailing 13 case studies covering various aspects of 

sustainability.  While many of the case studies are relevant two have particular resonance: 

 

Partnership and consortia: Marches Network (Working across the West Midlands) 

The Marches Network were a long standing informal partnership of museums covering five 

counties and one city.  The Network started as a two county initiative and grew incrementally 

based on success. 

 

The Marches Network developed a form of joint delivery including special curatorial services and 

joint networking to other sectors, social care and the work sector being specifically mentioned.   

2010 saw more formal structures and a memorandum of understanding (akin to a consortium 

partnership agreement) and as part of it development plan the group are looking at the best way 

to formalise the arrangement by creating an organisation with its own legal status to bid for 

funding from a wide range of agencies. 

 

Page 100



 

13 

 

The benefits have been around the sharing of support services, quality improvement and support 

within the network as well as a joined up approach to funders.  The emphasis has been one of a 

considered approach, building on success in an incremental way. 

 

Taking on services from a local authority:  Woodhorn Museum & Northumberland 

Archive (WMNA) 

WMNA had converted to a trust at about the same time as Northumberland Council had been 

created, taking over seven local authorities.  Northumberland Council inherited three museums 

but had no capacity, leading to WMNA taking them on with the necessary funding support. 

 

The benefits to Northumberland Council were that WMNA had most front and back office 

structures already in place.  The relationship has continued to prosper with WMNA taking on the 

events programme in Northumberland libraries, again with additional funding. 

 

Somerset Heritage Services 

A Somerset County Council Cabinet paper from July 2012 sets out a detailed review of Somerset 

Heritage Services (SHS) assessment of the responsibility for services relating to museums along 

with the optimisation of working with partners and the community plus the promotion, 

celebration and accessibility of Somerset heritage for people across the world.  

 

The Cabinet paper considered whether the services need to be continued, should they be 

combined and if so what was the likely best model and where would the efficiency gains and 

savings be found.  The key findings were: 

· Delivering services together: Somerset had already brought its key heritage functions under a 

single management span something staff and stakeholders overwhelmingly supported along 

with the connections and synergies it could bring. 

· Savings and efficiencies:  The cross cutting potential of service sharing was seen as highly 

important with specific regard to Goal 3 of Arts Council England’s five goals for museums: 

“Museums are sustainable, resilient and innovative”.  This was seen as a driver towards a more 

commercial model for Somerset.   

· Model for delivery: the four options: 

- Remain within Somerset County Council 

- Externalise via a wholly owned (SCC) subsidiary 

- Outsource to a for-profit organisation 

- Create a Somerset Heritage Trust 

 

Lengthy consideration was given to these options concluding in the belief that an externalised 

service would have to trade, and a ‘for-profit’ set-up would lose its grant potential, which made 

Somerset Heritage Trust effective favourite.  It was also noted that in Somerset’s case since there 

had already been significant cost cutting, so the advantages of Somerset Heritage Trust were seen 

as being towards income generation.  Work is on-going in bringing this option to fruition. 

 

Page 101



 

14 

 

3.5 The Broad Structural Options 

 

Two broad options are considered: 

 

Option A  

A classic hierarchal structure with a senior 

executive organisation at the top and operational 

subsidiaries below. 

 

While it might be anticipated that the senior 

company would be connected by a solid line to 

each of the operating units, in a hybrid form the 

link could be a less formal dotted line. 

 

 

 

Option B 

An autonomous structure of three independent 

organisations with a separate consortium 

company.  The consortium company acts like a 

header tank, receiving grants and feeding them 

through to others in the ‘club’ and also leading on 

shared services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.6 The Best Fit Proposal 

 

The likely best fit option is the creation of a senior body that serves to encapsulate the business of 

Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey.  Brixham Heritage Museum joins the grouping as a consortium 

partner sharing services and opportunities but in all other respects maintains its independence 

and its separate grant funding relationships. 

 

 

Page 102



 

15 

 

3.7 Recommendations 

 

· Test and tease out the nature and most importantly potential value of cost savings 

· Assess which services would be best to launch on a consortium basis (likely around marketing, 

education and outreach and similar) and establish how these might be worked up on an 

incremental basis 

· Agree at the outset a couple of “quick wins”.  A change process such as this will benefit from a 

quick win, achieving something together that could not have been achieved alone.  This creates 

momentum, so establish what those quick wins might be 

· Test out the potential new areas of activity from a fund raisers perspective 

· Determine which of options A or B (or a hybrid) would be the most effective delivery structure 

and which would be preferred by funders 

 

 

4 Change: impact and considerations 
 

4.1 The Impact of Future Structures 

 

Below is one example of a “big picture” view of what an eventual pan-Torbay arts, culture, 

museums and heritage structure might look like, with a new Trust sitting at the top of the tree.  

However the highlighted mini structure within that structure conforms very closely to the model 

envisaged in 3.6 above. 

 

 

Page 103



 

16 

 

4.2 Potential Mechanism 

 

While the above ‘big picture’ view could be some way off, the structure within the structure of 

Torbay Museums Trust could offer a plausible and effective way forward.  The concept would be 

the creation of a high level body referred to as the ‘Torbay Museums Trust’ made up of Torquay 

Museum and Torre Abbey as explained in 3.6 above as follows: 

 

· The new Trust would be the ‘capable body,’ the business head of the Torbay Museums body   

· The existing Torquay Museum would stay largely as existing, a subsidiary, that would be the 

entity for the Torquay Museum Society (see section 2.8 and the final quote from Richard 

Smith’s proposals) 

· It is envisaged that the Friends of Torre Abbey is constituted in a similar way to the Torquay 

Museum Society of Torquay Museum 

· While Brixham Heritage Museum could be funded via the new body if a prerequisite of Torbay 

Council, but preferably it would be funded as is, but a condition of funding would be around 

the use and contribution towards shared services  

· There would be a mixed economy of grants and commercial earning, explored further in 

section 4.6 below 

 

The capable body at the top of the “tree” would be the business operation of Torbay Museums; it 

is intended to be far more than simply a local funding body or “header tank” of grant money.  The 

simple rationale is that this senior body covers the business end of proceedings and the 

Society/Friends cover the community aspects. 

 

 

4.3 The Board Structure 

 

The board would be recruited based on the best skills-set for the job and while having a strong 

representation from Torbay a “house of talents” would be drawn from a wider geographical 

spread.  The need for skills rather than placemen is set out most clearly in Richard Smith’s letter 

referred to in section 2.7 above. 

 

However there should be a representative from both the Torquay Museum Society and Friends of 

Torre Abbey as well as Brixham Heritage Museum. 

 

Participation of senior players in other organisations should also be sought.  While this may create 

conflicts of interest the potential of networking and development are such that conflicts should be 

transparently managed rather than avoided.  Nick Powe, whose family runs Kent’s Cavern and who 

is behind the concept of a National Museum of Prehistory as well as founding the Geopark Trust 

and chairing Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust, has already indicated a willingness to be on the 

board.  As well as commercial and financial acumen, such an involvement should be one of the 

building blocks towards creating a really joined up approach. 

 

Page 104



 

17 

 

A strong board of robust talents will require a chair suitable for the occasion.  This will be a key 

leadership role and consideration as to likely candidates should be given at an early stage.  

 

 

4.4 HMRC and Cost Sharing Exemption 

 

On 17
th

 July 2012 HMRC issued “Guidance on the Cost Sharing Exemption”.  Although not 

exclusively targeted at charities, the guidance had them in mind in providing a practical way of 

implementing the “Big Society” ideal. 

 

Among its various ideas the Big Society proposed that larger charities could help their smaller 

brethren by providing typical back office support services to them.  Unfortunately the big 

drawback is that most larger charities tend to be VAT registered and most smaller charities tend 

not to be.  With the support services attracting 20% VAT all advantages were lost.  The HMRC cost 

sharing exemption sought to remedy this by offering a scenario where VAT would be exempt in 

such transactions. 

 

Disappointingly the cost sharing provisions introduced in July 2012 are very narrowly drawn and 

require all participators to be members of a legal entity.  These are explained in more detail in 

Appendix 1.  However of particular interest in terms of this options appraisal is that HMRC have 

set out their ideal structure for a cost sharing group.  The cost sharing group must be separate 

from its members, although owned and operated by the members for their cooperative benefit.  

The grouping can be a group of equals or one or more members may have effective control, but in 

all cases all members must have a legal interest in the cost sharing group.   

 

 

4.5 Other Parties to the Consortium 

 

The other key criteria for any prospective partnership or consortium is that it needs to have the 

flexibility to admit other players at a later date.  The National Centre for Stone Age Man (also 

known as Kent’s Trust Pre-History Centre) is an obvious example, but there may be others and 

many of these feature in the “Future Structures” chart of organisations below.   

 

 

 

  

Page 105



 

18 

 

4.6 Critical Mass and Economies of Scale 

 

The prevailing economic wisdom is that three organisations could come together and operate 

their services with substantial savings.  The most sizeable potential saving is around that of office 

administration, book-keeping and accounts, payroll and financial reporting. However such logic is 

both a fallacy and a gross over simplification. 

 

For example, looking at the smallest member of the triumvirate, Brixham Heritage Museum.  All of 

its accounting functions are undertaken by a volunteer treasurer and because of its size it is only 

required to submit to an independent examination which is undertaken on an honorary examiner 

at no cost.  As part of a larger group it would be subject to a full audit and full compliance regime 

from the Charity Commission.  All benefits of shared services would be illusory. 

 

However, in Torre Abbey’s case back office support costs for legal, human resources, estates 

management (but not maintenance), IT, and accounts/book-keeping/payroll come in at a high cost 

so there would be sizeable scope for cost cutting and rationalisation, however how real actual 

costs and actual savings are may be a matter for conjecture. 

 

Section 3.3 explored some of the critical mass savings and opportunities of existing service 

provision; however it is also relevant to consider new areas of activity that could provide added 

value, new areas that a consortium would be better placed to deliver than a single organisation: 

 

IT and Social Media 

Apparently if all the natural history museums in the world that had a William Pengelly item in their 

collection came together it would be a gathering akin to a United Nations meeting.  So while a 

physical gathering might not be possible could a virtual gathering via a social media link be 

possible? 

 

However new technology is much more than a gimmick, for an increasing number it is a way of 

life.  A museum that sees its prime sustainability as a visitor attraction needs to set out this part of 

its stall as seen through the eyes of a 12 year old.   That means the visitors being able to use their 

own iPhones and similar to log on and download information, graphic, narrative and similar 

(termed QR codes and similar to a bar code that could be on a wall, display case or piece of 

museum literature). Likewise Smart phones and “Apps” are relevant with many places of interest 

now having Apps that can be accessed simply by pointing your phone in their direction, releasing 

interactive material of sound and vision.  

 

Augmented Reality 

Augmented Reality is a live view of the world augmented by computer generated sensory input of 

video, graphics and even sound that is GPS linked.  For example via Augmented Reality a person 

could view an existing cliff or cave scene and then see the layers of time being peeled back to 

reveal the archaeological features and natural history beneath.   

 

Page 106



 

19 

 

Health and wellbeing 

The importance of the health and wellbeing to the museum sector is well documented, most 

recently in the Museums Association report of July 2012 entitled “Museums 2020”.  This heralds a 

move away from outputs (and frequently funding triggers) of simple visitor numbers to far wider 

impacts and outcomes.  The Localism Act and a regional and national move towards increasing 

procurement from the charity and voluntary sectors will be led by the contracting out of many 

health and welfare services. 

 

Museums are uniquely placed in society and are quietly doing the job of engaging many who 

would suffer from a lack of interest and purpose, depression, isolation and loneliness.  As these 

qualities and potentials are recognised further funding benefits should ensue (even if this means 

retaining and not losing funding) since there will be a realisation that without these facilities there 

will be an adverse impact on other related local authority budgets. 

 

While Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey and Brixham Heritage Museum could all develop their own 

health and wellbeing projects, the cumulative power, breadth and skills that the three could offer 

in concert would add much to the deliverable product and make any proposal of greater interest 

to a provider.  The idea of a one stop shop and a structure set-up and ready to go signals both cost 

savings and an ability to move quickly.  

 

 

4.7 The Longer Term Aspiration 

 

The overall aim is to achieve a mixed museum economy while maintaining clarity of purpose.  This 

means a diversity while avoiding the current situation where on occasions even the core players 

wonder what they are about and what their priorities are. This means making the whole greater 

than the sum of its parts as opposed to the current situation where the sum of the parts are 

actually greater than the whole. 

 

However while the structure needs to be clearly be described it needs to be flexible enough to 

allow new entrants in, those outer rings yet to be forged. 

 

The mixed economy also means participants not only buying from the consortium but selling too, 

for example the point made in 3.3 above of Philip Armitage/Brixham Heritage Museum, making 

their curatorial services available on a commercial basis. 

 

 

4.8 The Likely Obstacles to be Overcome 

 

The obstacles to be overcome in moving forward are threefold, namely: 

· Cultural 

· Operational 

· Funding 

Page 107



 

20 

 

 

The operational issues are primarily the next steps which are considered in section 5 below.  

Funding for what is essentially a re-engineering project is also considered in section 5, which 

leaves the greatest hurdle, that of cultural change. 

 

Undoubtedly it is cultural change, especially at Torquay Museum, that will be one of the greatest 

challenges.  The Society membership would need to support the approach outlined in this report 

for it to move ahead.  Such matters would be determined by Torquay Museum calling an 

Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) which is likely to require a 75% majority.  However it is 

difficult to comment specifically on the protocols and running of the EGM since the provisions in 

the existing Articles regarding such matters are out of date. 

 

If the recommendations in this report are adopted and a funding platform considered likely it 

would be advisable to start a dialogue with the Society’s membership as soon as possible.  Much 

can be gained from a genuinely interactive approach, however it can be time consuming and 

sometimes arduous.  

 

A part of that approach needs to be a hard headed appraisal of Torquay Museum’s financial 

position.  Without Arts Council England funding for 2013/14 and 2015/16 the Museum’s net 

current asset position would be getting perilously close to insolvency.  Because the fixed asset 

position is strong a body of Society opinion might see cash raised via a loan or mortgage as 

salvation, however this would be a short term expedient.  However, the Museum’s on-going 

financial position is such that even if funds could be borrowed the price would be high.  Interest 

and capital repayments would severely tax slender resources, so a loan would likely only delay the 

inevitable.  If that were to happen the membership would have precious little control over the 

receivers and it would be the building and the collection that the receivers would look to in 

payment of the debt.  

  

As commented above most operational matters are primarily next steps, however there are two 

aspects in terms of potential obstacles to be noted that will require further consideration if 

matters were to be progressed: 

· A review of the potential impact of changes on EU procurement rules in terms of services let to 

the consortium by Torbay Council and similar. 

· In terms of the Torquay Museum collection consider the recent Wedgwood charity case that 

suggests the Museum might consider ring-fencing its collection against unforeseen claims (in 

that case from a pension fund).   

 

 

  

Page 108



 

21 

 

4.9 Recommendations 

 

· Set-up the game plan (and script) for overcoming cultural reticence  

· Visualise the “capable body” the powers and scope it would have and list out those to be 

approached as potential board members 

· Decide who is going to be the executive lead on the process and which of the prospective 

board members might be chair and champion 

· Commence an informal due diligence process as a road map to plot the way forward 

· Prepare the new organisation’s business plan or at least the financial projections within it  

 

 

5 What Next? 
 

5.1 Funding 

 

This report can only set out the options, the so-called “doors to walk through”.  Conversations 

with Torbay Council are encouraging and supportive; board soundings at Torquay Museum suggest 

a positive and pragmatic sentiment and likewise Brixham Heritage Museum are receptive. 

 

The meeting with Arts Council England that formed part of this work also suggested a very 

supportive response talking of the potential of a substantial investment in re-engineering the 

Torbay museum sector providing the players were genuinely prepared to “walk the talk”. 

 

The building blocks therefore seem to be in place; consequently it is pertinent to consider what 

the next steps should be. 

 

 

5.2 Next Steps 

 

Appendix 3 sets out the legal next steps as proposed by the solicitors advising on the options 

appraisal (Charity Partner Richard King of Tozers, Exeter), but a summary of the key aspects are as 

follows: 

· Determine the likely ‘best fit’ corporate structure 

· Deal with the legal issues surrounding the current governing documents (Memorandum, 

Articles and similar) 

· Create a task group that is capable of becoming the shadow board 

· Agree heads of terms for all parties 

· Carry out due diligence 

· Consider whether TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings and Protection of Employment) is relevant 

· Create new structure and subsidiaries seeking Charity Commission approval that is the “capable 

body”, so often referred to in this report. 

Page 109



 

22 

 

· Formal meetings, appointments and changes 

· Draft service level agreements between parties 

· Deal with availability, access and security of collections 

· Establish all governance and operational policies 

 

Each stage will inform the next, especially around the due diligence process.  The next stage will 

also look to cost out the work set out above, establish a timeline and milestones and identify risks 

and contingencies.  But these can only be sensibly undertaken once the overall plan is seen as 

credible and ultimately achievable. 

 

 

  

Page 110



 

23 

 

Appendix 1:  Letter of Recommendations from Richard Smith, 

Director of the Tank Museum 

 

…I was really impressed by the way in which you have been able to attract funding from the HLF 

and Arts Council and I thought that the Museum was engaging and interesting. 

 

As promised, I am writing to you with some more observations about governance.  I will also send 

some thoughts on visitor experience and branding. 

 

Governance Structure 

 

As I mentioned in my last letter, the governance structure of the museum would be worthy of 

review.  It was clear from my visit that the Historical Society running the Museum is extremely 

effective as a society, but it is questionable whether it is equipped to provide governance of a 21st 

Century Museum. 

 

A museum board of trustees needs to be able to set policy and scrutinise activity to deliver the 

charitable objects of the organisation.    I normally represent a museum’s business with the 

schematic below: 

 

 

 

 

As you are very much aware, to be successful, a museum must operate as a successful tourist 

attraction.  This enables it to generate the funds to carry out its core activities in regards to the 

collections.  The two combined enable a museum to achieve its charitable objects sustainably.   

Effective governance involves directing strategy at each level and ensuring that the achievement of 

the organisation reflects the strategic intention. 

 

While annual election of trustees can be a very effective way of governing a historical society, 

keeping it both fresh in approach and ensuring that the wishes of the members are reflected in the 

operation, it has distinct disadvantages in the governance of a museum.  This is particularly the 

C
o
lle

c
t 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

te
 

Successful Business 

Charitable Objects 

Page 111



 

24 

 

case regarding the ability to set and audit a strategy and in the provision of appropriate expert 

views on both the commercial and museological aspects of a museum’s work. 

 

As I mentioned to you last week, at The Tank Museum, the most important long term initiative 

carried out by my predecessor was to review governance.  He had inherited a board comprising 

entirely of soldiers, most of whom were ex-officio posts. This led to a one-dimensional board 

without museum or business skills and with a rapid turnover.  By the time I arrived at The Tank 

Museum six years ago the board was appointed on a skills-basis, identifying the kind of person we 

needed and inviting people to join us.  This has led to a balanced team including professionals in 

museums, business, law, finance, media and academia. 

 

I would recommend that you examine the merits of de-merging the Historical Society and the 

Museum, setting the Museum up as a separate charity with its own board.  The Historical Society 

could continue to be represented on the Museum Board – for instance through the Chairman and 

Secretary of the Historical Society sitting as ex-officio trustees of the Museum. However the bulk of 

museum trustees should be appointed specifically for the skills they can offer.  I would also suggest 

that you consider a minimum term for a trustee of three years with the opportunity to extend for 

further terms with the agreement of the board. 

 

As we discussed, I would be happy to present to your board about how The Tank Museum went 

about restructuring our governance arrangements and the benefits that it has brought us. 

 

Richard Smith 

Director, Tank Museum 

  

Page 112



 

25 

 

Appendix 2: HMRC and Cost Sharing Exemption 
 

As explained in section 4, on 17
th

 July 2012 HMRC issued “Guidance on the Cost Sharing 

Exemption” as one of the ways of implementing the “Big Society” ideal. 

 

The concept was a device to overcome the charging of 20% VAT from one charity to another 

where they were acting jointly or sharing services.  Particularly relevant when one of the parties 

could not recover the VAT.  Unfortunately the cost sharing provisions are very narrowly drawn and 

require all participators to be members of a legal entity.  VAT exemption is available for  services 

provided by the cost sharing entity to its members where those services will be used for the 

exempt or non-business activities of the member and they are “directly necessary” for those 

activities where “directly necessary” means that the services will be used for at least 85% 

qualifying activities.  It should be noted that if any of the members have activities that are taxable 

for VAT purposes this could preclude the exemption from applying if the 85% test is not met.   

 

Taxable activities include income from shops or cafes and for some museums the admissions 

income could be taxable if the terms of the cultural exemption are not met.  In addition, the cost 

sharing entity must only claim exact reimbursement of costs from its member i.e. it must not make 

a profit although the charges to members can include indirect costs.   

 

As stated in 4.4 the cost sharing group must be separate from its members, although owned and 

operated by the members for their cooperative benefit.  The grouping can be a group of equals or 

one or more members may have effective control, but in all cases all members must have a legal 

interest in the cost sharing group.  If the cost sharing group buys in resources such as staff or IT 

costs it will not be able to recover the VAT on these costs to the extent that the resources are used 

to generate exempt income from the members.  This means that a cost sharing group will be most 

beneficial where the cost sharing group employees its own staff.   

 

 

  

Page 113



 

26 

 

Appendix 3: Charity solicitors, Tozers, list of next legal steps 
 

If the principle of an overarching body is approved by the participating museums (or at least their 

funders) the next (mainly legal) steps would be:  

· Flesh out the proposal as to the level of collaboration e.g. how flexible a structure is it to be?  

· Address any legal issues i.e. is it within their existing objects/powers? Is there permanent 

endowment?  

· Also address any employment implications  

· Secure trustee meetings to approve the proposal (if not already achieved)  

· Consultation/advice letters to members/’friends’?  

· Ensure that they are satisfied that it is legally and financially possible and in their charity’s 

interests  

· Form a task group as a ‘shadow board’ for the new undertaking  

· Agree Heads of Terms  

· Instruct accountants and solicitors to carry out due diligence on the participating museum 

bodies  

· Instructions to create and register the new charity and any trading subsidiary  

· Arrange members’ meetings of the participating bodies, especially if constitutional changes or 

even dissolution envisaged  

· Appoint new body as Trustee of the participating bodies?  

· Transfer agreement and disclosure letter (depending on chosen structure)?  

· Service level agreements between the ‘parent’ body and its ‘subsidiaries’  

· Agreements as to availability of collections etc.  

· Other policy documents including safeguarding, investments, reserves, risk assessment, H&S 

etc.  

· The order and timescale in which these are carried out will depend on the degree of co-

operation achieved and the type of structure chosen.  

 

 

 

Page 114



 
Torbay Museums: 

Options Appraisal for Future 
Governance 

 
Final Report 

 
 

Draft v2.2 
 

29th October 2013 
 

 
 

 
Black Radley Ltd 
jon_finch@blackradley.com 
 
www.blackradley.com 
 
Tel: 0845-226-0363 
Fax: 01694-722040 
 

Change log: 
 
Date Version No. Comment 
17th Sep 2013 V1.0 JF generated 
18th Sep 2013 V1.1 PL changes and additions 
19th Sep 2013 V1.2 JF review 
20th Sep 2013 V1.3 IW QA 
1st October 2013 V1.4 JF additions after Torbay meeting 
3rd October 2013 V1.5 IW review and additions 
4th October 2013 V1.6 JF additions after PL comments 
7th October 2013 V1.7 IW amends 
22nd October 2013 V1.8 JF amends after Project group feedback 
23rd October 2013 V2.0 PL review 
28th October 2013 V2.1 JF and IW additions 
29th October 2013 V2.2 IW QA 

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 4

Page 115



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 2 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 

Table of Contents 
 

1 Executive Summary ........................................................................ 3 
 

2 Introduction ................................................................................... 5 
 

3 Costs and income ........................................................................... 7 
 

4 Stakeholder Perspectives ................................................................. 9 
 

5 Possible Models ............................................................................ 10 
 

6 Financial Analysis .......................................................................... 11 
 

7 Recommendations ........................................................................ 15 
 

8 Implementation ............................................................................ 21 
 
Appendix 1: Project Process................................................................. 26 

Appendix 2: Options Analysis – Stakeholder Feedback ........................... 28 

Appendix 3: Governance Choice ........................................................... 30 

Appendix 4: Success Criteria Assessment .............................................. 34 

Appendix 5: Options Analysis – Legal/Governance Forms ....................... 39 

Appendix 6: Trustee Skills and Appointment .......................................... 43 
Appendix 7: Key Transition Issues ...................................................... 435 

Appendix 8: Options Analysis - Financial Assessment ............................. 47 

Appendix 9: Modelling Approach .......................................................... 51 
 

 

 
 
  

Page 116



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 3 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

1 Executive Summary 

The three Torbay museums operate on a lean basis.  None the less, without 
Council subsidy (in total £261k), each of them runs at a deficit. 
 
The Council is clear that it has no choice but to reduce their subsidy significantly, 
preferably to £100k by 2016/17: a drop of £161k.  In principle, to survive, Torbay 
museums have three possible options: 
 

1. Invest in jointly developing an ambitious, compelling museums offer, 
which boosts visitor numbers and helps drive local economic growth; 

2. Individual museums separately focus on the activities and assets which 
add most value to customers and potential customers, generating new 
revenues as a result, whilst ruthlessly cutting costs; 

3. Quickly move to a single, or shared, low cost organisation, with a clear 
emphasis on commercial revenues. 

 
In practice, the first is not possible.  We note that there is enthusiasm amongst 
some shareholders for the museums to play a significant role in repositioning the 
visitor offer for Torbay as a whole.  But this would take public sector investment: 
an investment which is not available. 
 
The document explores the other two options.  The conclusions are as follows. 
 

· It is highly unlikely that any form of sharing, cooperation or merger 
between the three can close the subsidy gap. 

· It is possible that a change in the museums’ governance model could 
result in an increase in commercial revenue (e.g. trading).  This “enterprise 

dividend” is associated with increased management freedoms; typically, a 
Council-run service moving to Trust, or a clearer distinction between a 
Trust’s executive and non-executive functions.  Even if such changes were 
made, they are unlikely to deliver sufficient net margin to close the gap. 

· Given the circumstances, it is hard to see a sustainable model for the three 
museums without closures and/or substantial reductions in activity. 

· The development of a new trust, incorporating the existing three 
museums, incorporating two of them, or incorporating some of what they 
do, could be counter-productive.  The evidence is clear: most mergers in 
both the public and private sectors fail to deliver all the expected 
outcomes.  Key stakeholders in the three museums have very different 
views and aspirations, the museums themselves are significantly different.  
Substantial management time is typically required to create stakeholder 
alignment.  This management time would be better spent on improving 
the individual museums’ commercial offer, and on capturing the resultant 
revenues, rather than dealing with the politics of complex change. 

 
In our view, therefore, Option 2 is the preferred approach.  Each of the 
Torbay Museums should focus on customer responsiveness.  This means that each 
of the owning bodies must: (1) challenge their management teams to generate 
new revenues; and (2) give them the operational and decision-making space to do 
so.  The additional income, combined with site by site cost cutting, plus the impact 
of positive customer feedback on Council budgeting, may mean a sustainable 
model can be achieved. 

Page 117



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 4 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 
We are aware that we were asked to show how Option 3 might work.  Can a 
combined or merged museum model deliver more than Option 2?  In our view, it 

is possible - though it is unlikely.  There are costs that could be shared, but 
the three organisations are already lean.  A joint operation may be able to 
generate more new revenue that the individual parts.  But, to work, it would 
require: (1) enthusiasm and support for close cooperation or merger from key 
stakeholders from the outset; and (2) a commitment to giving management the 
operational freedoms and challenge which generate real enterprise.  It is not clear 
that either of these is in place.  In any case, such an approach would almost 
certainly not close the funding gap. 
 
If the three museums are committed to this third option then, in order to give it 
the best chance of success, we recommend it should incorporate all (not part) of 
the three museum’s functions, be an independent trust, focus on a small number 

of customer propositions that have broad appeal, and quickly establish a Shadow 
Board and a transition plan, this way forward is mapped out in detail in sections 7 
and 8.  This is because the Torbay museums are facing a real, severe and joint 
financial crisis.  If they are to survive, and to do so through working together, they 
must spend as little time as possible on conversations amongst themselves, and as 
much time as possible on building new revenue streams and a sustainable way 
forward. 

  

Page 118



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 5 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

2 Introduction 

This document sets out observations and recommendations on the future 
governance of Torbay Museums.  It builds on a previous options appraisal, seeking 
to identify the detail which might underpin the recommended option. 

2.1 The Requirement: Governance Options 

In October 2012 Torre Abbey, Torquay and Brixham Heritage Museums were 
successful in gaining a Renaissance Strategic Funds grant from the Arts Council for 
England.  The Future Museums Project was set up as a result of this. 
 
The project sought to ensure the museums move towards a more sustainable 
future, in part by identifying and assessing more effective future business models 
for museum delivery. 
 
An initial options appraisal was carried out by Devon Square Partners Limited 
during the early part of 2013.  The report found that the current method of 
operation was not ideal.  This initial work envisaged that a new higher level body 
would be created that would be the commercial equivalent of a holding company. 
It would represent and galvanise the business part of Torbay Museums, freeing up 
Torquay Museum Society and Torbay Council from main line commercial 
considerations.  It proposed that while Brixham Heritage Museum is part of the 
‘consortium club’, it maintains its own legal standing and current arrangements. 
 
The museums appointed Black Radley Culture to carry out further work on the 
options appraisal for the future governance of the three museums.  In particular 
the museums wanted this work to drill down into the detail of what a new trust 
would look like and the delivery and financial benefits this brings. 

2.2 The Context 

The recession, the change of government, and tough public sector settlements 
have all speeded up a process of change which was already taking hold in the 
cultural sector.  A market driven by greater user expectation, more choice, and 
greater demand for accessibility was driving a focus on improvement and customer 
engagement.  At the same time, Local Authorities are in the process making cuts 
of around 30% or more; many are looking at redefining the way that local 
government services are delivered.  Universal services such as museums, and the 
broader cultural sector, are experiencing significant budget reductions.  
 
The museums of Torbay are situated in the second largest population centre in 
Devon.  Torbay has 134,000 residents compared to Plymouth’s 258,700 and 
Exeter’s 119,600.  Torbay falls within the top 20% most deprived local authority 
areas in England for the rank of average score and the rank of local concentration. 
21,000 (15%) of residents live in areas considered in the top 10% most deprived 
in England.  Deprivation in the area is continuing to worsen.  On the index of 
multiple deprivation Torbay has a high score of 26.8 compared to 16.89 in SW and 
19.5 for England as whole with 23.4% of under 16s living in low income 
households (Torbay).  
 
There are three accredited museums within Torbay - the English Riviera, all at 
least in part funded by Torbay Council: 

Page 119



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 6 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 
- Torre Abbey was founded in 1196 and is Torquay's most historic building. 

As well as its abbey ruins it houses a nationally important collection of 
paintings and antiques. 

 
- Torquay Museum is Devon’s oldest museum, created in 1845 and is still 

owned and managed by its parent Society.  It is a registered charity.  The 
museum houses international important geological, archaeological and 
ethnographic collections.  A variety of temporary exhibitions and a 
programme of events are delivered throughout the year. 
 

- Brixham Heritage Museum was founded by Brixham Museum & History 
Society in 1958.  It tells the story of the Riviera's oldest town, from the 
Stone Age through to the present day, using a strong nautical flavour. 
Particular emphasis is given to Brixham’s fishing and ship building 

industries, also to the Berry Head Napoleonic Fort and Brixham’s 
prehistoric ‘Bone’ Caverns. 

2.3 Methodology: Balanced Enterprise Planning 

An effective methodology for this project must: 
 

· Review and summarise the current state of the museums; 

· Robustly assess and investigate the financial position of the museums; 

· Identify the current and potential challenges and develop appropriate 

options in response; 

· Test the viability of the options and appetite for change (against 

stakeholder, partnership and wider contexts); 

· Using the above, work with the relevant partners and key stakeholders to 

agree criteria by which possible options should be judged; 

· Model possible options, analyse risks and issues. 

We have used an approach based on our Balanced Enterprise Planning 
methodology.  To decide between service and governance options, the key is to 
recognise that “form follows function”.  The right structural answer is dictated 
by the nature of what the structure is there to achieve.  Organisational vitality 
requires an alignment between the way we are and what we do. 
 
The form of the museums in Torbay (their governance structure) must support 
the right balance of operational, financial, and political functioning. 
  

Page 120



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 7 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

3 Costs and income 

3.1 Existing costs and income 

Black Radley Culture collated the 2013/14 budgets for the three organisations, 
adjusted for year to date performance where applicable, to understand the existing 
costs and income and thereby identify the financial implications of any governance 
change.  The table below shows the result of that exercise. 
 

 
 
Note: in the absence of a 2013/14 budget Brixham figures are 2012/13 actuals. 
  

Torre 

Abbey

Torquay 

Museum

Brixham 

Museum
13/14

Admissions & gift aid 83,000 99,000 9,156 191,156

ACE grant 140,000 140,000

HLF 39,500 39,500

Happy Museum 20,000 20,000

Other grants 9,500 16,846 26,346

Fundraising 1,000 48,000 7,875 56,875

Trading 54,500 44,500 6,348 105,348

Subscriptions 14,000 2,441 16,441

Rents 40,000 96 40,096

Investment 4,000 367 4,367

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
178,500 418,500 43,129 640,129

Payroll (201,700) (170,000) (33,717) (405,417)

ACE payroll (113,000) (113,000)

Happy Museym payroll (14,000) (14,000)

ACE project (33,000) (33,000)

HLF project (39,500) (39,500)

Happy Museum spend (6,000) (6,000)

Fees (5,000) (28,200) (100) (33,300)

Establishment (75,600) (80,700) (7,526) (163,826)

Trading (22,500) (12,000) (2,739) (37,239)

Admin/society (6,400) (9,000) (2,047) (17,447)

Curatorial (24,365) (4,000) (1,291) (29,656)

Engagement/marketing (23,500) (7,000) (4,891) (35,391)

Exhibitions (13,300) (13,300)

Education & outreach (2,000) (1,762) (3,762)

Other (7,300) (297) (7,597)

Governance costs 0

Central costs 0

Capital (3,000) (3,000)

Total expenditure (366,365) (534,700) (54,370) (955,435)

Operating deficit (187,865) (116,200) (11,241) (315,306)

Torbay Council subsidy 187,865 76,500 20,000 284,365

Net (deficit)/surplus 0 (39,700) 8,759 (30,941)

Admission income as % of total income 46% 24% 21% 30%

Torbay Council subsidy as % of total 

expenditure
51% 14% 37% 30%

Trading income as % of total income 31% 11% 15% 16%

Staff costs as % of total expenditure 55% 56% 62% 56%

Page 121



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 8 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 
The key points to note are: 
 

· All museums operate at a deficit before Torbay Council’s subsidy is 
included.  The subsidy as a proportion of total expenditure, including 
project spend, varies from 14% (Torquay), 37% (Brixham) and 51% 
(Torre Abbey). 

· The subsidy from Torbay Council accounts for the highest proportion of 
any funding source; 

· Torquay Museum has produced a deficit budget even after the Torbay 
Council subsidy, this has been adjusted by management indicate to reflect 
the fact that current trading is below budget.  The Torquay Museum cash 
position has been supported by a £100k loan from a member which is 
repayable in five instalments starting from April 2014; 

· Staff costs account for 56% of the total aggregate expenditure of the 
three museums; 

· The largest cost caption after staffing is establishment; 
· The ACE grant of £140k is used mainly to deliver projects and is not 

certain after 2014/15. 
  

Page 122



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 9 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

4 Stakeholder Perspectives 

If there is not a clear and agreed purpose for the new or changed organisation, a 
governance/restructuring exercise can use up significant management time, 
stakeholder goodwill, legal fees and consultancy costs.  If key decision makers 
(“stakeholders”) are not of a common mind about the organisational purpose, then 
new structures will add no value.  The phrase “form follow function” is crucial in all 

governance reviews, and has particular resonance for Torbay. 
 
Appendix 2 summarises stakeholder opinion generated during this project.  
Appendix 3 describes how those opinions were turned into a set of success criteria. 
 
In summary, key stakeholders wanted the future museums set up to: (1) be more 
commercial in orientation; and (2) give them continued close control.  There is an 
unresolved tension between these themes.  In addition, there was no clear story 
concerning how the three museums complemented each other from a customer 
perspective. 
 
An ambitious model for Torbay museums might be shaped around the need to 
drive up overnight visits from high net worth individuals.  Given the state of public 
sector budgets, this would probably require some form of joint venture with a 
private sector player (e.g. Kents Caverns).  This, as a consequence, would almost 
certainly require the new venture to have a fair degree of freedom, in the near 
future, from the Council and Torquay Museum’s members. 
 
At the other end of the spectrum, a containment approach to the museums, driven 
by the need for a reduced Council subsidy, would require a hands-on contract 
management approach from Council staff, putting operational pressure on the 
three organisations to share staff/activities. 
 
These are just two points on a possible spectrum.  The governance models for 
each are radically different.  This is why the initial options appraisal may have been 
less than conclusive: it was not clear what the question was. 
 
For this reason we asked that Torbay museums stakeholders spend some time 
working through: (1) why change is needed; and (2) what success looks like.  In 
response the stakeholders gave Black Radley Culture a clear message.  Because of 
the reducing public subsidies available to Torbay Council, the recent 
redevelopment at Torre Abbey and the financial challenges facing Torquay 
Museum, a cost reduction/closely controlled option was the only realistic way 
forward.  Stakeholders understood that such an approach would limit their possible 
ambitions with regard to the quality and scale of the product across the three 
museums. 
 
It is none the less not clear that some key stakeholders have grasped just how 
significant Council subsidy is to each organisation’s viability, and therefore the 
scale of the potential crisis they collectively face. 
 

Page 123



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 10 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

5 Possible Models 

In principle, there is a wide range of governance, operational and financial 
perspectives/options available to the museums in Torbay. 
 
The Governance options include: 
 

· The three museums operating together; 
· Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey operating together; 
· The three organisations operating independently; 
· A combination of some or all of the three with Kents Cavern. 

 
In each case, the structural form(s) used to underpin the approach could be any 
one of the following: 
 

· An informal or semi-formal partnership; 
· An independent organisation, closely tied to the Council; 
· An independent organisation, at arm’s length from the Council; 
· Radical outsourcing. 

 
There are a range of possible Operational options, including: 
 

· Ambitious/strategic – Geopark, National Centre of the Stone Age, Devon-
wide cooperation; 

· Tactical – establish a heritage attraction in Brixham town centre and on 
Torquay’s seafront, combine with other (fair weather) leisure operators to 

develop counter-cyclical resourcing approach; 
· Containment – maintain existing facilities within a reducing budget ceiling, 

perhaps by extending the Brixham Museum volunteering model. 
 
There are also a several Financial options, or perspectives, in which key 
stakeholders show interest: 
 

· An increase in public sector investment in museums, to drive visitor 
numbers, fill local hotel beds and generate economic growth; 

· A year-on-year reduction in Torbay Council’s spend on museums, in the 

light of tight budgets; 
· A partnership with a private sector player, creating a more coherent and 

sustainable set of visitor attractions. 
 

These options are explained in more detail in Appendix 4.  

Page 124



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 11 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

6 Financial Analysis 

6.1 Financial Models 

Beneath this complexity, there are essentially a limited number of financial models. 
 

1. Carry on as now, organisations working and governed separately 
(with Torbay Council subsidy cut substantially across the three 
museums). 

2. As above, but with individual focused cost cutting and individual 
enterprise dividend. 

3. Joined up, current stakeholder and operational differences not 
effectively resolved (subsidy reduced, some costs cut, but no 
enterprise dividend because of management distraction) 

4. Joined up with enthusiasm (subsidy reduced, some costs cut, 
enterprise dividend realised - the enterprise model) 

5. Joined up with external commercial (e.g. Kents Cavern or South 
West Lakes Trust) 

 
Summary income and expenditure accounts for models 1 to 4 are shown in the 
table below: 
 

 
 

Model 1 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Income 662,994 576,629 436,629 436,629

Expenditure (955,435) (873,225) (705,651) (705,651)

Torbay Council subsidy 261,500 261,500 222,275 188,934

Surplus/(Deficit) (30,941) (35,096) (46,747) (80,088)

Model 2 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Income 662,994 591,454 467,021 483,365

Expenditure (955,435) (874,027) (707,223) (708,036)

Torbay Council subsidy 261,500 261,500 222,275 188,934

Surplus/(Deficit) (30,941) (21,073) (17,927) (35,736)

Model 3 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Income 662,994 567,071 417,991 392,924

Expenditure (955,435) (856,144) (666,232) (671,633)

Torbay Council subsidy 261,500 261,500 222,275 188,934

Surplus/(Deficit) (30,941) (27,573) (25,966) (89,775)

Model 4 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Income 662,994 593,931 472,483 491,867

Expenditure (955,435) (858,006) (670,049) (679,555)

Torbay Council subsidy 261,500 261,500 222,275 188,934

Surplus/(Deficit) (30,941) (2,575) 24,709 1,245

Page 125



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 12 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

All four models show very challenging results, three are clearly non-viable with a 
reduction of Torbay Council subsidy to £189k by 2016/17.  This level of subsidy is 
more than the target of £100k expressed during stakeholder discussions. 
 
It should be noted that Torre Abbey made a transfer from reserves in 2013/14 of 
£22k which will not be available in 2014/15.  This is in essence a reduction in core 
funding in addition to the reduction in Torbay Council subsidy. 
 
Model 5 is very difficult to assess at this stage.  It would depend on a number of 
variables such as the nature of the organisation that the museums were in 
partnership with or outsourced to.  A relationship with a highly commercial 
organisation such as Kents Cavern would look very different to a relationship with 
the likes of South West Lakes Trust. 
 
The detailed workings and assumption behind the models are contained in 
Appendix 9.  
 
Model Summary 

The modelling demonstrates that, unsurprisingly, the 2nd and 4th options are the 
most sustainable ways forward.  On paper the 4th option seems to offer the best 
financial outcome.  However to achieve this model will require significant 
realignment of operational, management and stakeholder processes and 
perspectives.  The work around the governance project has already used up a 
considerable amount of resource across the three organisations and will continue 
to do so.  Therefore delivering this model carries significant risk with it.  Based on 
our previous experience and our analysis of the situation in Torbay we have 
identified the key risks as:  
 
• Lack of internal operational alignment; 
• Stakeholder lack of support/sense of loss of assets 
• Lack of management freedom and enterprise 
• Legal and change overheads obscure management focus 
• Trying to be all things to all people 
• Costs are not cut sufficiently 
• Council cuts too fast 
 
Unless these risks are mitigated thoroughly, the return on investment of any move 
to an independent vehicle is likely to be significantly limited.  On balance 
therefore we have to highlight Model 2 as the most likely to succeed in 

the current financial and operational climate. 
 
Section 7 considers how the risks we have highlighted can be mitigated. 
 

6.2 Finance under independent trust 

Most of the finances of the service are not dependent upon the governance 
structure. In order to consider the financial effect of an independent trust as 
outlined in Models 3 and 4 the following headings have been identified as being 
affected: 
 

· Enterprise Dividend; 
· Taxes; 

Page 126



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 13 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

· Philanthropic income; 
· Central costs; 
· Governance costs. 

 
Each of the five headings and the relevant issues are explained further below.  
Some of the headings have an investment dimension in the model, recognising 
that generating new income may require up-front investment. 
 

Enterprise Dividend 

Under the independent trust model the service should be able to be more 
enterprising and innovative.  This will entail exploiting existing sources of 
income, such as retail and catering, more effectively and accessing new 
sources of income. 
 
The enterprise dividend will only be realised by staff within the new 
organisation changing their behaviour and taking advantage of the 
freedoms which will come with independence.  This will require changes in 
both the way in which the service is directed by the Board and 
management and by the way front line staff deliver the service.  These 
changes in behaviours are not easily realised and not all staff will be 
comfortable with the new ways of working.  Evidence from comparator 
organisations indicates that such a cultural shift can take some years to 
embed. 

Taxes 

If the delivery organisation is a registered charity there are certain tax 
benefits that can be realised.  The reduction in the National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) represents a reduction in the rate charge to the museum 
service.  As a charity the organisation might be able to claim an 80% 
reduction in its non-domestic rates and might be able to get relief for the 
other 20% if the Council thought it appropriate.  There are also certain 
VAT exemptions including paying a lower rate of VAT on fuel and the 
ability to not charge VAT on some sources of income.  Torquay and 
Brixham museums are already registered charities. 

Philanthropic Income 

Evidence suggests that there is often a reluctance to donate money to a 
service that is part of a local authority so an independent organisation 
should be a more acceptable vehicle for philanthropic income both 
corporate and personal.  Fundraising requires a specific skillset and is a 
long term activity, Black Radley Culture experience is that that it also 
involves a change in culture in newly independent organisations; this 
change can take some time to occur.  Any existing fundraising strategy will 
need to be refreshed under these governance options. 
 
Independent organisations might be able to access funding from trusts 
and foundations that were not open to the service as part of the local 
authority.  Being a registered charity may assist in accessing new sources 
of income.  Conversely there is also the risk that an independent 
organisation might not be able to access some sources of funding which 
were available to the Council. 

Page 127



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 14 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Central Costs 

Torre Abbey is currently charged approximately £200,000 internally within 
the Council for the provision of certain services.  These services may 
include gas & electricity and the provision of finance, property, HR and IT 
support.   
 
An independent delivery organisation might still choose to have these 
goods and services provided by Torbay Council but would also have the 
option of accessing the market for cheaper and/or effective services. 

Governance costs. 

Under the new organisation options being considered there will be 
additional governance costs, such as Companies House and Charity 
Commission compliance and the costs of running the board.  The scale of 
such costs is hard to judge but is rarely more than a few thousand pounds 
per annum. 

  

Page 128



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 15 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Recommendation 2a: The three 
museums combine their staffing 

teams and operational processes 

as soon as is feasible. 

Recommendation 1: Management 

and stakeholder focus should be 
on commercial revenue 

generation, not on merger.  

7 Recommendations 

Amongst some stakeholders there is an appetite for a robust and business-like 
approach to attracting far greater numbers of high spending visitors to the area, 
using a high quality heritage service as a draw.  However the way forward needs 
to realistic, mindful of the public funding situation and the desire of the current 
governing bodies to retain close control in the short and medium term.   
 
The reality is, therefore, that the focus has to be on (1) sharpening of operational 
focus and (2) tight cost control.  If trustees and members are prepared to give up 
a level of direct control over their respective museums, there may also be a focus 
on (3) generating greater commercial income.  This last point is crucial.  This 
“enterprise dividend” is only likely to be possible where a greater critical 

mass has been achieved (through merger) and greater management 

freedoms have been granted to the team.  Such freedoms might include: 
 

- The opportunity to raise or reduce admission prices; 
- The ability to reallocate resources, from curatorial areas to marketing for 

instance; 
- The opportunity to focus specifically on particular market segments;  

 
In our experience if operational freedoms and merger are not possible, the cost of 
achieving governance change is likely to be greater than the savings made.  It 
would be better not to change current structures and simply to allow cuts to play 
out as they will.   
 
The primary recommendation for the three museums is therefore that: 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
However If the governing bodies of Brixham Heritage Museum, Torquay Museum 
and Torre Abbey are committed to moving towards merger and granting the 
necessary operational freedoms, then we propose the following governance, 
structural, operational and financial recommendations.  

7.1 Governance Options 

Whilst all three museums have achieved notable successes acting independently, 
they all face significant financial and operational challenges in the future.  The 
contextual analysis and stakeholder feedback provided some strong messages 
around governance and as a result three of the six success criteria outlined in 
detail in Appendix 3 refer specifically to the need for a more joined and efficient 
approach across the three museums. 
 
We therefore recommend that in the first instance, and as a potential first step to 
a move towards an independent vehicle: 
 
 

 

Page 129



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 16 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Recommendation 2b: Create a 

new independent organisation to 
take on the running of all three 

museums from 2016. 

Recommendation 2c: A single 

independent museums trust, 
closely bound to the existing 

governing bodies through 

specified interfaces and trustee 
composition. 

Such an approach will ensure that the three sites work together effectively; it will 
allow a coherent approach to strategic planning and quickly provide a single point 
of contact for stakeholders such as Torbay Council and ACE to work with. 

7.2 Structural Options 

If the alignment of staffing teams and operational process moves forward 
successfully, and the existing governing bodies maintain their willingness to allow 
the museums the necessary management freedoms, then we also make the 
following structural recommendations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation 2c pays particular reference to the views emerging from the 
stakeholder discussions concerning reducing public subsidies and a desire 
expressed by all existing governing bodies to remain close to the assets, in 
particular the buildings and the collections. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The organisation would be a Company Limited by Guarantee, which would seek 
charitable status.  Staff would become employees of the new organisation.  The 
major assets would remain the property of the relevant governing bodies. 
 
Specifically Torbay Council, Torquay Museum Society and the existing board of 
Brixham Heritage Museum will pass on all aspects of the day to day running of the 
museums to the new trust.  Torbay Council and Torquay Museum Society will 
retain ownership of the key assets and pass on management to the Trust through 
a service level agreement; Torbay Council will also manage its subsidy through 
such an agreement.  Brixham Heritage Museum Board may want to pass on 
ownership of its collections to the new vehicle or may wish to retain ownership and 
manage through a SLA as well. 
 
This option will allow Torbay Council, Torquay Museum Society and the existing 
Brixham Heritage Museum Board to have representation on the Board of the new 
vehicle, and the business plan will be agreed by these three interested parties.  
However the new organisation must also to be given sufficient freedom and 
flexibility to seek out the enterprise dividend that is potentially available to 
independent vehicles, and to deliver the innovation required to meet the 
challenges ahead. 
 

Page 130



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 17 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Recommendation 2e: As the three 
museums move towards a new single 

vehicle, the prime management task 
needs is to tightly focus the museum 

functioning within the existing scope and 

customer offer, i.e. concentrate on a 
small number of key areas that have a 
powerful appeal. 

Recommendation 2d: Any move 

to a single vehicle is staggered 
over three years.  Year 1 involves 

an operational alignment, Year 2 
involves a strategic alignment, 

with the creation of a shadow 
board, and Year 3 sees the formal 

creation of the new vehicle. 

Nevertheless we are mindful of the first success criteria outlined in Appendix 3, 
and the clear message given by stakeholders such as and Torbay Council that they 
would like to remain in control of the key assets at least in the short term for a 
variety of political and operational issues, therefore we also suggest that: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It should be pointed out that a speedier move towards merger and management 
freedoms is possible if the governing bodies were prepared to relinquish control 
earlier.  Such a change in pace might result it: 

- A quicker release of the potential enterprise dividend; 
- An earlier opportunity to secure grants and funds from Trusts and 

Foundations; 
- More resource being used across the three museums to increase and 

diversify income generation. 

7.3 Operational Options 

Discussions with stakeholders, and Torbay Council in particular, illustrated the very 
challenging public funding environment, and it seems clear that the Council is not 
able to invest sizeable sums into the museum sector in the medium term.  
Therefore any option here needs to be driven by the need to reduce public 
subsidies.  The opportunity to secure grants from sources such as the Heritage 
Lottery Fund and the Arts Council will remain, but the chances of securing such 
funding will be severely diminished if public subsidies are being significantly 
reduced: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In practice this means a move away from the traditional cultural sector approach 
of trying to be all things to all people.  Whilst we have not had an opportunity to 
undertake a thorough analysis of audiences, programmes and collections, we 
would suggest that: 
 

Page 131



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 18 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Recommendation 2f: Serious 

consideration is given to exploiting 
synergies with other cultural 

organisations in the locality, such 
as the Geopark TCCT and Kents 

Cavern.  The opportunities 

provided by the relocation of 
Brixham and Heritage Museums 

should also be looked into. 

- Resources are allocated immediately to assessing the customer data 
currently available from such sources as Torbay Council to assess audience 
needs and expectations. 

- Resources are refocused more generally towards areas, such as marketing, 
customer care and programming, which generate and sustain larger 
audiences and income generation; 

- Programmes, permanent displays and buildings are focused specifically on 
clearly identified target markets; 

- A more flexible approach is taken in such areas as curatorial and 
collections, where instead of having a fixed staff resource, budgets are 
allocated which can be used to bring in the necessary expertise around 
particular collection areas as and when required; 

- The collections across all three sites are reviewed; 
- It is also apparent from the work we have undertaken that some sizeable 

resources across the three museums have been allocated in the past to 
working with hard to reach groups from the local community.  Whilst such 
work is laudable, we would recommend that this type of engagement is 
only carried out if it is commissioned or funded by an external agency on a 
full costs recovery basis. 
 

We anticipate that this might mean that Brixham Heritage Museum decides that its 
most popular and compelling visitor draw relates to maritime history, and ensures 
that the majority of conservation, curatorial, volunteer and marketing resources 
are focused accordingly.  Torquay Museum might focus around Agatha Christie, 
and create stronger links with the Geopark, whilst Torre Abbey might concentrate 
on being a historic house with accompanying art collection. 
 
The challenging budgetary environment will mean that those working across the 
three museums will need to consider a range of innovative and challenging 
approaches to saving money.  For instance we suggest that an increased use of 
volunteering will be considered and the experience gathered by colleagues at 
Brixham Heritage Museum will be valuable in driving such a development. 
 
In addition stakeholders were at pains to point out that links to such organisations 
as Kents Cavern and the Geopark should be exploited by the museums in the 
locality.  Whilst such engagement will prove challenging in a reducing subsidy 
environment any link with an enterprise focused cultural organisation such as 
Kents Cavern should prove beneficial, it will also allow limited resources to be 
stretched further. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 132



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 19 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Recommendation 2g: The 
museums reduce their dependence 

on Council subsidy by further 
cutting of costs where possible and 

seizing opportunities to further 

diversify the funding base. 

Recommendation 2h: The subsidy 

from Torbay Council is reduced to 
£200,000 in 2016/17, and 

reduced by no more than 10% 

each of the following two years. 

7.4 Financial Options 

There was a clear message from stakeholders that the driver must be to reduce 
the dependence on the Torbay Council subsidy amongst the three museums, there 
is an expectation that the museums should work together efficiently, sharing staff 
and services.  Torbay Council has indicated that subsidy levels will decrease from 
2015/2016, and that no guarantees can be made about the existing support to the 
three sites beyond 2016/2017.  Costs will need to be cut, services targeted and 
assets sweated effectively.   
 
Therefore we recommend that: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
However it should be emphasised at this point that the three museums are already 
lean, the modelling we have undertaken demonstrates that any savings through 
cost cutting and efficiencies are likely to be small, in the region of a few tens of 
thousands of pounds at most.  Our financial analysis also indicates that it will be 
very difficult for any new vehicle to operate sustainably in the short term with a 
subsidy level of less than £200,000 from Torbay Council.  In order that the new 
vehicle is given every chance to succeed we propose that: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.5 Implications for Stakeholders 

The recommendations we have described above will go some way towards 
meeting the short and medium term needs of Torbay Council and Torquay 
Museum Society.  It will allow these organisations to retain direct control of the 
collections and buildings in the short term.  These recommendations will also 
enable the current governing bodies to have significant influence over the new 
independent vehicle through board membership and input into the service level 
agreement.  It will place the museums in the most favourable position to realise 
efficiencies, undertake cost cutting and to become more fleet of foot if they are 
given the suitable management freedoms.   
 
The recommendations provide the existing Board of Brixham Heritage Museum 
with a choice; they could pass on their collection assets to the new trust, secure 
the necessary representation on the Board of the independent vehicle and disband.  
They could also continue in some form, retaining ownership of the collections and 

Page 133



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 20 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

handing over day to day responsibility through some form of service level 
agreement. 
 
On an on-going basis the Torquay Museum Society will be able to negotiate a 
suitable agreement with the new independent organisation which will allow such 
privileges as the hosting of the lecture programme and access to the local history 
resource to continue in a similar vein as before.  However this limited investment 
approach may restrict the ability of the new vehicle and each of the museums to 
take advantage of tactical and enterprising opportunities. It will also limit their 
ability to maintain a high quality product in the medium term.  There are also 
immediate challenges which need to be overcome, such as the precarious nature 
of the Torquay Museum’s finances, before any significant change can take place. 
 
  

Page 134



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 21 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

8 Implementation 

This section outlines how the transition to the independent vehicle described in 
Section 7 should be managed.  A detailed financial plan should be developed from 
our model, taking into account stakeholder expectations, income sources, and the 
likely requirements of the three existing governing bodies.   

8.1 Schedule 

If a new, independent organisation is to be created, a managed transition over 
several stages would be the lowest risk and lowest cost way to make the 
transition.   Such an approach also fits well with the clear messages given by the 
existing governing bodies of the three museums where a staggered process has 
been suggested, taking place over three years. 
 

- Year 1 (2014/2015): The first year focuses on developing an operational 
alignment across the three sites.  This will include developing a shared 
strategic plan, a coming together of services and a focus on cost cutting. 
 

- Year 2 (2015/2016): In the second year there will be a continued process 
of operational alignment, along with the early stages of the creation of the 
new vehicle to govern the three museums.  This will include the 
recruitment and setting up of a “Shadow” Board. 
 

- Year 3 (2016/2017): The final year will see the formal creation of the new 
vehicle, with a Board and executive in place to take it forward.  

 
A shadow approach to independence should be adopted, allowing internal 
interfaces to be agreed and practised (e.g. with property and HR support in the 
case of Torre Abbey) alongside the on-going operational and management 
alignment before legal independence. 
 

A high level draft plan is shown below.  The figures on the right hand side of the 
plan give a broad estimate of the amount of resource required to undertake the 
various aspects of the timetable. The “internal” column indicates the amount of 

time that is likely to be required from the three museums to undertake the 
governance change.  The “external” column indicates the number of days of 

support that will be required from individuals beyond the three organisations with 
particular areas of expertise (e.g. HR, legal, marketing) 
 

Page 135



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 22 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 

8.2 Implementation Checklist 

 
A check list of key issues to consider is recorded below, see Appendix 7 for a 
detailed list of key transition issues: 
 
Category Item 

Board 

· Governance parameters 
· Recruitment 
· Strategic planning 
· Performance measurement/management 

Team 

· Restructure 
· Leadership 
· Communications 
· Morale 
· Cultural change 
· TUPE 
· Pensions 

Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Operational Alignment Internal External

Operational Review 5

Agree service configuration 3 2

Efficiences implemented X 5

Museums acting as one business

Operational Review 2 X 5

Agree core processes & interfaces X 3 3

People

Shadow Board recruit X 5

Strategic Focus 3 1

Organisation structure 3 3

Staff consultation 3 3

Partner consult 3

Board recruit X 5

Senior Management recruit 5 5

Staff matching 5

Plan

5 year business plan X 5 5

Legals

Creation of new vehicle scoped 3

Heads of Terms X 3 1

Operating Agreement with funders 5

Company formation X 1

Business Transfer Agreement X 3 3

Regulatory compliance 3

Comms

Project comms plan X 5

Project comms 24

Launch Marketing 3 3

Go live launch X 4

Notes 109 32

Milestones at the end or completion of a process marked by X

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

Days

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3Year 0

Page 136



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 23 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Category Item 

Enterprise 
· Focus 
· Investment 
· Implementation 

Delivery 
· Form 
· Geography 
· Process 

Marketing 
· Positioning 
· Implementation 

Finance 

· Asset ownership 
· Asset maintenance 
· Internal Audit 
· External Audit 
· Budget 
· Capital budget 

Risk Management 

· Transition risks 
· New organisations risks 
· Risk register 
· Risk management 

Interface 
Management 

· Council strategic relations 
· Torquay Museum Society 
· Brixham Heritage Museum Trustee Board 
· HR 
· Finance 
· IT 
· Property 
· Marketing 
· External partners and suppliers 

Change process 
· Transition project management 
· Transition budget 

Legals 

· Activities 
· Assets 
· Liabilities 
· Contracts 
· Intellectual property rights 
· Employees 
· Equipment 
· Furniture and fittings 
· Lease/property 
· Transfer date 
· Tax 
· Compliance 
· Charitable status 

 

8.3 The New Vehicle 

The recommendations identify that an incorporated, charitable company limited by 
guarantee is the most appropriate vehicle for the museums in Torbay (see 
appendix 5 for a more detailed summary of the options available).  This is the form 
most commonly used by both long standing independent cultural organisations 

Page 137



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 24 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

(such as SS Great Britain) and those museum services which have recently been 
reprovisioned by local authorities (e.g. Birmingham Museums Trust). 
 
The fact this it is incorporated will provide reassurance to potential trustees and 
staff about any liabilities that the new vehicle might generate or inherit (such as 
pension liabilities).  The charitable status of the vehicle may provide a number of 
financial benefits as currently realised by Torquay and Brixham Museums. 

8.4 Organisational Ownership and Control 

The new vehicle will be governed by a Board of non-executive directors, with an 
executive team reporting to this Board.  The existing governing bodies of the three 
museums should not comprise more than 20% of the membership of the Company 
as that may indicate control and expose them to future liabilities.    The majority of 
comparator organisations we looked at had two local authority nominated board 
members, and it would seem appropriate for each of the existing governing bodies 
to have two representatives on the new board  
 
We would recommend a minimum of six additional trustees, including an 
independent chair, are appointed.  They should include representatives of local 
communities, businesses and key stakeholders, and have a range of relevant 
experience and skills (see appendix 6 for further details on the appointment of 
trustees). The governing bodies will also be able be to influence the Company by 
way of the service agreement. 
 
The day to day management of the Company will be exercised by the senior 
management team under the direction of the board of directors.  The Chief 
Executive of the Company should be an executive member of the Board of 
directors.  Other members of the senior management team may be directors if 
required.  Ideally the non-executive directors should outnumber the executive 
directors. 
 

Torbay Council and Torquay Museum Society have indicated that they wish to 
retain ownership of their buildings and collections.  Comparator organisations, such 
as the Birmingham Museums Trust and Coventry’s Heritage and Arts Trust, have 
moved out of local authority control recently, with the local councils retaining 
ownership of the collections and buildings.  Therefore there is no reason why a 
similar approach should not be adopted in Torbay with the existing governing 
bodies retaining ownership of key assets where appropriate, but giving the new 
vehicle sufficient management freedoms to sweat the assets effectively through a 
service level agreement agreeable both to the existing governing bodies of the 
three museums and the emerging Shadow Board. 
 

8.5 Delivery 

We would recommend that the complete day to day management and operation of 
the three museums is transferred to the new vehicle.  This has been the approach 
adopted in the vast majority of the various comparator organisations we have 
looked at such as the Birmingham Museums Trust, the Luton Culture Trust and the 
Coventry Heritage and Arts Trust.  Discussions with comparator organisations, and 
our own wide ranging experience, demonstrates that leaving a mixed economy of 

Page 138



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 25 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

service delivery between the existing governing bodies, the new vehicle and 
potentially third parties, would be difficult and resource intensive to manage. 
 
The creation of an incorporated, charitable company to deliver the three museums 
in Torbay will have a number of significant benefits, these include: 
 

- It will allow the three museum sites to work together in a genuinely joined 
up way in such areas as programming, marketing and collections 
management.  Thereby enabling a better use of resources and a tighter 
focus on a small number of priorities. 

- The new trust will provide a single point of contact for engagement with 
the public.  The development of a single brand will encourage 
strengthened relationships and potentially an increase in income. 

- A single vehicle will ensure a single approach to areas such as admission 
charges. 

- The approach will also provide a single point of contact for both local and 
national stakeholders.  This is particularly pertinent with funders such as 
HLF and ACE who both are requiring cohesive and consistent local 
approaches with clearly prioritised expectations around investment. 

- The greater critical mass provided by bringing the three museums together 
will also strengthen Torbay’s position when attempting to negotiate 
partnerships with major regional museums, nationals and international 
organisations.  Evidence suggests that such partners will feel more inclined 
to allow loans and make significant exhibitions available. 

 

8.6 Organisational Culture 

Any move to a new delivery vehicle and greater management freedoms can only 
be successful if the move is accompanied by a corresponding cultural change 
amongst staff.  This need has been evidenced by our recent engagement with 
museum services such as Walsall, Birmingham and Tyne and Wear. 
 
We acknowledge that there is some good work and innovative practice already 
taking place across the three museums, the exhibition programme at Torquay 
Museum being a case in point, however a significant cultural shift is still required in 
some form or another at each of the three museums.  Engendering such a change 
is not straightforward and varies from place to place depending on local 
circumstances.  However the very nature of a move to a new independent 
organisation, with the accompanying need for processes such as TUPE is likely to 
generate a change in personnel and approach. 
 
We would also recommend that more proactive approaches are considered in the 
period up to and soon after the move to trust.  These could include: 

- Create an environment and mechanism where new ideas and innovation 
are encourage and collected from all staff and volunteers. 

- Set up a diagonal slice team from across the three organisations, involving 
staff, full time and part time, volunteers and potentially friends groups.  
This group can act as a test group for new ideas and opportunities. 

- Set all members of staff enterprise related targets, whether this is 
increasing donations for those who work front of house, to increasing 
income levels generated by collections for curatorial staff. 

 

Page 139



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 26 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 1 – Project Process 

The evidence gathering aspect of the project involved work in four areas: 
 

- Contextual Analysis; 
- Stakeholder Engagement; 
- Comparator Analysis; 
- Financial Baselining. 

 
A brief summary of the scope and scale of three aspects of the evidence gathering 
work in included below. 
 
Contextual Analysis 

 

The following documentation was considered: 
    
1 Torbay Council Information 
1.1 Community Plan 2011+ 
1.2 Corporate Plan 2010+ 
1.3 Torbay Heritage Strategy 2011  
1.4 Copy of Heritage Action Plan (Evidence Base)  
1.5 Arts Strategy 
1.6 Options appraisal version 6  
1.7 Future Museums Project Fundraising Strategy 
 
2 Torquay Museum Information 

2.1 Torquay Museum Business Plan 
2.2 Torquay Museum Needs Assessment  
2.3 Organogram  
2.4 2013 – 08 Organogram  
2.5 2013 PA – Phil Collins 
2.6 Acquisitions and Disposal Policy 
2.7 Articles of Association document  
2.8 Budget Revision Final  
2.9 Documentation and Conservation Plan 2013 – 16 
2.10 Happy Museum Project Application.  
2.11 K Boot Esmee Report 
2.12 Marketing Strategy 2010 – 11 
2.13 Memorandum and Articles of Association  
2.14 Torquay Museum Society News 
2.15 Torquay Museum Society Rules 
2.16 Torquay Museum Society Annual Report 
 
3 Torre Abbey Information 
3.1 Torre Abbey Needs Assessment  
3.2 Bases of Financial Projections 
3.3 Theatres, Arts, Museums Profile 
3.4 Torre Abbey Activity Plan 
3.5 Torre Abbey Budget 2013/4 
3.6 Torbay Abbey Collections Development Policy 
  

Page 140



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 27 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

4 Brixham Museum Information 

 
4.1 Brixham Planning Document 
4.2 Brixham Needs Assessment 
4.3 Brixham 7 Year Summary 
4.4 Brixham AGM Accounts 
4.5 Brixham Acquisitions and Disposals Policy 
4.6 Brixham Administrators report to AGM 
4.7 Brixham Chairman’s report to AGM 
4.8 Brixham Curators report to AGM 
4.9 Brixham Curators report to AGM (2012) 
4.10 Laws of Brixham Heritage Museum and History Society 
4.11 Commissioning Agreement 
 
5 Other Relevant Sites 

5.1 Kents Cavern 
General information (from http://www.kents-cavern.co.uk) 
5.2 Geopark 
Information from http://www.englishrivierageopark.org.uk 
 

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

Discussions took place with a wide variety of stakeholders: 
 

1. Mary Godwin – SW Museums Relationship Manager, ACE 
2. Brixham Heritage Museum – Philip Armitage, Curator; John Parr, 

Treasurer; Patsy Britten, Chair 
3. Phil Collins – Director, Torquay Museum 
4. Torbay Council – Dave Butt, Executive Member, Culture and Arts; Sue 

Cheriton, Executive Head for Residents & Visitor Services; Steve Hurley,  
Group Manager - Commissioning Partnerships & Business Development; 
(Simon Jutton, Torbay Lead, ACE) 

5. Alan Davies – Service Lead, Theatre, Arts and Museums 
6. Richard Sale – Treasurer and Trustee, Torquay Museum 
7. Nick Powe – Owner/Manager, Kents Cavern 
8. Gillian Westell – Chair, Friends of Torre Abbey 
9. Tony Deyes – Honorary Secretary, Torquay Museum Board 

 
10. A detailed discussion focusing on the interim plan produced by Black 

Radley Culture took place with the Future Museums Project Board on 
25/9/13. 

 
 
Financial Baselining 

 
Using the 2013/14 budget as a baseline, a high level model of the financial 
situation was prepared.  Results in Appendix 3. 
 
 

Page 141



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 28 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 2: Options Analysis – Stakeholder Feedback 

Stakeholder consultation must have a significant influence on the nature and shape 
of the recommendations. This section briefly sets out the main issues which 
emerged from the stakeholder engagement which was undertaken as part of the 
project. 

Operational: 

- Whilst a number of stakeholders welcomed the original options appraisal 
undertaken earlier this year by Devon Square Partners Limited, a sizeable 
number expressed concerns about the findings.  Several used the term 
“vague” and a number of others were unclear about what the 

recommended option actually involved. 
- Working across the three sites has been limited so far, with limited, often 

informal engagement. 
- There is no real strategy, or forward plan currently driving activity across 

the museums and heritage organisations in the Borough. 
- The understanding of audiences and customers across the three 

organisations is limited. 
- The redevelopment at Torre Abbey has resulted in a high quality visitor 

asset, however this has not been maximised due to delays, and a lack of 
investment, in effective marketing. 

- Torquay Museum punches above its weight with regard to the collections it 
owns, however it is not sweating these assets as effectively as it might. 

- The Society Model currently in existence at Torquay Museum does not lend 
itself to running a proactive cultural organisation in a competitive market. 

- Brixham Heritage Museum delivers good quality services to local people 
and visitors in the form of outreach, archaeological activities etc., however 
much of the product is in need of improvement. 

- The Museum in Brixham is in danger of being isolated by the forthcoming 
Tesco redevelopment. 

- The sites in Torquay have stronger synergies and face similar challenges, 
Brixham’s challenges are somewhat different. 

- Senior staff at Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey want to see the sites 
repositioned with a stronger focus on being visitor attractions rather than 
museums. 

- A substantial cultural shift is required in some staff across all three sites. 
- The Geopark is seen as a massive opportunity by the majority of 

stakeholders. 

Political: 

- There was a strong message from elected members and senior officers at 
Torbay Council that they would like to retain close control over Torre 
Abbey until 2016. 

- Parts of the membership at the Society at Torquay Museum are reticent 
about change, and would like to retain control over the building and 
collections at the very least. 

- The membership need to be clear about the benefits they will retain 
through any change in governance or operational delivery. 

- The Board and staff at Brixham Heritage Museum are proud of their 
independence and would like to retain a substantially independent role; 

Page 142



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 29 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

however there would be an interest in joining a new vehicle containing 
Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey in the medium term. 

- The development of a strong arts and heritage offer is seen as crucial to 
broadening the visitor base in Torbay by key elected members and senior 
officers. 

- However stakeholders were clear that the future of the museums needed 
to be considered in the context of reducing subsidies and close control of 
the assets in the medium term. 

- Many stakeholders felt that Kents Cavern needed to be part of the 
solution, even if was simply in an informal, advisory basis, though a 
number would prefer stronger links. 

- Senior officers at Torbay recognised that if Torquay Museum were to close 
there would be a public, and perhaps political, expectation that the 
authority should take on responsibility for any collections made homeless.  
Such an undertaking could prove costly. 

Financial: 

- Senior officers and members at Torbay Council were not clear what the 
subsidies to Torquay Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum were actually 
buying for the Council.  

- The subsidies being paid to all three museums by Torbay Council will come 
under increasing pressure and scrutiny, they cannot be guaranteed in any 
form beyond 2016. 

- Torbay Council indicated that the subsidies paid to Torquay Museum and 
Brixham Heritage Museum will remain the same in 2014/15 and be 
reduced by 15% in 2015/16. 

- Torbay Council would like to move to a more robust commissioning 
approach, particularly with regard to Brixham Heritage Museum. 

- There is a perception amongst some stakeholders that there are sizeable 
efficiencies to be made across the three organisations. 

- Torquay Museum has a history of loss making, the financial situation at the 
museum is problematic to say the least and needs to be resolved in the 
near future, it cannot continue in the current vein. 

- Brixham Heritage Museum runs effectively on a small budget, though it is 
dependent on Torbay Council’s subsidy for its small staffing resource. 

- There is a strong message from elected members and senior offices that 
the subsidy to Torre Abbey should be reduced still further to around 
£100,000 a year. 

  

Page 143



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 30 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 3: Governance Choice 

Form Follows Function 

A cultural sector organisation can be seen as an essentially political entity 
(compromising between competing agendas and interests); or from an 
operational viewpoint (it is there to get the job done); or from a financial 
perspective (managing budgets, achieving a socio-economic return on investment).  
There are tensions between these three priorities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3: Choice Dimensions 
 
For Torbay’s museums, these tensions translate into six choices as shown above.  
These are: 
 

Freedom v Control:  are we more concerned to encourage 
the freedom to be enterprising, or to 
keep Torbay’s museums under political 
ownership? 

Focus v Reach:  do we want the museums tightly 
focused and customer prioritised (e.g. 
focusing on specific parts of the 
community, such as socially deprived 
groups and/or communities), or a 
service which impacts on all citizens? 

Service v Cost-reduction:  are we looking for visible service 
excellence, or are we driven by the 
need for austerity? 

Strategic v Local: are we more concerned about 
celebrating the local story of Torbay, or 
about seizing the opportunities 
provided by focusing on broader, 
potentially more populist areas? 

Service v Income Generation: is the principal objective to provide a 
free service to customers or to develop 

political 

operational financial 

l

Specialist - Scale 

Engage - Stewardship 

Page 144



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 31 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

a more commercial income generating 
approach? 

Engage v Stewardship: are the museums in the business of 
dynamic customer experiences, or are 
they principally about the stewardship 
of valuable public assets? 

 
For each choice, there is a spectrum of possible answers between the two 
extremes. 

Success Criteria 

The following sections provide an account of what success might look like for 
Torbay museums.  The analysis is based on the stakeholder views gathered by 
Black Radley Culture during the project, supported by the contextual review and 
existing knowledge of the area and the cultural sector.   
 
The assessment builds on the choice dimensions set out above, focusing on the 
tensions between the financial, operational and political viewpoints.  Subsequent 
sections then use these success criteria to select between the possible options. 

Freedom v Control 

Are we more concerned to encourage the freedom to be enterprising, or to keep 
Torbay’s museums under tight political and member ownership? 
 

Summary success criteria: Control and Asset Ownership 
 

There was a strong message from both Torbay Councils politicians and the 
members of Torbay Society that they would like to maintain close links to 
the museums in the borough, both Torre Abbey and Torquay Museum.  
The members at Torquay museum would like to retain ownership of the 
museum building and the collections, though they are prepared to distance 
themselves from the day to day running of the organisation.  Politicians at 
Torbay Council are very keen to maximise the opportunities provided by 
the recent redevelopment of Torre Abbey and therefore would like to 
retain significant control in the short and medium terms though they 
accept that that the site needs to be given more freedom and flexibility if it 
is to become sustainable in the long term.  
 
Brixham Heritage Museum already enjoys significant independence, and 
key players within the organisation would like to retain that independence.  
However these key players would also consider joining a broader vehicle 
containing the Torbay museums in the medium term. 

Focus v Reach 

To what extent should the museums in Torbay be focused on a small set of 
customers or activities? 
 

Summary success criteria: Tight Focus 
 

Ideally, considering the relatively small size of the three organisations 
involved, the museums in Torbay would not attempt to be all things to all 

Page 145



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 32 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

people but settle on a small number of key points of focus that have 
powerful appeal.  For instance, the museums (1) focus on developing a 
strong product to the existing visitors to Torbay; (2) work with the Mayor 
and other politicians in the Borough to contribute to the development of a 
high quality cultural offer which will diversify the existing visitor base to 
the Borough; and (3) target services towards particular parts of the local 
community, in agreement with Torbay Council. 
 
As part of this process it is crucial that the museums and Torbay Council 
are clear what (if any) support and/or subsidy from the Council is available 
and what that subsidy is purchasing/commissioning. 

Service v Cost-reduction 

Should the museums in Torbay be about enhancing the service, or about reducing 
costs? 
 

Summary success criteria: More efficient and enterprising  
 

Torbay Council is facing up to a very challenging financial situation, 
funding for non-statutory services is under huge pressure, and many 
grants to other culture, leisure and tourism organisations are being cut 
completely. Therefore the subsidies given to the three museums are under 
increasing scrutiny, and are likely to reduce.  There is also a perception 
amongst senior officers and members at the Council that there is a degree 
of waste across parts of the three organisations. 
 
Other sources of public funding are under similar pressures.  Also, whilst 
Brixham Heritage Museum is a well-run organisation financially, Torquay 
Museum has a history of loss making, and the current year’s trading is 
proving difficult.  The current financial position is secured by way of a 
short term loan from a member. 
 
This challenging financial environment means: (1) A review of, 
repositioning and reduction in current levels of delivery, with a focus on 
cost cutting, and sharing services and resources across the sites; (2) 
better exploitation of current collections and sites; and (3) a strong focus 
on stimulating enterprise and drawing in additional funds. 

Strategic v Local 

Are we more concerned about celebrating the local story of Torbay, or about 
seizing the opportunities provided by focusing on broader, potentially more 
populist themes?  
 

Summary success criteria: Joined up, informed approach 

 
The three museums involved in this study are very different and, as such, 
currently have different areas of focus both around the stories they tell 
and the audiences they target.  However there is limited evidence of a 
clear strategy driving this approach, nor is significant evidence of a 
concerted attempt to engage directly with local communities or visitors, 
nor involve them directly in service and product development.   

Page 146



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 33 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

The three organisations therefore need to develop a complementary 
approach to the stories they tell and the associated products and 
programming.  This also needs to be driven by a well-informed 
understanding of the audiences they are attempting to target. 

Service v Income Generation 

Is the principal objective to provide a free service to customers or to develop a 
more commercial income generating approach?  
 

Summary success criteria: Strong commercial focus 
 

All the sites currently charge for admissions, and most of the programmes 
and products they provide are also charged for.  Though there are some 
services, particularly from Brixham Heritage Museum, that are provided 
free of charge to members of the local community, though these are 
underwritten by grants from HLF and other funders. 
 
Subsidies from the public sector are likely to decrease, and the competition 
within the leisure and culture sector for people’s time and money is only 

going to get more intense.  The financial situation at each of the museums 
is challenging in various degrees, both staff and stakeholders alike 
recognise the need for the museums to move to a more business-like 
approach.  This means diversifying the funding base, redirecting resources 
to areas such as customer care and marketing and developing a targeted 
public programme.  However moving to such an approach will be 
challenging in an environment of reducing public subsidies.  If the product 
and programming is not regularly improved it will be very difficult for the 
museums to cope effectively in what is already a congested leisure market 
across Torbay. 

Engage v Stewardship 

Are the museums in the business of dynamic customer experiences, or are they 
principally about the stewardship of valuable public assets? 
 

Summary success criteria: Dynamic visitor attractions 
 
There is a clear understanding amongst senior staff and stakeholders that 
the three organisations, and Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey in 
particular, need to focus their efforts on becoming good quality visitor 
attractions, though this view is not necessarily shared by staff generally.  
Whilst this does not mean putting aside their responsibility to act as 
stewards for important collection and building based assets, it will lead to 
more resource being invested in developing dynamic customer 
experiences, and effective marketing and promotion.  Such an approach 
will also result in those assets that might offer the greatest return on 
investment being sweated more than other less valuable assets.  Difficult 
decisions will need to be taken concerning the collections and building in 
light of this approach. 

  

Page 147



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 34 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 4: Success Criteria Assessment 

This section uses the success criteria to assess the range of possible options. 

Reminder: Success Criteria and Options 

Appendix 3 set out a range of choices, the answers to which are the success or 
design criteria for the optimum governance model. 
 
These criteria are: 
 

1. Control and Asset Ownership; 
2. Tight focus; 
3. More efficient and enterprising; 
4. Joined up, informed approach; 
5. Strong Commercial Focus; 
6. Dynamic Visitor Attractions. 

 
Section 5 outlined four governance options each with one of four structural 
options, three operational options and three financial options.  Clearly the number 
of possible permutations is huge. 
 
The following tables seek to expand on each of the options to help identify the 
permutations that can add value: 
 
Governance Options 
 
The three museums operating together 

In this option all three museums are managed by a single staff team and 
management arrangement.  They would report to a committee which would 
either, depending on the structural option adopted, represent the separate 
interests of the three museums or be the single successor body to all three 
 
Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey operating together 
In this scenario, Torre Abbey and Torquay Museum would come together in a 
Torquay focused single operation.  Brixham Heritage Museum would remain 
completely independent, operating as a separate organisation, potentially still 
receiving subsidy from Torbay Council, though that would likely to be on an 
explicit commissioning basis. 
 
The three organisations operating independently 

In this scenario, the museums in Torbay would continue as they are, operating 
independently, with ad hoc engagement and decreasing subsidies from Torbay 
Council. 
 
A combination of some or all of the three with Kents Cavern 

This option would see some (most likely to be Torquay Museum and possibly 
Torre Abbey) of the museums form a direct relationship with Kents Cavern, this 
may well involve Kents Cavern taking on the running of some or all aspects of the 
museums.  Such an option is likely to increase the potential of private investment 
in the sites, but may well reduce the likelihood of public sector funding. 
 

Page 148



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 35 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 

Structural Options 
 
An informal or semi-formal partnership 

This option could take a variety of forms, such as the museums working together 
in such areas as marketing, education and curatorial expertise.  It would mean 
that the existing governance structures would remain. 
 
An independent organisation, closely tied to the Council and Torquay 

Museum Society 
In this scenario, all of the museums in Torbay would move to an independent 
organisation.  Torre Abbey would maintain a close relationship with key senior 
officers and members, Torquay Museum would do the same with the Society.  
The governance of Brixham Heritage Museum and Torquay Museum would shift 
from the existing boards to that of the new organisation.  Though the current 
Boards would expect to provide some trustee representation to the new Board. 
 
The financial/legal interface would be determined by a rolling business plan, 
developed and agreed together.  A longer term concordat would cover on-going 
relationship management, dispute resolution, and planning cycles.  There would 
need to elected member representation on the board(s) of trustees from the 
three existing governing bodies. 
 
An independent organisation, at arm’s length from the Council 

In this scenario, the museums of Torbay would come together within an 
independent organisation which has a grant maker/grantee relationship with the 
likes of Torbay Council.  The financial/legal interface is determined by a contract, 
which has a 3 to 5 year rolling budget figure.  Contractual terms agreed in place 
to cover dispute resolution. 
 
There would be no/low member representation on board of trustees from the 
existing governing bodies of the three museums. 
 
Radical outsourcing 

This option involves passing the museums of Torbay across to another business 
or existing independent organisation.  Such a move would need to be managed 
under contract – therefore there would be some similarity to the arm’s length 
option above. 
 
Potential recipients for the museums function could include: 
- Organisations such as Capita who have a track record in delivering public 
sector services; 
- Organisations such as Madame Tussauds or Kents Cavern who have a 
track record in delivering visitor attractions; 
- An independent museum or cultural organisation of suitable scale, such 
as the Tank Museum or Wigan Leisure and Culture Trust; 
- Another Local Authority, likely to be nearby, such as Somerset or Dorset. 
 
 
  

Page 149



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 36 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Operational Options 

 
Ambitious/strategic – Geopark, National Centre of the Stone Age, 

Devon-wide cooperation 

In this scenario, similar to the public sector investment option below, significant 
investment is made into the sector so that it plays a key role in repositioning 
Torbay.  This will involve close links with relevant organisations such as the 
Geopark and Kents Cavern, and potentially partnerships with other museums 
across Devon and beyond. 
  
Tactical – change locations, lateral alignments 

In this option synergies will be exploited between the museums, and other 
potential partners in the locality, such as the prehistory story, or around 
educational programmes.    The locations of the museums will also be reviewed, 
Brixham Heritage Museum’s in light of the forthcoming Tesco redevelopment in 
the town for example. 
 
Containment –  reducing budget ceiling,  volunteering model 

This option is driven by the need for a reduced Council subsidy, would require a 
hands-on contract management approach from Council staff, putting operational 
pressure on the three organisations to share staff/activities.  It is also likely to 
mean an increase in volunteering across the three sites.  There will be limited 
opportunity to improve the product and programme in this option. 
 
 
 
Financial Options 
 
Public sector investment, drive visitor numbers, generate economic 

growth 
This option links to the ambitious operational model above and might be shaped 
around the need to drive up overnight visits from high net worth individuals.  
Given the state of public sector budgets, this would probably require some form 
of joint venture with a private sector player (e.g. Kents Caverns).  This, as a 
consequence, would almost certainly require the new venture to have a fair 
degree of freedom from the Council and Torquay Museum’s members. 
 
Reduction in Torbay Council’s spend on museums 
This option is similar to the containment option in the Operational area.  The 
key focus is to reduce Council subsidy, either by cutting costs or cooperating 
with the private sector. 
 
Private sector investment, coherent offer 
In this scenario, private sector investment is secured to replace the reducing 
public sector subsidy.   Such investment will require a coherent and popular 
offer being developed across the museums, with a strong focus on becoming 
visitor attractions. 
 
 
  

Page 150



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 37 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Options Evaluation 

The table below shows how well the various options meet the Torbay success 
criteria.  This is a subjective assessment, based upon Black Radley’s experience 

elsewhere and on comparator benchmarking. 
 

 
 

An Ambitious Interpretation 
 
At a headline level, and counting each ticked box as having an equal weighting, we 
might conclude the following: 
 

· From a governance perspective, the most effective way to deliver what 
Torbay wants would be for all three museums to come together with Kents 
Cavern; 

· From a structural perspective, the greatest chance of delivering what 
Torbay wants would come from moving to an arm’s length, independent 
organisation; 

· From an operational perspective, an ambitious approach to the scope and 
future focus of the organisation most fits the bill; 

· From a financial perspective, the ideal would be for a robust public sector 
investment in turning the museum assets into generators of high spending 
visitors to the area. 

 
Though there are some tensions between these four elements (for instance, there 
would be challenges in generating public sector investment in a vehicle which 
would, inevitably, have some level of private sector ownership or involvement), 
this is a compelling and potentially powerful design specification for a new 
approach.   

Torbay Success Criteria

Options

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n
fl
u
e
n
ce

 a
n
d
 A

ss
e
t 
O

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

T
ig

h
t 
st

ra
te

g
ic

 f
o
cu

s

M
o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
te

rp
ri
si

n
g

Jo
in

e
d
 u

p
, 
in

fo
rm

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
ch

S
tr

o
n
g
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
F
o
cu

s

D
y
n
a
m

ic
 V

is
it
o
r 

A
tt
ra

ct
io

n
s

Options

Governance

The three museums operating together Ö Ö Ö Ö

Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey operating together Ö Ö Ö

The three organisations operating independently Ö Ö

A combination of some or all of the three with Kents Cavern Ö Ö Ö Ö Ö

An informal or semi-formal partnership Ö

An independent organisation, closely tied to the Council Ö Ö Ö

An independent organisation, at arm’s length from the Council Ö Ö Ö Ö

Radical outsourcing Ö Ö

Ambitious/strategic – Geopark, National Centre of the Stone Age, Devon-wide cooperation Ö Ö Ö Ö

Tactical – change locations, lateral alignments Ö Ö Ö

Containment –  reducing budget ceiling,  volunteering model Ö Ö Ö

public sector investment, drive visitor numbers, generate economic growth Ö Ö Ö Ö Ö

reduction Torbay Council’s spend on museums Ö Ö

private sector investment, coherent offer Ö Ö Ö Ö

Governance

Structural

Operational

Financial

Page 151



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 38 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

A Containment Interpretation 
 
However the ambitious approach does not fit well with the hard reality of the 
situation faced in Torbay.  In practice, the Council’s need to reduce its subsidy 
means the third success criteria (“more efficient and enterprising”) needs to be 

given much higher weighting and on a short timescale. 
 
On this basis, the conclusion might be as follows: 
 

· From a governance perspective, the most effective way to deliver success 
would be for all three museums to come together with Kents Cavern; 

· From a structural perspective, the greatest chance of success would come 
from moving to an arm’s length, independent organisation; 

· From an operational perspective, the management task is to optimise 
museum functioning within the existing scope and customer offer; 

· From a financial perspective, the driver is to reduce Council subsidy, either 
by cutting costs or cooperating with the private sector. 

 
A Control Interpretation 
 
However it should be noted that the first success criteria (“strategic influence and 

asset ownership”) is in a position to trump the rest.  If Torquay Museum, Brixham 

Museum or Torbay Council members do not wish to concede a level of control in 
exchange for releasing greater enterprise, then they are well within their rights to 
refuse to do so.  
 
In our judgement, this will be a significant issue.  We therefore conclude that the 
first and third success criteria have significantly greater weight than the others, 
and that Torbay’s broad brush specification must be as follows: 
 

· From a governance perspective, a workable model would be for the three 
museums to come together under a single organisation, cooperating with 
others (e.g. Kents Cavern) but on a partnership basis; 

· From a structural perspective, , the most acceptable way to balance 
stakeholder interests with the possibility of greater enterprise would come 
from moving to an independent organisation, closely tied to the existing 
member structures; 

· From an operational perspective, the management task is to optimise 
museum functioning within the existing scope and customer offer; 

· From a financial perspective, the driver is to reduce Council subsidy, either 
by cutting costs or cooperating with the private sector. 

 
We have based our recommendations on this conclusion. 
  

Page 152



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 39 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 

Appendix 5 - Options Analysis – Legal/Governance Forms 

This section sets out the key legal and implementation considerations around the 
four possible structural governance options noted in Section 5. 
 

· An informal or semi-formal partnership; 
· An independent organisation, closely tied to the existing governing bodies; 
· An independent organisation, at arm’s length from the existing governing 

bodies; 
· Radical outsourcing. 

 
Two of the possible governance options involve the museums in Torbay being 
delivered by a new, independent organisation(s).  One of the other options, radical 
outsourcing, also involves the museums being delivered by an independent 
organisation(s) but in a different configuration.  This might be an existing body or 
a new organisation set up by an existing body for the specific purpose of running 
the service.  The stakeholder conversations threw up a number of potential 
organisations who might show an interest, these included Parkwood Leisure, and 
the South West Lakes Trust.  There are other organisations at a national level who 
might be interested in such a proposition.  The Wigan Leisure and Culture Trust, 
for instance, is already delivering services in other localities including the museum 
service in Cannock Chase District Council. 

Incorporation 

One of the decisions in determining the optimum governance option is whether 
any new organisation should be incorporated. 
 
The most important benefit of incorporation is that it is possible to limit the liability 
of those involved in the running of the organisation whether as individuals or 
trustees.  The possibility of unlimited liability would make the “not incorporated” 

options a potential blocker for some trustees. 
 
The other benefit for incorporated organisations is the ability, as a separate legal 
personality, to contract in its own right. 
 
In light of the above it is clear that, under any of the independent organisation 
options, incorporation is a requirement for any new delivery body. 
 
The most common form of incorporation is as a company registered with 
Companies House. 

Membership 

Incorporation introduces the concept of an organisation owned by its members.  
Membership can take a number of different forms. 
 
The most common membership structure in the cultural sector is a Company 
Limited by Guarantee (CLG).  In this case the members, known as guarantors, 
undertake to contribute an amount to the company in the event of its winding up.  
The amount to be contributed is usually only a small nominal amount and in the 

Page 153



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 40 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

event of any actual winding up would not provide meaningful resources for the 
settlement of company liabilities or costs of winding up. 
 
Under certain circumstances the guarantors of a CLG may share in the profits of 
the business although this is generally not the case.  Consequently CLGs are 
frequently known as Non Profit Distributing Organisations (NPDO). 
 
The most common membership structure in the private sector is a Company 
Limited by Shares (CLS).  The members own shares in the company, the shares 
make up the company share capital.  Members will share in the profits of the 
business. 
 
There are three other incorporated structures which would be available to a new 
delivery organisation: Community Interest Company (CIC), Industrial and Provident 
Society (IPS) and a Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO). 
 
CICs are limited companies, with special additional features, created for the use of 
people who want to conduct a business or other activity for community benefit, 
and not purely for private advantage.  This is achieved by a "community interest 
test" and "asset lock", which ensures that the CIC is established for community 
purposes and the assets and profits are dedicated to these purposes.  Registration 
of a company as a CIC has to be approved by the Regulator who also has a 
continuing monitoring and enforcement role. 
 
An IPS is an organisation conducting an industry, business or trade, either as a co-
operative or for the benefit of the community, and is registered under the 
Industrial and Provident Societies Act 1965.  The Financial Services Authority is the 
registering authority for societies which register under the Act.  Co-operative 
societies are run for the mutual benefit of their members, with any surplus usually 
being ploughed back into the organisation to provide better services and facilities.  
Societies run for the benefit of the community provide services for people other 
than their members. There need to be special reasons why the society should not 
be registered as a company. 
 
A CIO is a relatively new structure with the aim of reducing the regulatory burden 
of being both a charity and company.  In England it still a relatively untested form 
and was really designed for organisations much smaller than the museums in 
Torbay.  There is a view that the CIO may lack public awareness and credibility, 
and may actually result in an organisation looking very much like a charitable 
company limited by guarantee. 
 
The most appropriate membership form would seem to be a Company Limited by 
Guarantee or Community Interest Company.  The first is more established in 
practice, particularly within the museums sector; with CIC compliance being a 
relatively untested activity. 
 
The composition of the membership and associated voting rights will need to 
ensure that there is the right balance between the organisation being truly 
independent and Torbay Council retaining an appropriate level of influence. 

Page 154



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 41 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Management 

As with most companies the day to day affairs are managed by a specific group of 
individuals acting as agents of the company.  The name given to this group varies.  
In the private sector they are known as the board of directors. 
 
Directors can either be executive or non-executive.  A non-executive director 
(NED) does not form part of the executive management team involved in the day-
to-day running of business.  NEDs challenge and monitor the executive, contribute 
to the development of strategy and scrutinise performance. 
 
NEDs are also responsible for determining appropriate levels of remuneration of 
executive directors and have a prime role in appointing, and where necessary 
removing, senior management and in succession planning. 
 
In some organisations the executive and non-executive roles are spilt in two but 
there is a move towards unitary boards where the two types of director meet 
together and reach all decisions by consensus. 
 
In determining the composition of the board of directors or trustees there will be 
the need to balance influence, control and commercial expertise.  The comparator 
analysis we undertook illustrated that the majority of cultural organisations who 
had moved to an independent situation in recent years, have two local authority 
representatives sitting on their boards. 

Charitable Status 

Another key decision is whether the delivery organisation registers as a charity.  
Registration with the Charities Commission requires an organisation to have 
purposes that are charitable for the public benefit. 
 
The Charities Act 2011 quotes “the advancement of the arts, culture, heritage or 
science” as a description of charitable purposes. 
 
There are two key principles of public benefit. 
 

Principle 1 - There must be an identifiable benefit or benefits: 
 

· 1a It must be clear what the benefits are; 
· 1b The benefits must be related to the aims; 
· 1c Benefits must be balanced against any detriment or harm. 

 
Principle 2 – Benefit must be to the public, or section of the public: 
 

· 2a The beneficiaries must be appropriate to the aims; 
· 2b Where the benefit is to a section of the public the opportunity to 

benefit must not be unreasonably restricted by geographical or other 
restrictions; 

· 2c People in poverty must not be excluded from the opportunity to 
benefit; 

· 2d Any private benefits must be incidental. 
It seems clear that any independent delivery organisation could serve a purpose 
that is for the public benefit. 

Page 155



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 42 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

One of the benefits of charitable status is the ability to take advantage of tax 
exemptions.  The costs of charitable status are restrictions on certain trading 
activities and compliance costs.  Compliance costs are not onerous requiring 
annual submissions to the Charity Commission. 

Assets 

The key assets of the museums (e.g. premises and collections) may be owned by 
one organisation and the service delivered by another.  Stakeholder conversations 
indicate that Torbay Council and Torquay Museum Society will want to retain 
ownership of these assets to protect them for community benefit.  Almost all local 
authorities who have devolved parts or all of their museum services in the last few 
years have kept responsibility for such assets as collections and buildings. 
 
Any such arrangement would require a binding agreement specifying the rights 
and responsibilities of the current owners and the independent organisation. 
 
This arrangement removes the (emotive) charge that, in establishing an 
independent trust, the Council is “selling the family silver”.  Should the relationship 
break down, Torbay Council and Torquay Museum Society would be in a position 
to find an alternative means of providing stewardship for its assets. 

Service Level Agreements 

If the Museums were transferred to an independent organisation there would be a 
number of key interfaces with Torbay Council and Torquay Museum Society.  The 
most important of these would be the agreement determining the levels and 
standards of service which the delivery organisation would be required to meet.  
The existing governing bodies would need to have levers to hold the delivery 
organisation to account and ensure that these service outcomes were being met 
whilst enabling the delivery organisation to be innovative and commercial. 

Staff 

It is likely that any transfer of business and services to a new organisation will 
represent a TUPE transfer.  TUPE is the acronym for the Transfer of Undertakings 
Protection of Employment Act. 
 
In a TUPE transfer all the staff relating to the business are transferred to the new 
or acquiring organisation on their existing terms and conditions.  The independent 
organisation will be able to restructure its workforce, make redundancies and 
change terms & conditions, post transfer but only if there are 'economic, technical 
or organisational' reasons for doing so. 
 
If the staff do transfer to a new organisation there would be significant liabilities 
transferring with them.  These would include certain liabilities such as pensions 
and contingent liabilities such as redundancy payments.  The delivery organisation 
would require cover for these liabilities.  In such recent devolution processes as the 
creation of the Heritage and Arts Trust in Coventry, the need to quantify, manage 
and underwrite such liabilities has been an important learning point. 
 
Another option would be for the staff to remain employees of their existing 
organisations and be seconded to the delivery organisation.  This avoids the issues 
with liabilities outlined above but may not achieve the right independent culture. 

Page 156



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 43 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 6 - Trustee Skills and Appointment 

The Charity Commission document CC3 'The Essential Trustee' contains the 
following guidance: 
 
Charity trustees are the people who serve on the governing body of a charity. They 
may be known as trustees, directors, board members, governors or committee 
members. The principles and main duties are the same in all cases. 
 

· Trustees have and must accept ultimate responsibility for directing the 
affairs of a charity, and ensuring that it is solvent, well-run, and delivering 
the charitable outcomes for the benefit of the public for which it has been 
set up. 

 

Compliance - Trustees must: 

 
· Ensure that the charity complies with charity law, and with the 

requirements of the Charity Commission as regulator; in particular ensure 
that the charity prepares reports on what it has achieved and Annual 
Returns and accounts as required by law. 

· Ensure that the charity does not breach any of the requirements or rules 
set out in its governing document and that it remains true to the charitable 
purpose and objects set out there. 

· Comply with the requirements of other legislation and other regulators (if 
any) which govern the activities of the charity. 

· Act with integrity, and avoid any personal conflicts of interest or misuse of 
charity funds or assets. 

 

Duty of prudence - Trustees must: 
 

· Ensure that the charity is and will remain solvent. 
· Use charitable funds and assets reasonably, and only in furtherance of the 

charity's objects. 
· Avoid undertaking activities that might place the charity's endowment, 

funds, assets or reputation at undue risk. 
· Take special care when investing the funds of the charity, or borrowing 

funds for the charity to use. 
 
Duty of care - Trustees must: 

 

· Use reasonable care and skill in their work as trustees, using their personal 
skills and experience as needed to ensure that the charity is well-run and 
efficient. 

· Consider getting external professional advice on all matters where there 
may be material risk to the charity, or where the trustees may be in 
breach of their duties. 

 
The first and possibly most important stage of the trustee recruitment process is to 
agree skills and experience that are required by the trustees.  The board of 
trustees needs the right balance of skills and experience and appointments should 
be made explicitly to ensure this.  Other Museum Trusts who have recently 
secured independence have focused on bringing in such skills and experience as: 

Page 157



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 44 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 
- Financial Management; 
- Legal experience; 
- Experience of working in and running commercial organisations; 
- Understanding of local businesses; 
- Background in, and understanding of, the wider cultural and creative 

sector; 
- Links to Academia; 
- Enterprise and Fundraising; 
- Working with, or in, the media; 
- The broader public sector; 
- Health sector. 

 
Some, or all, of these may have relevance to any process in Torbay.  However the 
local context, and the likely priorities and direction of any new organisation will 
dictate the skills mix required. 
 
It may be wise to recruit a small core of trustees at an early stage in the transition 
process, who can then help define and establish the new entity.  A second tranche 
of trustees can be recruited once the organisation is ready to start. 
 
  

Page 158



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 45 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 

Appendix 7: Key Transition Issues 

Assets 

The ownership of the main assets of the museums, the premises and collections 
and the roles and responsibilities of all parties in using them will need to be 
covered by the service agreement. 
 

Support timescale 

In order to commit to delivering the services of the museums, any independent 
delivery organisation will need to know the period of time for which Torbay Council 
and other stakeholders are willing to provide funding and also the level of that 
support. 
 
Ideally, this commitment would be associated with an agreed, rolling business plan 
of pre-determined length (e.g. 5 years), refreshed annually. 
 

Liabilities 

When the independent delivery organisation is established it is unlikely to have 
significant levels of reserves.  Therefore it will not be able to take on significant 
liabilities, real or contingent.  This has particular relevant to the financial situation 
facing Torquay Museum.  On-going liabilities such as the pension deficit relating to 
the previous Director will need to be considered and dealt with before any formal 
move to a new vehicle can be confirmed.  The main liabilities that would definitely 
crystallise in some form are pensions for staff. 
 
The more contingent liabilities relate to redundancy costs if there was the need to 
reduce staff and premises costs relating to maintenance and/or refurbishment.   
 
Staffing 

Any acquiring organisation will need assurance that the workforce transferred will 
not hinder the delivery of an effective service within the agreed financial 
parameters.  Torbay Council, Brixham Heritage Museum and Torquay Museum may 
need to carry out staff restructuring pre transfer to ensure that this is the case. 
 

Termination 

The transfer agreement needs to cover the eventuality of the any party wishing to 
terminate the arrangement. 
 
Interface Management 

Any new governance arrangement results in internal or external interfaces that 
have to be managed effectively.  The organisation will need to manage its 
interfaces with people, functions and organisations which are outside of the 
organisation.  These interfaces will be specified before the organisation moves to 
any new governance arrangement. 
 
From a governance point of view, the key interfaces are:  
 

· With the citizen (levels of service); 

Page 159



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 46 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

· With Torbay Council contract management; 
· With Torquay Museum Society contract management; 
· With other public services; 
· With any culture/heritage policy function; 
· With support functions; 
· With Torbay Council political structures; 
· With Torbay Council strategic planning/budgeting; 
· With partners/competitors. 

 
For each interface, the ask, offer and quality assurance (including penalty) 
processes need to be understood by the parties involved. 
 
The process of defining these interfaces will be a major aspect of the transition 
process.  Some elements of the interface will necessarily be included in a legal 
contract (e.g. for the management of assets).  Others should be encapsulated in a 
Service Level Agreement or other less binding concordat, which helps set 
parameters around how the parties should work together and what they can 
expect of each other. 
 
  

Page 160



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 47 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 8: Options Analysis - Financial Assessment 

Future costs and income 

Any reconfiguration or change of service will trigger additional costs.  The most 
obvious of these would be termination costs payable to staff on redundancy.  The 
other major potential liability would be any grant funding received by any of the 
three museums with conditions attached.  If any of the conditions ceased to be 
fulfilled then the grant may become repayable. 
 
A formal due diligence process would need to take place to ensure that the 
governing bodies of all three museums were fully sighted on any immediate 
financial implications of restructuring.  At a minimum the due diligence process 
should review all contracts including staff contracts, leases, funding agreements 
and documentation relating to legacies and bequests. 

Finance under current governance 

Under the current governance arrangements replacing the Torbay Council grant by 
way of making cost savings and generating additional income will not be 
straightforward. 
 
Cost savings can only be realised in a limited number of ways: 
 

· Increasing productivity, fewer staff are required to deliver the existing 
level of service to customers; 

· Reducing the level service offered and thereby reducing the number of 
staff required to deliver the service; 

· Reducing the number of buildings occupied to achieve economies of scale; 
· Reducing the number of artefacts maintained to reduce storage costs and 

the number of staff who maintain them; 
· Bringing operations together to achieve economies of scale. 

 
Given the importance of staff costs Black Radley Culture have compiled the 
following table showing the number of staff employed by role in each of the three 
organisations.   

 

Page 161



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 48 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 
 
These figures are not precise; assumptions have been made on the time spent on 
different roles by certain individuals and the treatment of seasonal staff. 
 
As noted earlier the level of staffing is lean. 
 

Review of Initial Options Appraisal 

The initial options appraisal makes reference to ‘obvious potential savings’ (s 2.3).  
Section 3.3 of the report goes on to list the areas where sharing costs and services 
could have a financial benefit as: 
 

· Programming 
· Education and outreach 
· Curatorial 
· Retail 
· Fundraising 
· Marketing 
· Customer Service 
· Back Office 

 
One of the recommendations of the report in section 3.7 is to ‘test and tease out 

the nature and most importantly potential value of cost savings’.  This Black Radley 
Culture report attempts to do just that. 
 
Although section 3.3 of the report cites Back Office as one of the areas where 
costs might be saved section 4.6 the report quotes: 
 

The prevailing economic wisdom is that three organisations could come 

together and operate their services with substantial savings.  The most 

sizeable potential saving is around that of office administration, book-

keeping and accounts, payroll and financial reporting.  However such logic is 

both a fallacy and a gross over simplification. 

Staff Role
Torre 

Abbey

Torquay 

Museum

Brixham 

Museum
Total

Management 0.4 1.2 0.3 1.9

Facilities 1 1.3 2.3

Curatorial 0.6 0.8 0.3 1.7

Education 1 1

Gardens 2 2

Marketing 0.6 1

Customer Service 2.5 0.7 0.8 4

Retail 0.5 0.5

Project 0.8 0.8

Finance & admin 0.7 0.4 0.4 1.5

IT 0.3 0.3

Total headcount 9.0 5.8 1.8 16.5

Page 162



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 49 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 
The report is correctly flagging that significant back office savings will be difficult 
to achieve. 

Black Radley Culture approach 

The potential savings from each of the areas identified in the initial options 
appraisal report are further explored in the table below. 
 
Savings 

caption 
Black Radley Culture commentary 

Programming 
Synergy around programming may well improve the customer experience 
and support cross selling of products. 

Education and 
outreach 

Both Torquay Museum and Torre Abbey employ an Education Officer, the 
TQM post is funded by ACE.  In the museum this post raises £7k of income; 
it is not clear how much income is raised by this post in the abbey. 
 
Given the function appears to make a loss; savings could be made by ceasing 
altogether. 

Curatorial 

The majority of curatorial spend comprises spend by Torre Abbey.  Although 
expertise could perhaps be shared more effectively any change in 
governance will not reduce significantly the curatorial work required. 
 
Possible savings with a more robust approach to prioritising curatorial 
activity. 

Retail 
Under any governance arrangement the shops would remain separate 
although there may be opportunities for better purchasing.  A more 
enterprising and commercial approach should be able to increase net income. 

Fundraising 
Torquay Museum employ a part time funding officer, paid for by ACE grant, 
who is responsible for fundraising. 

Marketing 

A large proportion of these costs (£23k) comprise publicity advertising 
incurred by Torre Abbey. 
 
Reducing marketing spend may impact visitor numbers.  Possible savings on 
better co-operation with marketing, but ideally some of this should be 
reinvested to increase the profile and attract more visitors. 

Customer 
Service 

Customer service is a critical part of the service offer.  Any savings in the 
customer service caption which had a detrimental impact on the customer 
experience could be false economy. 

Back Office Staffing is lean and so there appears to be little scope for savings.   
 
As noted above the following captions which may show financial benefit on a new 
governance arrangement such as an independent trust 
 
Savings 

caption 
Black Radley Culture commentary 

Enterprise 
Dividend 

There are shops at Torre Abbey and Torquay Museum and a café at Torquay 
Museum and a contracted out café at Torre Abbey.  A more enterprising and 
commercial approach should be able to increase both gross and net revenue. 

Taxes 
From the financial information supplied to Black Radley Culture it is not clear 
how much the organisations pay in rates apart from Torquay Museum paying 
£7,600. 

Page 163



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 50 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Philanthropic 
income 

Of the three sites only Torre Abbey is under council control but even so the 
formation of a new independent trust with an exciting and innovative offer to 
customers may be able to stimulate higher levels of philanthropic income. 

Central costs 
Again only applies to Torre Abbey and as noted earlier any new body would 
have to resource the services previously provided by Torbay Council. 

Governance 
costs 

The level of governance costs are a function of the precise structure being 
adopted.  Torquay and Brixham Museums are already registered charities so 
some compliance costs should be built into existing budgets 

 
  

Page 164



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 51 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Appendix 9: Modelling Approach 

Income and Expenditure 

Black Radley Culture has taken the income and expenditure budgets, adjusted for 
current performance where applicable, for the three organisations for 2013/14 and 
prepared financial scenarios for future models as outlined in section 6.  Models 1 
and 2 involve the three museums remaining as separate organisations whilst 
models 3 and 4 involve the three museums combining to form a single entity. 
 
Each model uses high level assumptions in relation to a number of critical account 
captions.  These are not in any sense predictive but are designed to show how the 
financial scenario might change in the light of the assumptions.  Clearly there must 
be sound rationale for the assumptions.  To enable the models to be compared the 
level of Torbay Council subsidy is the same for all four models.  The subsidy 
remains at the current level for 2014/15 but reduces by 15% in each of years 2 
and 3, 2015/16 and 2016/17. 
 
The assumptions are based on a percentage of existing income or expenditure 
amounts rather than absolute to give an idea of the relative movement.  It is self-
evident that reducing expenditure and increasing income is going to be 
challenging, requiring some very tough decisions by both management and 
Boards. 
 
The models do not include inflation; building in inflationary increases into the 
model creates more complexity and can mask the impact of bigger changes such 
as the key driver of reducing Council subsidy.  The model therefore does not allow 
for inflation in any of the factors: either income or expenditure. 
 

Income Assumptions 
 

 Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 4 

Admission income & gift 

aid 
No change 

Increases by 5% 

in each of the 

three years, due 

increase in 

volumes 

Reduces by 5% in 

each of the three 

years, due to 

reduction in 

volumes 

Increases by 5% in 

the first two years 

and by 10% in year 

3, due to increase 

in volumes 

ACE, HLF and Happy 

Museum grant 
Grant income cease in line with agreed period of funding 

Other grants 
Grant income remains constant for three years, not unrealistic as new grant 

income sources may be accessed 

Fundraising No change No change No change 

Increases by 5% in 

each of the three 

years 

Trading No change 

Increases by 5% 

in each of the 

three years 

No change 

Increases by 5% in 

the first two years 

and by 10% in year 

3 

Subscriptions No change 
Ceases in year 3 on formation of new 

entity. 

Transfer from reserves No further transfer after 2013/14 

Page 165



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 52 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 4 

Rents No change 

Investment Reduces by £4k in year 1 representing the income attributable to TQM. 

 
 
Expenditure Assumptions 
 

 Model 1 Model 2 Model 3 Model 4 

Payroll 
Reduces by 5% in each of the first 

two years for TA and TQM 

Reduces by 10% in each of the first two 

years. £9k of termination costs provided 

ACE, HLF and Happy 

Museum payroll and 

projects costs 

Grant funded activity ceases in line with cessation of income.  No termination 

costs provided. 

Fees No change 

Establishment No change 

Trading No change 

Increases by 5% 

in each of the 

three years 

No change 

Increases by 5% in 

the first two years 

and by 10% in year 

3 

Admin/society 
Reduces by 5% in each of the first 

two years 

Reduces by 10% in each of the first two 

years and by 75% in year 3 on formation 

of the new entity 

Curatorial 
Reduces by 5% in each of the first 

two years 

Reduces by 10% in each of the first two 

years 

Engagement/marketing 
Reduces by 5% in each of the first 

two years 

Reduces by 10% in each of the first two 

years 

Exhibitions No change 

Education & outreach No change 

Other No change 

Governance costs Not applicable 

£5k provided in year 3 to cover 

additional costs of forming the new 

entity 

Central costs No change 

£20k provided in year 3 to resources 

activities previously provided by Torbay 

Council to TA.  These activities are 

currently present within the TQM and 

BXM organisations. 

Capital No change 

 
  

Page 166



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 53 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

The following tables show the income and expenditure accounts generated by the 
assumptions.  For models 2 and 3, the accounts are for the three museums 
separately for models 3 and 4 for one combined entity. 

Model 1 – Remaining separate and cut costs 

 

Torre Abbey 

 

 
 
The cost cutting is not sufficient to offset the combined effect of the loss of 
transfer from reserves in 2014/15 and the deduction of Torbay Council subsidy 
over the following two years. 
  

Torre Abbey 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 83,000 83,000 83,000 83,000

Fundraising 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Trading 54,500 54,500 54,500 54,500

Transfer from reserves 22,865 (22,865) 0 0 0

Rents 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
201,365 (22,865) 178,500 0 178,500 0 178,500

Payroll (201,700) 10,085 (191,615) 9,581 (182,034) (182,034)

Fees (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) (5,000)

Establishment (75,600) (75,600) (75,600) (75,600)

Trading (22,500) (22,500) (22,500) (22,500)

Admin/society (6,400) 320 (6,080) 304 (5,776) (5,776)

Curatorial (24,365) 1,218 (23,147) 1,157 (21,989) (21,989)

Engagement/marketing (23,500) 1,175 (22,325) 1,116 (21,209) (21,209)

Other (7,300) (7,300) (7,300) (7,300)

Total expenditure (366,365) 12,798 (353,567) 12,158 (341,408) 0 (341,408)

Operating deficit (165,000) (175,067) (162,908) (162,908)

Torbay Council subsidy 165,000 165,000 140,250 119,213

Net (deficit)/surplus 0 (10,067) (22,658) (43,696)

Page 167



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 54 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

 

Torquay Museum 
 

 
 
The cost cutting is not sufficient to offset the loss of Torbay Council subsidy and 
the 2013/14 forecast deficit is basically maintained for the three subsequent years. 

Torquay Museum 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 99,000 99,000 99,000 99,000

ACE grant 140,000 140,000 (140,000) 0 0

HLF 39,500 (39,500) 0 0 0

Happy Museum 20,000 (20,000) 0 0 0

Other grants 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500

Fundraising 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000

Trading 44,500 44,500 44,500 44,500

Subscriptions 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

Investment 4,000 (4,000) 0 0 0

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
418,500 (63,500) 355,000 (140,000) 215,000 0 215,000

Payroll (170,000) 8,500 (161,500) 8,075 (153,425) (153,425)

ACE payroll (113,000) (113,000) 113,000 0 0

Happy Museym payroll (14,000) 14,000 0 0 0

ACE project (33,000) (33,000) 33,000 0 0

HLF project (39,500) 39,500 0 0 0

Happy Museum spend (6,000) 6,000 0 0 0

Fees (28,200) (28,200) (28,200) (28,200)

Establishment (80,700) (80,700) (80,700) (80,700)

Trading (12,000) (12,000) (12,000) (12,000)

Admin/society (9,000) 450 (8,550) 428 (8,123) (8,123)

Curatorial (4,000) 200 (3,800) 190 (3,610) (3,610)

Engagement/marketing (7,000) 350 (6,650) 333 (6,318) (6,318)

Exhibitions (13,300) (13,300) (13,300) (13,300)

Education & outreach (2,000) (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)

Capital (3,000) (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)

Total expenditure (534,700) 69,000 (465,700) 155,025 (310,675) 0 (310,675)

Operating deficit (116,200) (110,700) (95,675) (95,675)

Torbay Council subsidy 76,500 76,500 65,025 55,271

Net (deficit)/surplus (39,700) (34,200) (30,650) (40,404)

Page 168



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 55 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Brixham Museum 

 

 
 
The cost cutting is not sufficient to offset the loss of Torbay Council subsidy but 
even so a surplus is still incurred for all three years. 
 
Given Brixham’s low staff levels no payroll reductions have been assumed. 
 
  

Brixham Museum 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 9,156 9,156 9,156 9,156

Other grants 16,846 16,846 16,846 16,846

Fundraising 7,875 7,875 7,875 7,875

Trading 6,348 6,348 6,348 6,348

Subscriptions 2,441 2,441 2,441 2,441

Rents 96 96 96 96

Investment 367 367 367 367

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
43,129 0 43,129 0 43,129 0 43,129

Payroll (33,717) (33,717) (33,717) (33,717)

Fees (100) (100) (100) (100)

Establishment (7,526) (7,526) (7,526) (7,526)

Trading (2,739) (2,739) (2,739) (2,739)

Admin/society (2,047) 102 (1,945) 97 (1,847) (1,847)

Curatorial (1,291) 65 (1,226) 61 (1,165) (1,165)

Engagement/marketing (4,891) 245 (4,646) 232 (4,414) (4,414)

Education & outreach (1,762) (1,762) (1,762) (1,762)

Other (297) (297) (297) (297)

Total expenditure (54,370) 411 (53,959) 391 (53,568) 0 (53,568)

Operating deficit (11,241) (10,830) (10,439) (10,439)

Torbay Council subsidy 20,000 20,000 17,000 14,450

Net (deficit)/surplus 8,759 9,170 6,561 4,011

Page 169



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 56 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Model 2 – Remaining separate, cut costs and achieve enterprise dividend 

 
Torre Abbey 

 

 
 
The cost cutting is not sufficient to offset the combined effect of the loss of 
transfer from reserves in 2014/15 and the deduction of Torbay Council subsidy 
over the following two years even with the additional income realised by the 
enterprise dividend. 
  

Torre Abbey 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 83,000 4,150 87,150 4,358 91,508 4,575 96,083

Fundraising 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

Trading 54,500 2,725 57,225 2,861 60,086 3,004 63,091

Transfer from reserves 22,865 (22,865) 0 0 0

Rents 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
201,365 (15,990) 185,375 7,219 192,594 7,580 200,173

Payroll (201,700) 10,085 (191,615) 9,581 (182,034) (182,034)

Fees (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) (5,000)

Establishment (75,600) (75,600) (75,600) (75,600)

Trading (22,500) (22,500) (22,500) (22,500)

Admin/society (6,400) 320 (6,080) 304 (5,776) (5,776)

Curatorial (24,365) 1,218 (23,147) 1,157 (21,989) (21,989)

Engagement/marketing (23,500) 1,175 (22,325) 1,116 (21,209) (21,209)

Other (7,300) (7,300) (7,300) (7,300)

Total expenditure (366,365) 12,798 (353,567) 12,158 (341,408) 0 (341,408)

Operating deficit (165,000) (168,192) (148,815) (141,235)

Torbay Council subsidy 165,000 165,000 140,250 119,213

Net (deficit)/surplus 0 (3,192) (8,565) (22,022)

Page 170



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 57 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Torquay Museum 

 

 
 
The cost cutting is not sufficient to offset the loss of Torbay Council subsidy even 
with the additional income realised by the enterprise dividend and a deficit is 
incurred for all three years although slightly reduced from the 2013/14 level. 
  

Torquay Museum 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 99,000 4,950 103,950 5,198 109,148 5,457 114,605

ACE grant 140,000 140,000 (140,000) 0 0

HLF 39,500 (39,500) 0 0 0

Happy Museum 20,000 (20,000) 0 0 0

Other grants 9,500 9,500 9,500 9,500

Fundraising 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000

Trading 44,500 2,225 46,725 2,336 49,061 2,453 51,514

Subscriptions 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

Investment 4,000 (4,000) 0 0 0

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
418,500 (56,325) 362,175 (132,466) 229,709 7,910 237,619

Payroll (170,000) 8,500 (161,500) 8,075 (153,425) (153,425)

ACE payroll (113,000) (113,000) 113,000 0 0

Happy Museym payroll (14,000) 14,000 0 0 0

ACE project (33,000) (33,000) 33,000 0 0

HLF project (39,500) 39,500 0 0 0

Happy Museum spend (6,000) 6,000 0 0 0

Fees (28,200) (28,200) (28,200) (28,200)

Establishment (80,700) (80,700) (80,700) (80,700)

Trading (12,000) (600) (12,600) (630) (13,230) (662) (13,892)

Admin/society (9,000) 450 (8,550) 428 (8,123) (8,123)

Curatorial (4,000) 200 (3,800) 190 (3,610) (3,610)

Engagement/marketing (7,000) 350 (6,650) 333 (6,318) (6,318)

Exhibitions (13,300) (13,300) (13,300) (13,300)

Education & outreach (2,000) (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)

Capital (3,000) (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)

Total expenditure (534,700) 68,400 (466,300) 154,395 (311,905) (662) (312,567)

Operating deficit (116,200) (104,125) (82,196) (74,947)

Torbay Council subsidy 76,500 76,500 65,025 55,271

Net (deficit)/surplus (39,700) (27,625) (17,171) (19,676)

Page 171



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 58 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Brixham Museum 

 

 
 
The cost cutting is not sufficient to offset the loss of Torbay Council subsidy even 
with the additional income from the enterprise dividend but even so a surplus is 
still incurred for all three years.  
 

 
  

Brixham Museum 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 9,156 458 9,614 481 10,094 505 10,599

Other grants 16,846 16,846 16,846 16,846

Fundraising 7,875 7,875 7,875 7,875

Trading 6,348 317 6,665 333 6,999 350 7,349

Subscriptions 2,441 2,441 2,441 2,441

Rents 96 96 96 96

Investment 367 367 367 367

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
43,129 775 43,904 814 44,718 855 45,573

Payroll (33,717) (33,717) (33,717) (33,717)

Fees (100) (100) (100) (100)

Establishment (7,526) (7,526) (7,526) (7,526)

Trading (2,739) (137) (2,876) (144) (3,020) (151) (3,171)

Admin/society (2,047) 102 (1,945) 97 (1,847) (1,847)

Curatorial (1,291) ` (1,291) 65 (1,226) (1,226)

Engagement/marketing (4,891) 245 (4,646) 232 (4,414) (4,414)

Education & outreach (1,762) (1,762) (1,762) (1,762)

Other (297) (297) (297) (297)

Total expenditure (54,370) 210 (54,160) 250 (53,910) (151) (54,061)

Operating deficit (11,241) (10,256) (9,192) (8,488)

Torbay Council subsidy 20,000 20,000 17,000 14,450

Net (deficit)/surplus 8,759 9,744 7,808 5,962

Page 172



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 59 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Model 3 – Coming together, stakeholder differences unresolved, no 
enterprise dividend 

 
Single entity 
 

 
 
The model shows a significant worsening of in financial performance.  The cost 
cutting is not sufficient to offset the loss of visitor income and reduction in Torbay 
Council subsidy. 
  

Combined entity 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 191,156 (9,558) 181,598 (9,080) 172,518 (8,626) 163,892

ACE grant 140,000 140,000 (140,000) 0 0

HLF 39,500 (39,500) 0 0 0

Happy Museum 20,000 (20,000) 0 0 0

Other grants 26,346 26,346 26,346 26,346

Fundraising 56,875 56,875 56,875 56,875

Trading 105,348 105,348 105,348 105,348

Subscriptions 16,441 16,441 16,441 (16,441) 0

Transfer from reserves 22,865 (22,865) 0 0 0

Rents 40,096 40,096 40,096 40,096

Investment 4,367 (4,000) 367 367 367

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
662,994 (95,923) 567,071 (149,080) 417,991 (25,067) 392,924

Payroll (405,417) 40,542 (364,875) 36,488 (328,388) (328,388)

Termination costs 0 (9,000) (9,000) (9,000) 0

ACE payroll (113,000) (113,000) 113,000 0 0

Happy Museym payroll (14,000) 14,000 0 0 0

ACE project (33,000) (33,000) 33,000 0 0

HLF project (39,500) 39,500 0 0 0

Happy Museum spend (6,000) 6,000 0 0 0

Fees (33,300) (33,300) (33,300) (33,300)

Establishment (163,826) (163,826) (163,826) (163,826)

Trading (37,239) (37,239) (37,239) (37,239)

Admin/society (17,447) 1,745 (15,702) 1,570 (14,132) 10,599 (3,533)

Curatorial (29,656) 2,966 (26,690) 2,669 (24,021) (24,021)

Engagement/marketing (35,391) 3,539 (31,852) 3,185 (28,667) (28,667)

Exhibitions (13,300) (13,300) (13,300) (13,300)

Education & outreach (3,762) (3,762) (3,762) (3,762)

Other (7,597) (7,597) (7,597) (7,597)

Governance costs 0 0 0 (5,000) (5,000)

Central costs 0 0 0 (20,000) (20,000)

Capital (3,000) (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)

Total expenditure (955,435) 99,291 (856,144) 189,912 (666,232) (14,401) (671,633)

Operating deficit (292,441) (289,073) (248,241) (278,708)

Torbay Council subsidy 261,500 261,500 222,275 188,934

Net (deficit)/surplus (30,941) (27,573) (25,966) (89,775)

Page 173



Torbay Museums – Final Report  October 2013 

© Black Radley Ltd 2013 60 Tel: 0845-226-0363 

Model 4 – Coming together, cut costs and achieve enterprise dividend 

 
Single entity 

 

 
 
The model shows a break even business by year 3, 2016/17, but only just. 

Combined entity 13/14 Adj 1 14/15 Adj 2 15/16 Adj 3 16/17

Admissions & gift aid 191,156 9,558 200,714 10,036 210,749 21,075 231,824

ACE grant 140,000 140,000 (140,000) 0 0

HLF 39,500 (39,500) 0 0 0

Happy Museum 20,000 (20,000) 0 0 0

Other grants 26,346 26,346 26,346 26,346

Fundraising 56,875 2,844 59,719 2,986 62,705 3,135 65,840

Trading 105,348 5,267 110,615 5,531 116,146 11,615 127,761

Subscriptions 16,441 16,441 16,441 (16,441) 0

Transfer from reserves 22,865 (22,865) 0 0 0

Rents 40,096 40,096 40,096 40,096

Investment 4,367 (4,367) 0 0 0

Total income not including Council 

subsidy
662,994 (69,063) 593,931 (121,448) 472,483 19,384 491,867

Payroll (405,417) 40,542 (364,875) 36,488 (328,388) (328,388)

Termination costs 0 (9,000) (9,000) (9,000) 0

ACE payroll (113,000) (113,000) 113,000 0 0

Happy Museym payroll (14,000) 14,000 0 0 0

ACE project (33,000) (33,000) 33,000 0 0

HLF project (39,500) 39,500 0 0 0

Happy Museum spend (6,000) 6,000 0 0 0

Fees (33,300) (33,300) (33,300) (33,300)

Establishment (163,826) (163,826) (163,826) (163,826)

Trading (37,239) (1,862) (39,101) (1,955) (41,056) (4,106) (45,162)

Admin/society (17,447) 1,745 (15,702) 1,570 (14,132) 10,599 (3,533)

Curatorial (29,656) 2,966 (26,690) 2,669 (24,021) (24,021)

Engagement/marketing (35,391) 3,539 (31,852) 3,185 (28,667) (28,667)

Exhibitions (13,300) (13,300) (13,300) (13,300)

Education & outreach (3,762) (3,762) (3,762) (3,762)

Other (7,597) (7,597) (7,597) (7,597)

Governance costs 0 0 0 (5,000) (5,000)

Central costs 0 0 0 (20,000) (20,000)

Capital (3,000) (3,000) (3,000) (3,000)

Total expenditure (955,435) 97,429 (858,006) 187,957 (670,049) (18,507) (679,555)

Operating deficit (292,441) (264,075) (197,566) (187,688)

Torbay Council subsidy 261,500 261,500 222,275 188,934

Net (deficit)/surplus (30,941) (2,575) 24,709 1,245

Page 174



F
U

T
U

R
E

 M
U

S
E

U
M

S
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
   

   
   

   
  

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 –

 A
p

r/
M

a
y

/J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

V
e

rs
io

n
 4

 

P
ro

je
ct

 S
tr

a
n

d
 

O
u

tl
in

e
 

A
ct

io
n

 
O

u
tp

u
ts

  
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

G
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 

ch
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l o
f 

th
e

 t
h

re
e

 s
it

e
s.

  
T

h
e

 m
u

se
u

m
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 

co
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

e
a

ch
 o

th
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

p
u

rp
o

se
. 

 A
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 

m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
a

 n
e

w
 g

o
ve

rn
a

n
ce

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 

th
e

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 T

ru
st

. 
 T

h
e

re
 w

il
l 

b
e

 a
 

se
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 M

u
se

u
m

 S
o

ci
e

ty
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
T

o
rq

u
a

y
 M

u
se

u
m

. 
T

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 o
f 

T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 is

 l
e

ss
 

ce
rt

a
in

 b
u

t 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

il
l b

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
a

n
d

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
ta

ke
n

 

b
y

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r.
  

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l j
o

in
-

u
p

 a
n

d
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 m

u
st

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 f

a
ci

li
ta

te
d

 a
n

d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
(s

e
e

 b
e

lo
w

 f
o

r 

sp
e

ci
fi

cs
).

  T
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 J
o

in
t 

D
e

li
ve

ry
 G

ro
u

p
s 

w
il

l 

fe
e

d
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

st
ru

ct
u

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

m
e

rg
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 T
Q

M
 a

n
d

 

T
o

rr
e

. 

 R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t 

T
Q

M
 i

s 
to

 r
e

v
is

e
 t

h
e

 

re
ce

p
ti

o
n

 l
a

yo
u

t 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 a
 s

in
g

le
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
st

a
ff

 t
o

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 b
o

th
 r

e
ce

p
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
p

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

u
t 

st
a

ff
in

g
 c

o
st

s 
- 

th
is

 w
il

l b
ri

n
g

 a
b

o
u

t 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
sa

v
in

g
s 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 d
u

ri
n

g
 o

ff
 p

e
a

k 
m

o
n

th
s.

 

 W
o

rk
s 

a
t 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 e

xi
st

in
g

 

re
ce

p
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
v

is
it

o
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 

to
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 v
is

it
s.

   

  

1
. 

T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
to

 c
a

rr
y

 o
u

t 
in

te
rn

a
l 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
to

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

 b
e

st
 

m
o

d
e

l 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

. 
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 b
y

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

. 

2
. 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

M
u

se
u

m
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 H

LF
 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 P

ro
p

o
sa

l i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 m

o
v

in
g

 

to
w

a
rd

s 
a

 n
e

w
 T

ru
st

 a
n

d
 s

e
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 

th
e

 M
u

se
u

m
 S

o
ci

e
ty

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 M
u

se
u

m
 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

. 
 D

e
ta

il
e

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
a

b
le

 b
y

 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 l

a
u

n
ch

e
d

 

a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 b
y

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
 L

in
k

a
g

e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 w

it
h

 T
o

rb
a

y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l/

T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
m

a
d

e
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
  

T
o

rb
a

y
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l o

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 b
y

 J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
4

. 

3
. 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
jo

in
 u

p
 t

o
 b

e
 e

xp
lo

re
d

. 
 K

e
y

 

a
re

a
s 

a
re

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
, 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, 

co
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 

fu
n

d
ra

is
in

g
/g

ra
n

ts
. 

 O
th

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 b

e
 e

xp
lo

it
e

d
 w

h
e

re
ve

r 
th

e
y

 o
cc

u
r.

  

4
. 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

d
 e

.g
. 

st
a

ff
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

sk
il

ls
, 

jo
in

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 e
v

e
n

ts
, 

st
a

ff
 h

e
lp

in
g

 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

ve
n

ts
. 

5
. 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t 

T
Q

M
  

- 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
rc

h
it

e
ct

s 
to

 t
a

ke
 

p
la

ce
 i

n
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
, 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

4
 w

it
h

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0

1
4

. 

6
. 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
t 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 -

  

P
la

n
s 

d
ra

w
n

 u
p

 b
y

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
 I

n
 

p
la

ce
 b

y
 e

n
d

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
5

. 

 

1
. 

A
 d

e
fi

n
e

d
 o

p
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

f 
T

o
rr

e
 

A
b

b
e

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y 
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 b

y
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
. 

 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s 

le
d

 b
y 

S
u

e
 C

h
e

ri
to

n
 a

n
d

 D
a

ve
 

B
u

tt
. 

2
. 

A
 n

e
w

 T
ru

st
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 f
o

r 
T

Q
M

 (
w

h
ic

h
 l

in
k

s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 o

p
ti

o
n

 i
f 

p
o

ss
ib

le
) 

b
y

 

e
n

d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
s 

le
d

 b
y 

P
h

il
 

C
o

ll
in

s 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

B
a

si
l 

G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d

. 
  

3
. 

A
 c

lo
se

 w
o

rk
in

g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 T

Q
M

 

a
n

d
 T

A
 w

it
h

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 

m
u

tu
a

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 –
 4

 ‘
D

e
li

v
e

ry
 G

ro
u

p
s’

 s
e

t 
u

p
 

b
y

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

. 
T

h
e

 4
 G

ro
u

p
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
/M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

/C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

G
ra

n
ts

 &
 F

u
n

d
ra

is
in

g
. 

 T
h

e
se

 

G
ro

u
p

s 
w

il
l m

e
e

t 
m

o
n

th
ly

, 
co

n
ve

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y 
B

a
si

l 
G

re
e

n
w

o
o

d
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
ri

se
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 e
a

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 3

 m
u

se
u

m
s.

 

4
.  

A
 c

le
a

rl
y 

d
e

fi
n

e
d

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 3

 

si
te

s 
a

n
d

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
  N

e
w

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 L

e
ve

l 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

(p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 f
o

r 
B

ri
xh

a
m

) 
w

h
e

re
 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

m
u

se
u

m
s 

is
 c

le
a

rl
y

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
d

. 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 e

n
d

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
4

. 
 T

h
is

 

w
o

rk
 w

il
l 

b
e

 l
e

d
 b

y
 B

a
si

l G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 A

la
n

 

D
a

v
ie

s.
 

5
. 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s 
a

t 
T

Q
M

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 S

e
p

t 

2
0

1
4

. 
 L

e
d

 b
y

 B
a

si
l G

re
e

n
w

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 P
h

il
 

C
o

ll
in

s.
 

6
. 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s 
a

t 
B

ri
xh

a
m

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 F

e
b

 

2
0

1
5

. 
Le

d
 b

y
 P

h
il 

A
rm

it
a

g
e

. 

1
. 

T
o

rb
a

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

n
 i

n
te

rn
a

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 T

o
rr

e
 A

b
b

e
y

 a
n

d
 

T
o

rq
u

a
y 

M
u

se
u

m
. 

 T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

n
e

e
d

s 
m

o
re

 

d
e

ta
il

e
d

 s
cr

u
ti

n
y

 a
n

d
 a

ct
u

a
l 

st
a

ff
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 

b
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 t

o
 f

in
a

li
se

 t
h

e
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 c

a
se

. 
W

it
h

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
u

ts
 i

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l w
o

rk
 

n
e

e
d

s 
to

 p
ro

ce
e

d
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 t
o

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
 a

 j
o

in
t 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 –
 a

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 i
s 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 i
n

 

Ju
ly

/A
u

g
u

st
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n

d
 b

u
il

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 w
o

rk
 d

o
n

e
 o

n
 ‘

T
o

rb
a

y 
M

u
se

u
m

s 
–

 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

s’
 (

A
n

n
e

x 
1

).
 

2
. 

W
o

rk
 i

s 
p

ro
ce

e
d

in
g

 o
n

 p
u

tt
in

g
 a

 n
e

w
 T

ru
st

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 

fo
r 

T
Q

M
. 

 A
 t

im
e

ta
b

le
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y 

T
Q

M
 B

o
a

rd
 (

A
n

n
e

x 
2

).
   

3
. 

A
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
le

g
a

l 
a

d
v

ic
e

 F
M

 P
ro

je
ct

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 f
ro

m
 

Ja
m

e
s 

E
v

a
n

s 
o

f 
F

o
o

t 
A

n
st

e
y

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 

n
o

w
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y 

T
Q

M
 B

o
a

rd
, 

H
LF

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 F
u

tu
re

 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y 

b
e

in
g

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 i
s 

to
: 

•
 

u
se

 t
h

e
 e

xi
st

in
g

 T
o

rq
u

a
y

 M
u

se
u

m
 S

o
ci

e
ty

 c
h

a
ri

ty
, 

a
n

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 c
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 c

o
m

p
a

n
y

 l
im

it
e

d
 b

y
 

g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
, 

a
s 

th
e

 b
a

si
s 

o
f 

th
e

  
M

u
se

u
m

/H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 

T
ru

st
 

•
 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
 t

o
ta

ll
y

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 n
e

w
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 –

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y

 a
 n

e
w

 c
h

a
ri

ty
 –

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 

th
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

w
id

e
r 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 f
o

cu
ss

e
d

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 o

f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 s

o
ci

e
ty

  
- 

ra
m

b
li

n
g

, 
b

o
ta

n
y

, 
a

st
ro

n
o

m
y

 

e
tc

 

•
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 a

d
o

p
t 

re
v

is
e

d
/n

e
w

 a
rt

ic
le

s 
fo

r 
b

o
th

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

•
 

ch
a

n
g

e
 t

h
e

 n
a

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 c

h
a

ri
ty

 t
o

 e
g

 

T
o

rb
a

y 
M

u
se

u
m

 o
r 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 T
ru

st
 –

 n
a

m
e

 t
o

 b
e

 

a
g

re
e

d
 

•
 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
 n

e
w

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

T
ru

st
e

e
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 

M
u

se
u

m
 T

ru
st

 w
it

h
 a

 m
a

xi
m

u
m

 o
f 

2
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
v

e
s 

 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

4
. 

T
h

e
 M

u
se

u
m

 T
ru

st
 w

il
l :

 

•
 

re
ta

in
 t

h
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

le
a

se
h

o
ld

 o
f 

T
o

rq
u

a
y

 M
u

se
u

m
’s

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

ll
 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 l

ia
b

il
it

ie
s,

  
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 a

n
y

 r
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

ci
e

s 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

n
y 

st
a

ff
 r

e
st

ru
ct

u
ri

n
g

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 

•
 

e
n

te
r 

in
to

 a
 l

ic
e

n
se

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
w

il
l 

d
e

fi
n

e
 t

h
e

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 u

se
 o

f 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 

m
u

se
u

m
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 

 

5
. 

T
Q

M
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 p
ro

g
re

ss
in

g
 t

h
is

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 g
o

ve
rn

a
n

ce
 

a
lo

n
e

, 
a

s 
T

Q
M

 h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
fo

rm
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
T

o
rb

a
y

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

w
is

h
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 5

Page 175



F
U

T
U

R
E

 M
U

S
E

U
M

S
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
   

   
   

   
  

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 –

 A
p

r/
M

a
y

/J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

V
e

rs
io

n
 4

 

jo
in

t 
T

ru
st

. 
 H

o
w

e
ve

r 
T

Q
M

 h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 

n
e

w
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

n
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
n

su
ri

n
g

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
v

is
e

d
 a

rt
ic

le
s 

a
n

d
 n

e
w

 B
o

a
rd

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 f
it

 

fo
r 

p
u

rp
o

se
 t

o
 i

n
co

rp
o

ra
te

 s
u

ch
 a

 j
o

in
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

. 
 W

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

u
ts

 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y,

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 

jo
in

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 b

a
ck

 o
n

 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 f

o
r 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

. 

6
. 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 g

ro
u

p
s 

b
e

in
g

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 –

 s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
. 

7
. 

N
e

w
 S

LA
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 lo

o
k

e
d

 i
n

to
 b

y
 T

o
rb

a
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l.

 

8
. 

R
e

ce
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s 
a

t 
T

Q
M

 a
n

d
 B

ri
xh

a
m

 s
ti

ll
 i

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

st
a

g
e

s.
 

A
u

d
ie

n
ce

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 e
xi

st
in

g
 a

n
d

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l a
u

d
ie

n
ce

 f
o

r 
T

o
rb

a
y

 M
u

se
u

m
s.

  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
ll

e
ct

e
d

 i
n

 a
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

fo
rm

a
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
e

d
s 

re
v

ie
w

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 w
il

l 
b

e
 l

e
d

 b
y

 B
a

si
l 

G
re

e
n

w
o

o
d

 w
it

h
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 N
a

th
a

li
e

 P
a

lin
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
se

u
m

s 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 D

e
li

ve
ry

 G
ro

u
p

. 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

w
o

rk
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l 

st
ra

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

T
o

rb
a

y 
le

d
 b

y 
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

T
o

rb
a

y 
D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
g

e
n

cy
. 

 B
o

th
 P

h
il

 C
o

ll
in

s 
a

n
d

 

A
la

n
 D

a
v

ie
s 

a
re

 b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
su

lt
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
is

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

A
u

d
ie

n
ce

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
. 

 A
n

g
e

la
 C

a
p

p
e

ll
o

 (
T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 o

ff
ic

e
r)

 w
il

l 
a

ls
o

 a
ct

 a
s 

a
 c

o
n

d
u

it
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

w
o

rk
 –

 

A
n

g
e

la
 s

it
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 J

o
in

t 
M

u
se

u
m

s 
M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 

G
ro

u
p

. 

 P
o

st
co

d
e

 d
a

ta
 i

s 
co

ll
e

ct
e

d
 a

s 
a

 n
o

rm
a

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

 

a
t 

T
Q

M
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

h
a

t 
si

m
il

a
r 

d
a

ta
 i

s 
co

ll
e

ct
e

d
 

a
t 

T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 a

n
d

 B
ri

xh
a

m
. 

 T
h

e
 M

e
ra

c 
ti

ll
s 

sy
st

e
m

 in
 

p
la

ce
 a

t 
T

Q
M

 a
n

d
 T

o
rr

e
 a

llo
w

 e
a

sy
 a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 t

h
is

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 d
a

ta
 o

n
 a

d
m

is
si

o
n

s 
ty

p
e

 e
.g

. 
g

ro
u

p
s,

 

sc
h

o
o

ls
, 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
e

tc
. 

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 

e
a

si
ly

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 h

o
p

e
fu

ll
y

 b
e

 

su
p

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 v

is
it

o
r 

su
rv

e
y

s 
o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
si

s.
 

  

1
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 e

xi
st

in
g

 a
u

d
ie

n
ce

 in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

2
.  

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

n
 a

u
d

ie
n

ce
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 

th
a

t 
a

ls
o

 g
iv

e
s 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

w
id

e
r 

T
o

rb
a

y 
o

ff
e

r.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e

fe
re

n
ce

 

a
n

d
 l

in
k

 i
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 

T
o

rb
a

y
. 

3
. 

U
ti

li
se

 p
la

n
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 f

u
tu

re
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 

a
n

d
 e

v
e

n
ts

 e
tc

. 
A

 j
o

in
t 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

ct
io

n
 

p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

. 

4
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g

 o
f 

e
v

e
n

ts
 a

t 
th

e
 3

 

si
te

s.
 

5
. 

S
ig

n
 u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e

 V
is

it
o

r 
V

e
rd

ic
t 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
in

g
 s

ch
e

m
e

. 
 

1
. 

A
n

 a
u

d
ie

n
ce

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 t

h
a

t 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 g

u
id

e
s 

a
ct

io
n

 a
t 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 b
y 

A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
1

4
. 

A
 c

le
a

r 
p

la
n

 a
s 

to
 

w
h

ic
h

 a
u

d
ie

n
ce

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 

b
e

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
il

l 
b

e
 u

ti
li

se
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

Jo
in

t 
M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 t
o

 g
u

id
e

 m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

 T
h

is
 G

ro
u

p
 w

il
l 

se
t 

o
u

t 
a

n
 a

ct
io

n
 

p
la

n
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 b

y
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
1

4
. 

2
. 

A
 c

le
a

r 
d

e
fi

n
it

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 U
SP

 f
o

r 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

s 
b

y 
A

u
g

u
st

 

2
0

1
4

. 

3
. 

S
ig

n
 u

p
 t

o
 V

is
it

o
r 

V
e

rd
ic

t 
b

y
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
. 

4
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

o
u

tp
u

ts
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 ‘

jo
in

e
d

 u
p

’ 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 T

o
rb

a
y’

s 
w

id
e

r 

cu
lt

u
ra

l 
st

ra
te

g
y

 a
s 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 i
s 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
. 

1
. 

Li
tt

le
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 o
n

 a
u

d
ie

n
ce

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 a

s 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 f
o

cu
ss

e
d

 o
n

 s
e

tt
in

g
 u

p
 

jo
in

t 
ti

ck
e

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 –
 

se
e

 b
e

lo
w

 u
n

d
e

r 
m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

. 

2
. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 p

la
n

s 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
T

Q
M

 a
n

d
 T

A
 w

it
h

 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

. 

3
. 

In
it

ia
l 

si
g

n
 u

p
 t

o
 V

is
it

o
r 

V
e

rd
ic

t 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t.

  T
Q

M
 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 s

ch
e

m
e

 a
n

d
 e

- m
a

il
 c

o
ll

e
ct

io
n

 

p
o

li
cy

 t
o

 f
e

e
d

 i
n

to
 V

V
. 

 B
ri

xh
a

m
 h

a
ve

 u
n

re
so

lv
e

d
 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 s
ch

e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 M
u

se
u

m
. 

 T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 

lo
o

k
in

g
 i

n
to

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 s
ch

e
m

e
 c

a
n

 b
e

 im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

T
h

e
 p

re
m

is
e

 i
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s 

co
n

si
d

e
ra

b
le

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l t
o

 

g
e

t 
a

d
d

e
d

 v
a

lu
e

 f
ro

m
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 3

 m
u

se
u

m
s 

a
s 

o
n

e
 –

 ‘
T

o
rb

a
y 

M
u

se
u

m
s’

 –
 a

 3
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
o

ff
e

r.
  

It
 i

s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 D
e

li
ve

ry
 T

e
a

m
 i

s 

fo
rm

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 F
M

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 F
M

 P
ro

je
ct

 t
o

 c
o

m
b

in
e

 w
it

h
 e

xi
st

in
g

 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

 w
h

e
re

 p
o

ss
ib

le
. 

B
a

si
c 

id
e

a
 i

s 
to

 d
ri

ve
 u

p
 

v
is

it
o

r 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 i

n
co

m
e

. 
 L

in
k

s 
w

it
h

 K
e

n
ts

 

C
a

v
e

rn
 w

il
l 

b
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
xp

lo
re

d
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 j
o

in
t 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s.
  

 

1
. 

S
e

t 
u

p
 a

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 D

e
li

ve
ry

 

T
e

a
m

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

o
n

 a
 m

o
n

th
ly

 b
a

si
s 

to
 

d
ri

v
e

 a
ct

io
n

s 
fo

rw
a

rd
. 

2
. 

T
a

k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 j

o
in

t 
ti

ck
e

ti
n

g
. 

3
. 

T
a

k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 j

o
in

t 
le

a
fl

e
t 

to
 m

a
rk

e
t 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

a
n

d
 j

o
in

t 
ti

ck
e

ti
n

g
. 

4
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 j
o

in
t 

p
o

st
e

rs
 a

n
d

 b
a

n
n

e
rs

 f
o

r 

u
se

 a
ro

u
n

d
 T

o
rb

a
y

. 

5
. 

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
jo

in
t 

e
-

n
e

w
sl

e
tt

e
r.

 

6
. 

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 a

d
v

e
rt

is
in

g
/p

re
ss

 r
e

le
a

se
s.

 

1
. 

A
n

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 D

e
li

ve
ry

 

T
e

a
m

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

4
. 

2
. 

Jo
in

t 
ti

ck
e

t 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s 

b
y

 J
u

n
e

 

2
0

1
4

. 

3
. 

Jo
in

t 
le

a
fl

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
b

y
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
. 

4
. 

Jo
in

t 
p

o
st

e
rs

 a
n

d
 b

a
n

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
in

 

p
la

ce
 a

cr
o

ss
 T

o
rb

a
y

 b
y 

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

4
. 

5
. 

A
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
jo

in
t 

e
-n

e
w

sl
e

tt
e

r 
e

ve
ry

 5
 –

 8
 w

e
e

k
s 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 t

im
e

 o
f 

y
e

a
r.

 

6
. 

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
d

ve
rt

is
in

g
 i

n
 l

o
ca

l 
p

u
b

li
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
. 

1
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
o

f 
jo

in
t 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
e

a
m

 

ta
k

in
g

 p
la

ce
. 

  

2
. 

M
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
a

ls
o

 n
o

w
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y

 K
e

n
ts

 C
a

v
e

rn
 (

Ja
m

e
s 

H
u

ll
/N

ic
k

 P
o

w
e

).
 

3
. 

Jo
in

t 
ti

ck
e

t 
–

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 P
a

ss
 -

 d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 b
y 

a
ll

 3
 m

u
se

u
m

s 
p

lu
s 

K
e

n
ts

 C
a

v
e

rn
 -

  L
a

u
n

ch
e

d
 J

u
ly

 1
st

..
  

K
e

n
ts

 C
a

v
e

rn
 h

a
ve

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 o
n

-l
in

e
 t

ic
ke

ti
n

g
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 

a
n

d
 w

il
l 

a
d

m
in

is
te

r 
d

is
b

u
rs

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
m

o
n

ie
s.

 L
in

k 
to

 

ti
ck

e
ts

 i
s 

v
ia

 t
h

e
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
w

e
b

-p
o

rt
a

l.
  

S
ta

ff
 t

ra
in

e
d

 

in
 h

o
w

 t
o

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 P
a

ss
 t

ic
k

e
ts

. 

4
. 

Jo
in

t 
le

a
fl

e
t 

fo
r 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 P
a

ss
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 (

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 

Page 176



F
U

T
U

R
E

 M
U

S
E

U
M

S
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
   

   
   

   
  

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 –

 A
p

r/
M

a
y

/J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

V
e

rs
io

n
 4

 

T
h

is
 G

ro
u

p
 w

il
l 

h
a

ve
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 3

 

M
u

se
u

m
s.

  L
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 A
n

g
e

la
 C

a
p

p
e

ll
o

 (
M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 

O
ff

ic
e

r,
 T

o
rb

a
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l)

, 
M

a
rt

in
 H

o
a

re
 (

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r,
 T

o
rr

e
 A

b
b

e
y

),
 C

a
rl

 S
m

it
h

 (
M

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

/V
is

it
o

r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 T
Q

M
),

 P
h

il
ip

 A
rm

it
a

g
e

 (
B

xm
 C

u
ra

to
r)

. 
 I

n
v

it
e

 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 K
e

n
ts

 C
a

ve
rn

 (
N

ic
k 

P
o

w
e

/J
a

m
e

s 

H
u

ll
).

 

   

7
. 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 j

o
in

t 
m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

. 

8
.  

C
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 u

sa
g

e
 

o
f 

so
ci

a
l m

e
d

ia
 e

.g
. 

F
a

ce
b

o
o

k
, 

T
w

it
te

r 

e
tc

. 

9
. 

In
v

it
e

 J
a

m
e

s 
H

u
ll

/N
ic

k 
P

o
w

e
 o

n
to

 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 g
ro

u
p

. 

1
0

. 
Li

n
k

s 
to

 w
id

e
r 

T
o

rb
a

y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
/a

ct
io

n
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 f

a
ci

lit
a

te
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 

o
f 

th
e

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

T
e

a
m

 w
h

o
 a

re
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

T
o

rb
a

y 
in

it
ia

ti
v

e
s.

  

7
. 

A
 j

o
in

t 
m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 t
h

a
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 

a
u

d
ie

n
ce

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
. 

D
ra

ft
e

d
 b

y
 M

a
y 

2
0

1
4

. 

co
p

ie
s)

 a
n

d
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 b
y

 W
e

st
w

a
rd

 M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

 P
ly

m
o

u
th

, 
T

o
rb

a
y,

 A
vo

n
 &

 D
a

rt
, 

B
o

ve
y 

&
 T

e
ig

n
, 

a
n

d
 E

xe
te

r 
re

g
io

n
s.

  

5
. 

Jo
in

t 
b

a
n

n
e

rs
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 a
t 

K
in

g
s 

B
o

w
li

n
g

 C
lu

b
, 

A
b

b
e

y
 P

a
rk

 

G
a

te
s 

(B
e

lg
ra

v
e

 R
o

a
d

) 
&

 R
iv

ie
ra

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 

6
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

jo
in

t 
e

-n
e

w
sl

e
tt

e
r 

b
e

in
g

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 a
n

d
 s

e
n

t 

o
u

t 
to

 e
-m

a
il 

co
n

ta
ct

s.
 

7
. 

P
a

lm
 F

M
 R

a
d

io
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
v

e
rt

is
in

g
. 

 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

  
1

st
 J

u
ly

 –
 2

1
st

 J
u

ly
 (

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 o
n

 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 s
e

e
 A

n
n

e
x 

3
).

  A
d

v
e

rt
is

in
g

 2
5

th
 J

u
ly

 –
 

2
9

th
 A

u
g

u
st

. 
 

8
. 

T
h

re
e

 h
a

lf
 p

a
g

e
 a

d
ve

rt
s 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

n
g

li
sh

 

R
iv

ie
ra

 M
a

g
a

zi
n

e
 (

A
u

g
u

st
/S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
&

 

O
ct

o
b

e
r/

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
&

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r/
Ja

n
u

a
ry

).
  

P
lu

s 
1

5
0

 

w
o

rd
s 

o
f 

co
p

y
 (

p
lu

s 
p

h
o

to
) 

in
 t

h
e

 m
a

g
a

zi
n

e
’s

 

O
p

e
n

e
rs

 N
e

w
s 

Se
ct

io
n

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
a

u
n

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 P
a

ss
. 

A
ls

o
, 

in
 t

h
e

 O
ct

o
b

e
r/

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
is

su
e

 

o
f 

th
e

 m
a

g
a

zi
n

e
 t

h
e

 e
d

it
o

r 
w

il
l 

w
ri

te
 a

 f
e

a
tu

re
 o

n
 o

n
e

 

o
f 

th
e

 a
tt

ra
ct

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

a
t 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 w

il
l 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 P

a
ss

. 

9
. 

H
e

ra
ld

 E
xp

re
ss

 a
d

ve
rt

is
in

g
/p

u
ll

 o
u

t 
fe

a
tu

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

u
t 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

A
u

g
u

st
/S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
la

u
n

ch
. 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

T
h

e
 p

re
m

is
e

 i
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
re

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 g
e

t 

a
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

ro
m

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 a

cr
o

ss
 

th
e

 3
 m

u
se

u
m

s.
 I

t 
is

 r
e

co
g

n
is

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

B
ri

xh
a

m
 M

u
se

u
m

 

m
ig

h
t 

fa
ll

 o
u

ts
id

e
 t

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
s 

it
 h

a
s 

a
 w

e
ll

-d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 p
ri

n
ci

p
a

ll
y

 b
y 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 –

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it

 i
s 

h
o

p
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
B

ri
xh

a
m

 w
il

l s
ti

ll 

co
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
e

a
m

 i
s 

fo
rm

e
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

F
M

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r.
 

     

1
. 

S
e

t 
u

p
 a

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 D

e
li

ve
ry

 

T
e

a
m

 –
 B

a
si

l 
G

re
e

n
w

o
o

d
, 

D
e

e
 S

te
p

h
e

n
s,

 

A
li

 M
a

rs
h

a
ll

, 
Le

a
h

 W
h

it
ch

e
r,

 P
h

il
 C

o
ll

in
s,

 

A
la

n
 D

a
v

ie
s.

 L
in

k
s 

w
il

l b
e

 m
a

d
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

th
is

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 w
id

e
r 

T
o

rb
a

y 

in
it

ia
ti

v
e

s.
 

2
. 

M
a

p
 e

xi
st

in
g

 s
k

il
ls

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s.

 

3
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 s

k
il

ls
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

t 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s 

–
 i

.e
. 

w
h

a
t 

is
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

4
. 

E
xp

lo
re

 h
o

w
 t

o
 f

il
l 

a
n

y
 g

a
p

s 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

u
ti

li
si

n
g

 r
e

d
e

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

xi
st

in
g

, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 u

p
, 

b
u

y
in

g
 i

n
. 

5
. 

C
o

n
si

d
e

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

w
id

e
r 

b
u

t 
re

la
te

d
 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 T
o

rb
a

y
 –

 K
e

n
ts

, 

G
e

o
p

a
rk

, 
C

o
ck

in
g

to
n

, 
B

y
g

o
n

e
s 

6
. 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

n
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
cr

o
ss

 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s.
 

7
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

o
o

l o
f 

‘b
o

u
g

h
t-

in
’ 

e
xp

e
rt

is
e

 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 s

e
ss

io
n

s.
 

 

1
. 

A
n

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

T
e

a
m

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 m
o

n
th

ly
 f

ro
m

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

4
. 

2
. 

A
 c

le
a

r 
p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 s
k

il
ls

 a
t 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 

b
y

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

. 

3
. 

A
n

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n

si
d

e
rs

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 

si
te

s 
in

 t
h

e
 b

a
y 

b
y

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
. 

T
h

is
 w

il
l 

o
u

tl
in

e
 

th
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

s 
fo

r 
a

ct
io

n
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 

a
n

d
 w

h
o

 m
ig

h
t 

d
e

liv
e

r 
th

is
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

rk
 

w
il

l 
fe

e
d

 i
n

to
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
o

 b
e

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 

b
y

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
4

. 

4
. 

A
 p

o
o

l o
f 

3
-5

 e
d

u
ca

to
rs

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
e

d
 

to
 c

o
m

e
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

s 
to

 d
e

li
v

e
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

se
ss

io
n

s 
b

y
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
. 

T
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
2

0
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 

to
 b

e
 d

e
li

ve
re

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 

1
. 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
e

a
m

 s
e

t 
u

p
. 

2
.  

Jo
in

t 
st

ra
te

g
y 

st
il

l 
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

b
e

in
g

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 –

 H
R

 

is
su

e
s 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

. 

3
. 

Jo
in

t 
sc

h
o

o
ls

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 l

is
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
. 

4
. 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 le

a
fl

e
t 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 (
A

n
n

e
x 

4
) 

a
n

d
 

ci
rc

u
la

te
d

 t
o

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 i

n
 T

o
rb

a
y

. 
 L

e
a

fl
e

t 
w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 b

e
 

ci
rc

u
la

te
d

 b
y 

e
-m

a
il

. 

5
. 

P
o

o
l o

f 
5

 e
d

u
ca

to
rs

 b
e

in
g

 t
ra

in
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 d

e
li

ve
r 

se
ss

io
n

s 
a

t 
T

Q
M

. 

6
. 

E
v

a
lu

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 c
o

re
 G

e
o

h
u

b
 E

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

a
n

d
 c

o
re

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 –
 n

o
w

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 o
n

 

w
e

b
si

te
 (

se
e

 l
in

k
s 

b
e

lo
w

) 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

o
rq

u
a

ym
u

se
u

m
.o

rg
/l

e
a

rn
/s

ch
o

o
ls

/p
ri

m

a
ry

/c
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

 h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

o
rq

u
a

ym
u

se
u

m
.o

rg
/l

e
a

rn
/s

ch
o

o
ls

/p
ri

m

a
ry

/g
e

o
h

u
b

 

 

7
. 

U
p

d
a

te
d

 c
o

re
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
p

a
g

e
s 

o
n

 s
it

e
 (

se
e

 l
in

k
s 

a
b

o
v

e
) 

to
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 s

e
lf

-g
u

id
e

d
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 v
is

it
s 

to
 e

n
h

a
n

ce
 

su
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
sc

h
o

o
ls

 o
ff

e
r 

(n
o

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
u

y
 i

n
 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

) 

8
. 

In
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

b
a

se
d

 d
o

w
n

lo
a

d
a

b
le

 s
e

lf
 –

g
u

id
e

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
to

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 

se
ct

io
n

 o
f 

w
e

b
si

te
, 

to
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

ro
m

o
te

 s
e

lf
-g

u
id

e
d

 

v
is

it
s 

(n
o

te
, 

so
m

e
 t

e
a

ch
e

rs
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

h
e

se
 

a
lo

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

o
o

ke
d

 l
e

d
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
so

 a
re

 o
b

v
io

u
sl

y
 

Page 177



F
U

T
U

R
E

 M
U

S
E

U
M

S
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
   

   
   

   
  

Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 –

 A
p

r/
M

a
y

/J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
4

 -
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

V
e

rs
io

n
 4

 

  

u
si

n
g

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

si
te

) 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.t

o
rq

u
a

ym
u

se
u

m
.o

rg
/l

e
a

rn
/s

ch
o

o
ls

/p
ri

m

a
ry

/s
e

lf
-g

u
id

e
d

-v
is

it
s 

 

9
. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 A
li

 a
t 

T
A

 o
n

 m
o

re
 g

a
rd

e
n

 b
a

se
d

 s
e

lf
-

g
u

id
e

d
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

fo
r 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

re
fi

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 

le
d

 s
e

ss
io

n
s*

 

1
0

. 
P

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 G
e

o
p

a
rk

 F
e

st
iv

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
r 

B
H

M
 

1
1

. 
W

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 K

C
 o

n
 j

o
in

t 
m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 

A
n

ce
st

o
rs

/S
to

n
e

 A
g

e
 o

ff
e

r 
 

1
2

. 
D

e
liv

e
re

d
 G

e
o

h
u

b
 S

to
n

e
 A

g
e

 s
e

ss
io

n
s,

 b
o

th
 a

s 
jo

in
t 

o
ff

e
r 

w
it

h
 K

C
 o

r 
si

n
g

le
 T

Q
M

 v
is

it
 

1
3

. 
D

e
liv

e
re

d
 G

e
o

h
u

b
 ‘

P
e

b
b

le
 in

 Y
o

u
r 

P
o

ck
e

t’
 s

e
ss

io
n

 o
n

 

T
o

rr
e

 A
b

b
e

y
 S

a
n

d
s 

C
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
h

e
 p

re
m

is
e

 i
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
re

 m
ig

h
t 

b
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 g
e

t 

a
d

d
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

ro
m

 m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 

3
 m

u
se

u
m

s.
  

It
 i

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

C
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 T

e
a

m
 is

 f
o

rm
e

d
 l
e

d
 a

n
d

 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 F

M
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r.

  
 

 R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 3

 m
u

se
u

m
s 

to
 

in
cl

u
d

e
: 

B
a

rr
y

 C
h

a
n

d
le

r,
 A

m
e

li
a

 M
a

ri
e

tt
 ,

 M
a

rt
in

 

H
o

a
re

, 
A

la
n

 D
a

v
ie

s,
 P

h
il

 C
o

lli
n

s.
 

  

1
. 

S
e

t 
u

p
 a

 J
o

in
t 

M
u

se
u

m
s 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 T

e
a

m
. 

2
. 

M
a

p
 e

xi
st

in
g

 s
k

il
ls

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 

co
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 
a

t 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s.

 

3
. 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 s

k
il

ls
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 

co
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 
a

t 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s 

–
 i.

e
. 

w
h

a
t 

is
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

. 

4
. 

E
xp

lo
re

 h
o

w
 t

o
 f

il
l 

a
n

y
 g

a
p

s 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

u
ti

li
si

n
g

 r
e

d
e

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

xi
st

in
g

, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 u

p
, 

b
u

y
in

g
 i

n
. 

5
. 

C
o

n
si

d
e

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

w
id

e
r 

co
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 

n
e

e
d

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 T

o
rb

a
y

 –
 K

e
n

ts
, 

G
e

o
p

a
rk

, 

C
o

ck
in

g
to

n
,–

 h
o

w
 m

ig
h

t 
th

is
 f

it
 w

it
h

 a
 

fu
tu

re
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 c

o
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 

 

1
. 

A
n

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 M
u

se
u

m
s 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
D

e
li

ve
ry

 

T
e

a
m

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 m

o
n

th
ly

 f
ro

m
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0

1
4

. 

2
. 

A
 c

le
a

r 
p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 s
k

il
ls

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 3

 

si
te

s 
b

y
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

4
. 

3
. 

A
 c

le
a

r 
p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 s

k
il

ls
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
s 

a
t 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
w

it
h

 

th
o

u
g

h
ts

 o
n

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

n
e

ct
io

n
s 

w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
si

te
s 

b
y

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
4

. 

4
. 

T
h

e
 G

ro
u

p
 w

il
l 

se
t 

o
u

t 
h

o
w

 a
 j

o
in

t 
m

u
se

u
m

s 

co
ll

e
ct

io
n

s 
d

e
li

ve
ry

 t
e

a
m

 m
ig

h
t 

o
p

e
ra

te
 b

y
 

N
o

v
 2

0
1

4
. 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

a
n

y
 w

id
e

r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l c
o

lle
ct

io
n

s 
n

e
e

d
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 T
o

rb
a

y
. 

1
. 

B
ri

e
f 

d
ra

ft
e

d
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
m

u
se

u
m

s 
co

ll
e

ct
io

n
s 

d
e

li
ve

ry
 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 T
o

rb
a

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l.
  

O
n

ce
 

fe
e

d
b

a
ck

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 w
il

l 
se

t 
u

p
 f

ir
st

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 –
 p

ro
b

a
b

ly
 

in
 A

u
g

/S
e

p
t.

 

2
. 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 o

n
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 o
n

ce
 t

e
a

m
 h

a
s 

m
e

t.
 

F
u

n
d

ra
is

in
g

 

/g
ra

n
ts

 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
v

ie
w

 h
o

w
 t

h
is

 t
a

k
e

s 
p

la
ce

 a
cr

o
ss

 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
to

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

a
 j

o
in

t 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 a
n

d
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

g
ra

n
t 

g
iv

in
g

 b
o

d
ie

s.
  

T
h

is
 w

o
rk

 w
il

l 
b

e
 le

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

th
e

 F
M

 P
ro

je
ct

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r.
 

 R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 d

ra
w

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 3

 m
u

se
u

m
s 

to
 

in
cl

u
d

e
: 

P
h

il
 C

o
ll

in
s,

 A
la

n
 D

a
v

ie
s,

 M
a

rt
in

 H
o

a
re

, 
P

h
il

 

A
rm

it
a

g
e

. 

1
. 

E
xp

lo
re

 a
 j

o
in

e
d

 u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 a
t 

th
e

 F
M

 

P
ro

je
ct

 B
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
a

n
d

 s
e

t 
u

p
 a

 

w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 t

o
 t

a
k

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
 

2
. 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

n
 o

u
tl

in
e

 o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

g
ra

n
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s.
 

3
. 

P
ro

d
u

ce
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

m
a

jo
r 

g
ra

n
t 

b
o

d
ie

s 
e

.g
. 

H
LF

/A
C

E
 i

n
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 T

o
rb

a
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
n

d
 

sh
a

re
 t

h
is

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 g
ra

n
ts

 b
o

d
ie

s.
 

1
. 

A
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
jo

r 
g

ra
n

t 
n

e
e

d
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 3
 

si
te

s 
o

ve
r 

th
e

 n
e

xt
 5

 y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 a

 s
h

a
re

d
 

st
ra

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

d
e

a
li

n
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
r 

g
ra

n
t 

b
o

d
ie

s 
b

y 
O

ct
 2

0
1

4
. 

1
. 

T
o

 b
e

 d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 a
t 

A
u

g
u

st
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
F

M
 P

ro
je

ct
 

B
o

a
rd

. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

T
h

e
 F

M
 P

ro
je

ct
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
t 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
to

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

a
 

jo
in

e
d

 u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

  

1
. 

F
M

 P
ro

je
ct

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
t 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s.
 

2
. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 3

 s
it

e
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

‘j
o

in
e

d
-u

p
’ 

to
 e

xp
lo

it
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 

a
ss

is
t 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
. 

3
. 

U
S

P
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

co
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ry
. 

1
. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 

th
e

 3
 s

it
e

s 
b

y
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

4
. 

2
. 

Jo
in

e
d

-u
p

 F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

s 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
cc

re
d

it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
o

 a
cc

re
d

it
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
a

d
li

n
e

s 

b
y

 D
e

c 
2

0
1

4
. 

1
. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 f
o

r 
T

o
rr

e
 A

b
b

e
y

. 

2
. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

 d
ra

ft
e

d
 f

o
r 

 T
Q

M
. 

3
. 

F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
B

ri
xh

a
m

 b
e

in
g

 w
o

rk
e

d
 o

n
. 

Page 178



Torquay Museum, Torre Abbey Museum and Brixham Heritage Museum 

working in partnership 

TQM Cost savings and Income Generation – Draft figures 

Implemented from 1 April 2014 

Changes to buying policy on consumables - £1.5k 

Change to services (printing, internet, recycling, SAGE) - £3.1k 

Changes to heating/lighting policy (incl. invest to save lighting) - £12.5k 

Café shift to franchise (from loss to net gain) net - £10k 

Sponsorship - £6.5k 

TOTAL = £33.6k 

 

Savings from staff restructuring over period 2013/14 to 2014/15 = £65k 

 

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 6

Page 179



F
M

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

  
ch

a
n

g
e

 T
im

e
li

n
e

 2
0

1
4

-1
5

 v
4

 p
d

f 
fo

rm

F
U

T
U

R
E

 M
U

S
E

U
M

S
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
2

0
1

4
-1

5

T
im

e
li

n
e

 f
o

r 
T

M
S

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 c
h

a
n

g
e

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
S

T
S

E
P

T
E

M
B

E
R

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
N

O
V

E
M

B
E

R
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
JA

N
U

A
R

Y

D
ra

ft
in

g
 n

e
w

 A
rt

ic
le

s 
fo

r 
T

M
S

/T
M

T

•
F

ir
st

 d
ra

ft
M

id
-A

u
g

•
F

in
a

l 
d

ra
ft

 f
o

r 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n

 t
o

 A
G

M
M

id
-S

e
p

t

D
ra

ft
in

g
 a

rt
ic

le
s 

fo
r 

S
o

ci
e

ty
 c

h
a

ri
ty

•
F

ir
st

 d
ra

ft
M

id
-A

u
g

•
F

in
a

l 
d

ra
ft

 f
o

r 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n

 t
o

 A
G

M
M

id
-S

e
p

t

D
ra

ft
in

g
 l

ic
e

n
ce

 f
o

r 
T

Q
M

 r
o

o
m

 u
se

•
F

ir
st

 d
ra

ft
M

id
-A

u
g

•
F

in
a

l 
d

ra
ft

 f
o

r 
su

b
m

is
si

o
n

 t
o

 A
G

M
M

id
-S

e
p

t

R
e

cr
u

it
in

g
 n

e
w

 B
o

a
rd

 f
o

r 
T

M
T

A
d

v
e

rt
is

e
In

te
rv

ie
w

A
p

p
o

in
t

E
n

g
a

g
e

  
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

f 
sh

a
d

o
w

 B
o

a
rd

S
h

a
d

o
w

 B
o

a
rd

 s
e

t 
u

p
 f

o
r 

T
M

T
E

n
d

 o
f 

N
o

v

R
e

cr
u

it
in

g
 n

e
w

 B
o

a
rd

 f
o

r 
S

o
ci

e
ty

S
h

a
d

o
w

 B
o

a
rd

 s
e

t 
u

p
 f

o
r 

S
o

ci
e

ty

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
/c

o
n

su
lt

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

9
th

C
o

n
v

e
rs

a
zi

o
n

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
2

9
th

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 C
h

a
ri

ty
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n

B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 F

in
a

n
ce

1
8

th
2

0
th

1
0

th

B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

T
ru

st
e

e
s

1
0

th
1

5
th

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 m

tg
s 

- 
a

s 
a

d
v

is
e

d
2

9
th

P
a

p
e

rs
 c

o
m

p
il

e
d

 f
o

r 
A

G
M

 m
a

il
-o

u
t

P
a

p
e

rs
 s

e
n

t 
4

 w
e

e
k

s 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 A
G

M
/E

G
M

1
8

th

A
G

M
 &

 E
G

M
1

8
th

Li
k

e
ly

 A
G

M
/E

G
M

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 v
o

te
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 k

e
y

 i
ss

u
e

s:

- 
  

  
  

C
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

n
a

m
e

 o
f 

T
M

S
 t

o
 T

o
rq

u
a

y
 M

u
se

u
m

s 
T

ru
st

.

- 
  

  
  

N
e

w
 A

rt
ic

le
s 

o
f 

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 T

M
T

.

- 
  

  
  

T
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 ‘

n
e

w
 T

M
S

’ 
w

it
h

 n
e

w
 A

rt
ic

le
s 

o
f 

A
ss

o
ci

a
ti

o
n

/c
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
.

- 
  

  
  

N
o

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

B
o

a
rd

 f
o

r 
b

o
th

.

Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 7

Page 180



Agenda Item 4b
Appendix 8

Page 181


	Agenda
	2a (9.30) Introduction and Rationale for Proposals
	Churston Library - Draft EIA
	Blind Club and Prime Time - Draft EIA
	Resources Fund - Draft EIA

	2b (9.45) Representations from Friends Groups, service users and members of the public
	Submission from Friends of Brixham Library

	3a (11.30) Introduction and Rationale for proposals
	ERTC - Additional Information
	ERTC - Draft EIA

	3b (11.45) Representations from English Riviera Tourism Company and members of the public
	Petition - Covering Letter
	Submission from Westgate Hotel
	Submission from Bridge Group of hotels
	Submission from the Commodore
	Submisson from Court Prior
	Submission from Somerville Hotel

	4a (2.00) Introduction and Rationale for proposals
	Museums - Additional Information
	Museums - Draft EIA

	4b (2.15) Representations from museums and members of the public
	Submission from Torquay Museum
	Interim Summary Project Delivery
	Annex A - Torbay Musesums Options Appraisal (2013)
	Annex B - Torbay Museums Options Appraisal (Black Radley, 2013)
	Annex C - Future Musuems Quarter 1 report
	Annex D - Torquay Museum Cost Savings and Income Generation
	Annex 2 (Annex C) - Future Musesums Governance Change Timeline 2014-15
	Petition - Covering Letter


